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Pursuant to this Court’s order of September 16, 2009 scheduling adjudication of the “Net
Equity” issue (the “Scheduling Order”), Irving H. Picard, trustee (“Trustee) for the liquidation
of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC (“BLMIS”) under the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aaa et seq. (“SIPA™),' and for Bernard L. Madoff
(“Madoft”) (“collectively, “Debtor”), respectfully submits this motion (“Motion”) for an order
(a) upholding the Trustee’s determinations of the Claims listed on Exhibit A to the extent such
determinations relate to the Trustee’s interpretation of "Net Equity" as such term is used at 15
U.S.C. § 78/l[(11), (b) upholding the Trustee's denial of the Claimsto the extent they are
aclaim for the amounts listed on the respective customer's November 30, 2008 BLMIS
customer statement, (c) affirming the Trustee’s interpretation of “Net Equity,” and (d) expunging
the objections to the Trustee’s determinations listed on Exhibit A insofar as they object to the
Trustee's interpretation of the term “Net Equity:”

In support of his Motion, the Trustee states and represents as follows:

Factual Backeround:

1. On December 11, 2008, Madoff was arrested by the FBI in his Manhattan
home and was criminally charged with a multi-billion dollar securities fraud scheme in violation
of 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) & 78ff and 17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5 in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, captioned United States v. Madoff, No. 08-CV-2735 (the

“Criminal Action”).?

"For convenience, future reference to SIPA will not include “15 U.S.C.”

* On March 10, 2009, the Criminal Action was transferred to Judge Denny Chin in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York and was assigned a new docket number, No. 09 CR 213 (DC).



2. Also on December 11, 2008 (the “Filing Date”),” the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York (the “District Court”) against Madoff and BLMIS (Case No. 08-

CV-10791) (the “SEC Action”).

3. On December 15, 2008, under section 78eee(a)(4)(A) of SIPA, the SEC
consented to a combination of the SEC Action with an application of the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (“SIPC”). Thereafter, under section 78eee(a)(3) of SIPA, SIPC filed an
application in the district court alleging that BLMIS was not able to meet its obligations to
securities customers as they came due and that its customers needed the protection afforded by

SIPA as a result.

4. That same day, the District Court entered a protective decree, to which
BLMIS consented, which, in pertinent part:
(a) Appointed Irving H. Picard as trustee for the liquidation of the business of
BLMIS, pursuant to section 78eee(b)(3) of SIPA;

(b) Appointed Baker & Hostetler, LLP as counsel to the Trustee (“Counsel”)
pursuant to section 78eee(b)(3) of SIPA;

(©) Removed the case to this Bankruptcy Court pursuant to section
78eee(b)(4) of SIPA; and

(d) Authorized the Trustee to take immediate possession of the property of the
debtor, wherever located.

5. On December 23, 2008, this Court entered a claims procedure order that

specifies the procedures for the filing, determination, and adjudication of customer claims in this

3 In this case, the Filing Date is the date on which the SEC commenced its suit against BLMIS, December 11, 2008,
which resulted in the appointment of a receiver for the firm. See Section 78//(7)(B) of SIPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78
HI(7)(B).



proceeding. The order provides that under section 78fff-2(a)(2) of SIPA, all claims against
BLMIS must be filed with the Trustee. The order further provides that the Trustee will
determine customer and creditor claims in writing and allows any claimant who opposes the
Trustee’s determination to file an objection with this Court, after which the Court will hear the

matter.

6. As the Trustee appointed under SIPA, the Trustee has the job of
recovering and distributing customer property to BLMIS’s customers, assessing claims, and
liquidating any other assets of the firm for the benefit of the estate and its creditors. Pursuant to
section § 78fff-1(a) of SIPA, the Trustee has the general powers of a bankruptcy trustee in
addition to the powers granted by SIPA. Pursuant to section 78fff(b) of SIPA, Chapters 1, 3, 5

and Subchapters I and II of Chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code are applicable to this case.

7. In accordance with his statutory responsibilities, the Trustee is in the
process of marshalling BLMIS’s assets, and the liquidation of BLMIS’s assets for the benefit of
the estate’s customers and creditors is well underway. To date, the Trustee has recovered more
than $1.2 billion in assets to date, although it is not expected that the total value of assets
ultimately recovered will be sufficient to fully reimburse the customers of BLMIS for the many
billions of dollars they invested with BLMIS over the years. In addition, the Trustee has
determined more than 1,530 customer claims and has committed to pay over $484 million to
BLMIS customers in funds advanced from SIPC in full or partial satisfaction of those claims,

upon the return of the appropriate assignment and release.



Trustee’s Interpretation of Net Equity:

8. The statutory framework for the satisfaction of customer claims in a SIPA
liquidation proceeding provides that customers share pro rata in customer property to the extent
of their “net equity,” as defined in section 78//l(11) of SIPA (“Net Equity”), and to the extent
that a customer’s Net Equity exceeds his or her ratable share of customer property, SIPC shall

advance funds to the SIPA trustee up to $500,000 for securities for that customer.

0. The Trustee has determined each customer’s Net Equity by crediting the
amount of cash deposited by the customer into her BLMIS account, less any amounts withdrawn

from her BLMIS customer account, otherwise known as the “cash in/cash out approach.”

10. Certain claimants disagree with the Trustee as to the construction of the
term Net Equity and how that term should be applied to determine the amount of the valid

customer claim of each claimant.

11. Various claimants have asserted that Net Equity should be determined on
the basis of each claimant’s fictitious balance as shown on their fabricated November 30, 2008

account statement provided by BLMIS.

Motion for Scheduling Order on Net Equity:

12. After certain claimants objected to the Trustee’s interpretation of Net

Equity, the Trustee, moved the Court for a briefing schedule and hearing on the matter.



13. On September 16, 2009, this Court entered the Scheduling Order setting
forth dates for briefing and hearing on the Net Equity issue. In accordance with the Scheduling

Order, the Trustee submits the herein Motion.

Customer claims Determinations:

14. Net Winners — Under the parlance of this proceeding, a “net winner” is
defined as a BLMIS customer that withdrew more funds from BLMIS than the customer
deposited with BLMIS. Thus, the customer received payments constituting a full return of her
principal investment, plus some amount of fictitious “profits” generated by BLMIS. Although
she has already withdrawn all of her principal, along with some amount of fictitious profits (in
reality, funds deposited by other customers), the “net winner” customer who objects to the
Trustee’s methodology is claiming that she is due the fictitious amount fabricated on her final
fake November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statement. The Trustee has to date received thirty one
(31) timely filed objections (containing objections on the basis of Net Equity) from “net
winners” (as defined above). Please see Exhibit A-1 for summaries of the “net winners” claims,

determinations and objections.

15. Net Losers (Over-the-Limit) — Under the “cash in/cash out” approach,
the customers that fall within the category of “over-the-limits net losers that have received full
SIPC protection” are customers that withdrew less money from BLMIS than they deposited over
time, and had net investment amounts in excess of $500,000. They are entitled to an allowed
claim for the amount that they invested, less the amount that they have withdrawn from BLMIS.
The difference between the amount invested and the withdrawn amount over time is the

customer’s Net Equity. The customer has received or will receive a pro rata share of any



customer property based upon her Net Equity, and will receive a check from the Trustee of
$500,000 from funds advanced by SIPC against her share of customer property. Although the
claims of these investors should be based on their Net Equity as measured by the net amount
invested, these claimants assert that the amount of their Net Equity should be equal to the
fictitious amounts represented on their final fake November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer
statement. Some of these claimants also argue that their claim for this last reported fictitious
amount should be satisfied in securities and not cash. The Trustee has to date received nine (9)
objections (containing objections on the basis of Net Equity) from “net losers (over-the-limit)”
(as defined above). Please see Exhibit A-2 for summaries of the “net losers (over-the-limit)”

claims, determinations and objections.

16. Net Losers (Under-the-Limit) — Like the previous category, customers
that fall within this category also have allowable claims because they invested more over time
than they withdrew from the fraudulent scheme. The net investment amount is less than
$500,000, so their respective SIPC protection is limited to the amount of their respective net
investment. They will not be entitled to a further distribution from the fund of customer property
because their Net Equity claim will have been fully satisfied by the SIPC advance, and SIPC will
receive the customers’ share of customer property as subrogee. These customers’ respective
final fake November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statements may, however, show a balance
higher than $500,000. The Trustee has to date received thirty eight (38) objections (containing
objections on the basis of Net Equity) from “net losers (under-the-limit)” (as defined above).
Please see Exhibit A-3 for summaries of the “net losers (under-the-limit)” claims, determinations

and objections.



Relief Requested:

17. Pursuant to the Scheduling Order and for the reasons more fully developed
in the memorandum of law submitted in support of this Motion, the Trustee
respectfully requests an order (a) upholding the Trustee’s determinations of the Claims listed on
Exhibit A to the extent such determinations relate to the Trustee’s interpretation of "Net
Equity" as such term is used at 15 U.S.C. § 78/ll(11), (b) upholding the Trustee's denial of the
Claims to the extent they are aclaimfor the amounts listed on the respective
customer's November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statement, (c) affirming the
Trustee’s interpretation of "Net Equity"”, and (d) expunging the objections to the Trustee’s
determinations listed on Exhibit A insofar as they object to the Trustee's interpretation of the

term “Net Equity.”

NOTICE

1. Notice of this Motion has been provided by U.S. mail, postage prepaid,
email, or by ECF to (i) customers listed in Exhibit A (ii) all parties that have filed a notice of
appearance in this case; (ii1) the SEC; (iv) the Internal Revenue Service; and (v) the United
States Attorney for the Southern District of New York; (collectively, the “Notice Parties”). The

Trustee submits that no other or further notice need be given.



WHEREFORE, the Trustee respectfully requests that the Court issue an order granting the
relief requested herein, and grant such other and further relief to the Trustee as the Court deems

proper.

Dated: New York, New York BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP
October 16, 2009

By:/s/ _David J. Sheehan

Baker & Hostetler LLP

45 Rockefeller Plaza

New York, NY 10111
Telephone: (212) 589-4200
Facsimile: (212) 589-4201
David J. Sheehan

Email: dsheechan@bakerlaw.com
Marc E. Hirschfield

Email: mhirschfield@bakerlaw.com
Seanna R. Brown

Email: sbrown@bakerlaw.com

Attorneys for Irving H. Picard, Esq.,
Trustee for the Substantively Consolidated
SIPA Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff
Investment Securities LLC and Bernard L.

Madoff
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION
CORPORATION,

Adv. Pro. No. 08-01789 (BRL)
Plaintiff,
SIPA Liquidation
V.
(Substantively Consolidated)
BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT
SECURITIES LLC,

Defendant.

In re:
BERNARD L. MADOFF,

Debtor.

DECLARATION OF JOSEPH LOOBY IN SUPPORT OF TRUSTEE’S MOTION FOR
AN ORDER UPHOLDING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION DENYING “CUSTOMER”
CLAIMS FOR AMOUNTS LISTED ON LAST CUSTOMER STATEMENT,
AFFIRMING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION OF NET EQUITY, AND EXPUNGING
THOSE OBJECTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE DETERMINATIONS RELATING
TO NET EQUITY

I, Joseph Looby, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, declare as follows:

1. I am a Senior Managing Director with FTI Consulting, Inc. (“FTI”). I have more
than 20 years of combined experience in the military, regulatory enforcement, investigations and
technology, much of which has involved financial and fraud investigations. I am a certified
fraud examiner (“CFE”), with a Bachelors degree in Economics, a Juris Doctorate, and am listed
as the co-inventor of U.S. Patent “System, Software and Method for Examining a Database in a
Forensic Accounting Environment.”  Additional information regarding my personal and
professional experience is included in my Curriculum Vitae annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.

2. On or about December 30, 2008, FTI was retained by Irving H. Picard, the

Trustee appointed by the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York for



the substantively consolidated liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC
(“BLMIS”), under the Securities Investor Protection Act (“SIPA”), and for Bernard L. Madoff
(“Madoft”), to examine, among other things, the financial affairs of BLMIS.

3. I make this declaration based upon the information and knowledge acquired
during the course of my retention, as described herein, and in support of the Trustee's motion
(“Motion™) for an order upholding the Trustee’s determination denying “customer” claims for
amounts listed on last customer statements, affirming the Trustee’s determination of net equity,
and expunging those objections with respect to the determinations relating to net equity.

4. During the course of carrying out my investigative duties in this matter, my
colleagues and I have interviewed, in person or by telephone, business associates and other
persons who have had business dealings with, or who we were told had information relevant to,
the business and financial affairs of BLMIS and Madoff.

5. Also during the course of my involvement in this matter, I have personally
reviewed thousands of documents, as well as schedules prepared and information collected by
my colleagues, relating to the books and records of BLMIS, third party records, bank records and
other documentation relevant to BLMIS and its customer accounts and information systems.

6. I have personally reviewed the BLMIS customer agreements executed by each of

the 78 claimants that are the subject of the Trustee's Motion.



Organization of BLMIS

7. Corporate records' reveal that Madoff was the sole member and chairman of
BLMIS at the time of its failure. Originally formed as a sole proprietorship in 1960, BLMIS was
reorganized as a single member LLC on or around December 4, 2000.

8. BLMIS operated for many years up until the Filing Date” from its principal place
of business at 885 Third Avenue, New York, New York. Madoff ran BLMIS together with
several Madoff family members and a number of employees.

0. BLMIS was organized into three business units, the market making unit, the
proprietary trading unit, and the investment advisory business (hereinafter, interchangeably
referred to as "BLMIS" or the “IA Business”).

10. BLMIS was registered with the SEC as a broker-dealer under § 15(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. § 780(b)) as of January 19, 1960, and, beginning in
2006, as an investment adviser. However, the Investment Advisor registration was falsified and
only 23 of the thousands of IA Business customers were reported to the SEC. By virtue of the
registration as a broker-dealer, BLMIS was a member of SIPC.

11. Madoff also operated a branch of the broker-dealer in London, England since
February 1983, which was incorporated under the name Madoff Securities International Ltd.

(“MSIL”).

' The books and records of BLMIS are, at best, incomplete. The Trustee, through his counsel and his
consultants such as FTI, is endeavoring to supplement the corporate books and records with third party
records, including bank records, customer records, etc., where available.

* Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed in the Trustee’s
Memorandum of Law in support of the Motion.



12. BLMIS’s annual audits were purportedly performed by Friehling & Horowitz,
CPAs P.C., an accounting firm of three employees, one of whom was semi-retired. The firm’s
offices were located in a strip mall in Rockland County, New Y ork.

13. BLMIS employees generally referred to the IA Business as “House 17” and the
market maker and proprietary trading businesses combined as “House 5.”

14. In or around 1993, the staff of the IA Business were physically separated from the
other business units and relocated to the 17th floor of 885 Third Avenue ("17th Floor"). The
market maker and proprietary trading business staff were located on the 18th and 19th floors of
that address.

15. In or around 1993, BLMIS began using computer systems and software programs
known as an IBM AS/400. Two (2) AS/400 computer systems were implemented on or around
1993; one for House 5 (“House 5 AS/400”) and one for House 17 (“House 17 AS/400”). Both
were located on the 17th floor.

16. The House 17 AS/400 was used only in connection with the IA Business. The
House 5 AS/400 and other computer systems were used in connection with the market making
and proprietary trading business.

BLMIS Bank Accounts & Customer Deposits

17. BLMIS used two primary bank accounts to fund its disbursements, one held at
The Bank of New York Mellon (the “621 Account”) and another held at JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A. (the “703 Account”).

18. The 703 Account was primarily used for customer deposits and withdrawals from

the IA Business. Amounts invested in BLMIS by customers were deposited into the 703



Account. Similarly, the majority of redemptions by customers were withdrawn from the 703
Account.

19. Remaining cash balances in this account at the end of each business day were
transferred to affiliated overnight investment accounts at J.P. Morgan Chase Bank and other
investments until additional monies were needed to fund additional withdrawal requests by
customers, capital needs of the broker-dealer operation of BLMIS, or Madoff’s (and other
insiders’) personal needs.

20. BLMIS maintained a book which tracked certain customers’ cash deposits and
withdrawals from BLMIS.

21. Each day, BLMIS employees on the 17th floor prepared reports for Madoff
indicating amounts of customer deposits into and withdrawals from the 703 Account. These
funds were not reflected on the books and records of the House 5 operations.

22. By early December 2008, BLMIS generated client account statements for about
4,900 customer accounts (the “November 30, 2008 Statements”). When added together, and
after netting out approximately $8.3 billion of amounts shown as owed to BLMIS, these
statements erroneously showed approximately $64.8 billion of investments with BLMIS. In
reality, BLMIS had assets on hand worth a small fraction of that amount.

23. The $64.8 billion balance recorded on BLMIS customer statements is net of
“negative” accounts that approximate $8.3 billion. The total amount shown on the November
30, 2008 customer statements for the 4,900 accounts with purported positive equity balances
aggregates to $73.1 billion.

24. Although the investigation is still ongoing, the total amount of funds that

customers deposited but did not withdraw from their BLMIS accounts was less than $20 billion.



25. At all times relevant hereto, the monthly purported equity balances of BLMIS
customer accounts far exceeded the amount of capital in the 703 Account.

The Proprietary Trading and Market Making Businesses

26. The proprietary trading and market making units of BLMIS were largely run as
enterprises separate and apart from the BLMIS IA Business.

27. Review of the financial history of BLMIS demonstrates that neither of these
business units would have been viable without the fraudulent IA Business, the proceeds of which
were used to sustain those business operations from at least 2007 forward.

28. The market making and proprietary trading business units appear to have been
largely involved in legitimate trading with institutional counterparties and utilized live computer
systems including the House 5 AS/400 and trading platforms that interfaced with multiple third-
party feeds and outside data sources often necessary for trading. BLMIS employed a sizeable
information technology staff to support and maintain these trading platforms, as well as other
technology associated with these business units.

29. The House 5 computer systems, including the House 5 AS/400, were connected,
and/or reconciled to (i.e., interfaced with) the systems required to conduct legitimate securities
trading with the outside world. For example, these systems interfaced with other trading
platforms and programs including order entry, trade execution, securities clearing, and the
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). A diagram illustrating key differences
between the House 17 and House 5 AS/400’s is annexed hereto as Exhibit 2.

30. Unlike the House 17 AS/400, the House 5 AS/400 included outputs for regulatory
review including FINRA, the Securities & Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and financial

reporting. It was an open AS/400, consistent with a legitimate securities trading business.



31. In addition, the market making and proprietary trading units were subject to
compliance and risk monitoring programs, by the exchanges they traded on, the clearing houses
they utilized, and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), among others.

The IA Business

32. Outwardly, the IA Business functioned as both an investment adviser to its
customers and a custodian of their securities. The precise date on which BLMIS began
purportedly engaging in investment advisory services has not been established, but it appears that
BLMIS was offering such services as far back as the 1960s.

33. There were 25 individuals that worked for the IA Business of BLMIS.

34, Based on a review of standard customer opening agreements, BLMIS customers
deposited their cash and were able to make withdrawals, but ceded all other rights associated
with their accounts, including the authority to make investment decisions, to Madoff or BLMIS.

35. Upon the opening of their BLMIS customer account, customers signed a
document such as a “Trading Authorization Limited to Purchases and Sales of Securities and
Options,” an example of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 3. As indicated in Exhibit 3, the
forms pertaining to IA account #1B0094 authorized Madoff as the account holder’s “agent and
attorney in fact to buy, sell and trade in stocks, bonds, options and any other securities in
accordance with [Madoftf’s] terms and conditions.”

36. Further, the account holder agreed that, “[i]n all such purchases, sales or trades
[Madoff is] authorized to follow the instructions of Bernard L. Madoff in every respect
concerning the undersigned's account with [Madoff]; and [Madoff]is authorized to act for the
undersigned and in the undersigned's behalf in the same manner and with the same force and

effect as the undersigned might or could do with respect to such purchases, sales or trades as well



as with respect to all other things necessary or incidental to the furtherance or conduct of such
purchases, sales or trades. All purchases, sales or trades shall be executed strictly in accordance
with the established trading authorization directive.”

37. BLMIS did not provide its customers with electronic real-time online access to
their accounts, which certainly by the year 2000 was customary in the industry.” BLMIS utilized
technology that was severely outmoded relative to other participants in the exchange traded
equity market to communicate with his clients, such as paper trade confirmations, transmitted
through the United States Mail.

38. There were essentially two groups of IA Business customer accounts, the split-
strike conversion strategy accounts, administered by Frank DiPascali (“DiPascali”’), and the non-
split-strike conversion accounts, administered by other BLMIS employees.

39. DiPascali started at BLMIS on September 11, 1975.

40. The House 17 AS/400 was designed to record and assist with the printing of the
fictitious securities purportedly bought and sold by BLMIS, customer cash transactions,
customer statements, trade confirmations, management reports, and Internal Revenue Service
1099 forms.

41. Importantly, the House 17 AS/400 was not connected, interfaced and/or
reconciled to any of the systems used to facilitate or execute the purchase and sale of securities at
BLMIS. It was a closed system, separate and distinct from any computer system utilized by the
other BLMIS business units; consistent with one designed to mass produce fictitious customer

statements.

? Of its thousands of customers, BLMIS provided customer statements in electronic form to only two customers,
with six accounts between them. Even though they were electronic, the statements consisted of merely data files.
No customer had real time access to its account information and trading data because there was no such data or
information to be had in light of the fact that no trading was conducted.



42. As of about November 30, 2008, DiPascali was identified in the House 17 AS/400
as administering 4,659 active customer accounts, primarily the split-strike conversion accounts.

43, As of about November 30, 2008, the House 17 AS/400 identified 244 active
accounts administered by other BLMIS employees. A summary schedule of account
management and purported equity and cash trend activity is annexed hereto as Exhibit 4.

44, The House 17 AS/400 had software that could be utilized to enter fictitious
“trades” with any desired price or trade date that could then be allocated, pro rata, to the various
BLMIS customer accounts residing within its database.

45. BLMIS employees input the components of alleged security trades (e.g.
stock/option, price, date, and volume) into the House 17 AS/400.

46. Inputting trade data into the House 17 AS/400 did not execute a buy or sell of a
security, it merely created a record that could then be printed on a fictitious customer statement
and trade confirmation.

47. Because fictitious trades require no opposite broker to execute and complete the
trade, no counterparties existed and none were identified in the House 17 AS/400 system. None
of the split-strike trades entered into the House 17 AS/400 were reconciled (or reconcilable) with
the DTCC.

DiPascali and the “Split-Strike Conversion” Strategy

48. The strategy executed by DiPascali simulated a “basket of securities and options”
based on a split-strike conversion strategy. This strategy consisted of purported investment in a
basket of common stocks within the S&P 100 Index hedged by a collar of put and call options to
limit the potential client investment loss (or gain) that may be caused by normal stock price

volatility.



49. An examination of the BLMIS books and records reveals that the fictitious
investment strategy focused on large cap stocks, presumably to preclude inquiry into the volume
of stocks in which BLMIS was purportedly trading.

50. The split-strike conversion strategy involved the purported “sale” of the baskets,
moving customer funds completely “out of the market” to purported investments in Treasuries,
money market funds, and cash reserves until the next presumed trading opportunity arose. At the
end of each quarter, all baskets would be allegedly “sold” and allegedly “invested” in Treasuries
or money market funds, and cash reserves. The purported pricing and volume, i.e. purported
value, of these alternative investments included the fictitious gains carried over from the BLMIS
advantageous liquidation of purported baskets.

51. However, no securities were actually purchased by BLMIS for its customers and
the money received from a customer was not invested in securities for the benefit of that
customer, but was instead primarily used to make distributions to, or payments made on behalf
of, other investors as well as withdrawals and payments to Madoff family members and
employees.

52. Per SEC Rule 15¢3-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 17
C.F.R. § 240.15c3-3, brokers and dealers are required to maintain a “special reserve bank
account for the exclusive benefit of customers.” This special reserve bank account is “separate
from any other bank account of the broker or dealer.” The special reserve account is required to
maintain a certain minimum balance according to the specifics of SEC Rule 15¢3-3.

53. Institutional investment managers who exercise investment discretion over
accounts having $100 million or more in Section 13(f) securities (i.e., exchange traded or

NASDAQ-quoted securities) must report their holdings on Form 13F to the SEC. Form 13F

10



requires disclosure of the names of the institutional investment managers, the names of the
securities they manage and the class of securities, the CUSIP number, the number of shares
owned, and the total market value of each security.

54, BLMIS maintained a balance of $20,000 in its 15¢3-3 account from late 2002
until the Filing Date, which was wholly inadequate given the purported value of the customer
accounts according to the specifics of SEC Rule 15¢3-3.

55. By allegedly “selling” the baskets before the end of the quarter, the equities in the
baskets were not required to be disclosed in SEC Form 13F filings.

56. At no point while customer funds were purportedly either “in the market” or “out
of the market,” however, were such funds invested as shown on the fictitious statements.
Instead, to the extent that customer funds had not already been expended, they were held in the
BLMIS 703 Account at Chase Bank.

57. In fact, one of the money market funds in which customer resources were
purportedly invested through BLMIS, as reflected on customer statements as late as 2008, was
the Fidelity Brokerage Services LLC’s “Fidelity Spartan U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund.”
However, Fidelity has acknowledged that, from 2005 onwards, Fidelity did not offer
participation in any such money market fund for investment.

58. To facilitate the efficient inputting of alleged trades, DiPascali allocuted, and IA
Business staff confirmed, that DiPascali directed the programming of a "basket trade" program
within the AS/400. This was essentially a mail-merge program, but instead of printing names
and addresses from a data file to a boilerplate letter, this program applied a basket (or fraction or

multiple thereof) of purported security trades to a BLMIS customer statement.
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59. Thus, one basket data file containing many fictitious trades could be replicated in
customer statements of hundreds or thousands of customers without the need to manually type
each trade on each customer statement.

60. Baskets were created by DiPascali and his staff to initiate purported trading for a
specific trade date. Stocks in a basket were “priced” after the market closed (i.e., with knowledge
of the prior published price history), and customer statements were then fabricated by BLMIS
personnel using the House 17 AS/400 based on the basket and available funds reported in a
customer’s account. BLMIS staff confirmed it, the system facilitated it, and consistent returns
could not have been achieved without it.

61. For example, if a basket was $400,000 and a customer had $800,000 available,
two (2) baskets of securities and options would be purportedly “purchased” for the account.

62. The reported performance of the basket of stocks, selected from the S&P 100
Index, largely outperformed the movement of the S&P 100 Index overall due to the fabricated
pricing and timing of the fictional basket “purchases” and “sales.” To create the illusion that
these stocks had been purchased or sold, BLMIS employees would use the AS/400 and its
software programs to fabricate customer statements printed with the purchase and sale of baskets
mimicking the purported split-strike conversion strategy.

63. BLMIS employees picked advantageous historical prices in order to achieve the
sought after investment returns.

64. Once a basket “trade” was identified as one that achieved the fictitious return
desired, certain employees, known as ‘“key punch operators,” were provided with the relevant
basket information that they entered manually into the House 17 AS/400. The basket trade was

then routinely (e.g., monthly) replicated in the selected BLMIS split-strike customer accounts

12



automatically and proportionally according to the fraction or number of baskets each customer’s
purported net equity could purportedly afford.

65. The baskets were monitored via a Microsoft Excel model to ensure that the prices
chosen after-the-fact obtained returns that were neither too high nor too low.

66. With the benefit of backdating (i.e., with knowledge of previously published
priced history), Madoff and his employees at BLMIS were able to consistently generate
purported annual returns for split-strike conversion customer accounts generally between about
10 and 17%.

67. Over the course of its existence, millions of pages of fictitious customer
statements and confirmations were printed containing the increasing output of this compounded
false profit fiction.

68. Consistent with this strategy, the initial basket on a customer statement reflected
purported purchases of stock and/or options comparable to the amount of principal invested with
BLMIS. By the time of the basket’s purported liquidation, remnants of the principal were
commingled in the BLMIS bank account or diverted for other purposes.

69. By the time the next basket was “purchased,” the false profits reportedly “earned”
from the first basket were used to purportedly “buy” additional securities.

70. These false profits were compounded time and again, every time the IA Business
accounts purportedly “got into the market” or “out of the market.”

71. Accordingly, for each month after the initial customer statement, the only truthful
and accurate information contained on BLMIS customer statements was the subsequent deposits
and/or withdrawals of cash into the particular customer account. Whether or not the customer

conducted any cash transactions, the customer statements would reflect purported trading activity
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and resulting gains on the securities purportedly purchased and/or sold on behalf of that
customer.

72. Because of the mass “buys” and “sells” in each fictitious basket over time; the
fact that the IA Business “made up” trade dates and prices; the fact that in the aggregate, market
volumes were exceeded; and, that trades were not directed by customers, it is impossible to trace
a customer’s money to specific trades. Even with respect to the first purported basket purchase,
a customer’s money may not equal the value of the securities purportedly purchased because the
prices and trade dates were advantageously fabricated by the IA Business. For this reason, no
market price can be ascertained.

73. Because customer funds were never exposed to the market, customer funds were
not exposed to the uncertain risks associated with price movement in the market.

The Non-Split-Strike Accounts

74. The purported trading strategy executed on behalf of the non-split-strike
conversion accounts was equally as fictitious as DiPascali’s purported “split-strike conversion”
strategy.

75. The non-split-strike conversion customer accounts included many long time
customers of Madoff, including Stanley Chais’s feeder funds and personal accounts, Jeffry
Picower’s personal and business accounts, and accounts held by various Madoff family members
and employees. There were less than 245 of these and other accounts (i.e., accounts not assigned
to Frank DiPascali), representing approximately 5% of the total active accounts as of November
30, 2008.

76. The non-split-strike conversion accounts reported unusually high rates of return,

often in excess of 100%, in excess of the purported 10-17% that the accounts utilizing the split-
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strike strategy reported. This rate of return is based on the IA Business AS/400 and/or company
books and records including portfolio management reports.

77. BLMIS prepared customer statements for non-split-strike conversion strategy
customer accounts that simulated engineered gains and losses through simulated one-off trades
(i.e., not basket trades as described above). The customer statements were based on selections of
stock and related prices using already published trading data in hindsight. Based on the analysis
of BLMIS books and records conducted, there was backdating. This analysis included the
reconstruction of timelines using time-stamped records or proxies of approximate time-stamps.

78. The non-split-strike conversion strategy customer accounts were handled on an
account-by-account basis, meaning each of the trades were keyed into the trading system
manually. Thousands of documents including customer statements, IA staff notes, account
folders, and programs in the AS/400 were reviewed, and these documents confirm the fact that
such statements were prepared on an account-by-account basis (i.e., not basket trading).

79. Consistent with the above, virtually none of the trades purportedly conducted on
behalf of the non-split strike conversion strategy account holders took place.

The Trading Did Not Occur

80. To the extent records are available, BLMIS did not act as a true investment
adviser in the interest of its customers and virtually no securities were purchased on behalf of
customers of the IA Business.

81. For select months pertaining to select baskets of trades that the IA Business
purportedly executed over time, ranging from 2002 to 2008, we compared basket files to the

customer statements and to third party sources.
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82. DTCC serves as a custodian for stock and government securities issued in the
United States. As part of FTI’s retention in this matter, transactions as recorded on BLMIS
customer statements were compared to both House 5 AS/400 settled trade data and BLMIS
DTCC records. The scope of this effort was limited to available DTCC records, and these
records were made available to us from February 2002 through the date of the November 2008
BLMIS customer statements, the last statements prepared by BLMIS prior to the Filing Date.

83. In addition to DTCC and the BLMIS bank records, a review of responses received
from various entities that may have information regarding possible IA Business option and
equity trading activity was performed. These entities consisted of clearing firms, exchanges, and
possible trading counterparties. The determination to request information from these parties was
based on evidence of BLMIS’s interaction with these organizations.

84. Specifically, a review of responses produced pursuant to subpoena, from the
following entities, was performed:

a)  Options Clearing Corporation (“OCC”)

b)  Clearstream Banking, S.A. (“Clearstream”)

c)  Chicago Board Options Exchange (“CBOE”)

d)  Chicago Mercantile Exchange/Chicago Board of Trade (“CME/CBOT”)
e)  BATS Exchange, Inc.

f) Knight Capital Group, Inc.

g)  Interactive Brokers, LLC

85. The purpose of the review was to determine whether any materials produced by
these entities were indicative of IA Business trading activity.
86. Akin to the role of DTCC for equities and government debt securities, the OCC

serves as the central clearing house for exchange traded options listed on a United States
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exchange. Because the Standard and Poor’s 100 Index Options (the “S&P 100 Index Options™)
are listed on the CBOE, these options would clear through OCC.

87. Trading records for several specific dates from the OCC pertaining to select
baskets of trades that the IA Business purportedly executed over time, ranging from 2002 to
2008, were obtained. The OCC records confirm that the mass volume and timing of S&P 100
options trades that would have been necessary to execute the split-strike conversion strategy that
the IA Business was purportedly utilizing, were not executed through OCC; and, this conclusion
was further supported by information from CBOE.

88. A review of subpoena responses received from the above listed entities for
evidence of the mass equity trade executions that would have been required to effectuate the
purported split-strike conversion strategy was performed. No evidence was found to support the
requisite mass trading.

89. BLMIS had purportedly told some of its investors that it purchased the index
options required to execute the split-strike conversion strategy in the OTC market. While this
was unlikely due to the costs that would have been associated therewith, there was no evidence
to support BLMIS’ claim of transacting in the OTC market such as executed International Swaps
& Derivatives Master Agreements (“ISDA”) between OTC counterparties.

90. In total, more than 99.9% of the equity trades as recorded in the IA Business
customer statements could not be traced through the House 5 settled trade data file or to DTCC
records.

91. The House 5 AS/400 settled trade data file is BLMIS’ system of record (i.e.,
corporate archive) for all House 5 trades that have settled. It is the source from which

productions of trade data were historically made to regulated entities for examination and review.
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92. Consistent with our findings as to the differences between the House 5 and House
17 AS/400 systems, the House 17 system does not include a “settled trade” data file. Instead,
House 17 maintained only a “settled cash™ data file. This file contains all [A customer account
activity, including alleged trades, deposits, withdrawals, and dividends

93. House 5 was also not used to execute transactions for any of the purported split-
strike conversion customer’s accounts, described herein.

94, No IA Business customers held legitimate equities in House 5 and/or DTCC as of
November 30, 2008. However, one customer was reported to hold bonds.

95. A relatively small amount of a single customer’s IA Business transactions were
similar to House 5 transactions, and there was evidence of directed trades. This customer sent
checks to BLMIS with memos on the checks directing the purchase of specific securities. FTI
did find similar securities purchased via the House 5 trading systems and at DTCC for this one
customer.

96. As described above, BLMIS customer statements listed the sale of Treasuries and
other money market funds to generate the cash required to purportedly purchase the basket
securities. Review of DTCC and third party bank records support neither BLMIS’s custody of
the securities, nor the funds that would have been required to purchase such basket securities.

97. In many instances, there were not enough put and/or call option contracts
available at the Chicago Board Options Exchange (“CBOE”) to hedge properly the required
volume, and in fact accomplish a split-strike conversion strategy, for the securities positions

recorded on the BLMIS customer statements.
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98. For example, in October 2002, BLMIS customer statements for 4,128 accounts
falsely report the sale of $17.9 billion of Treasuries and money market funds as the means to
purchase imaginary baskets of securities of similar value.

99. In October 2002, the 703 Account and related investments comprised less than
$240 million and none of the $240 million was used to purchase securities for the 4,128 split-
strike conversion account customers. See diagram annexed hereto as Exhibit 5.

100. The size of each imaginary “basket of securities and options” is staggering. For
example, for the October 11, 2002 basket, the volume of S&P 100 (“OEX™) options traded at the
CBOE was reviewed. On that date, CBOE reported OEX volume of 6,298 calls and 6,407 puts.
In contrast, BLMIS applied an imaginary basket to 279 accounts with a volume of 82,959 OEX
calls and 82,959 puts — more than approximately 13 times the CBOE volume. See chart annexed
hereto as Exhibit 6.

101. As an additional example, the aggregation of trades on customer statements
reflect an October 16, 2002 purchase of 17.8 million shares of Exxon Mobil (“XOM”) — these
purported aggregated trades for the BLMIS TA Business would have exceeded the XOM market
volume for that day by 131%. In contrast, DTCC records indicate the maximum BLMIS position
for XOM in October of 2002 was just 5,730 shares.

102. These are not isolated incidents. BLMIS customer statements routinely falsely
recorded millions and tens of millions of shares within imaginary baskets; however, DTCC
records indicated that BLMIS held thousands or perhaps tens of thousands of shares — shares that
are traceable to the House 5 business and not the IA Business, as Exhibit 7 annexed hereto,

1llustrates.
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103. Had these two basket trades of securities actually occurred, the massive volume of
the transactions printed to the BLMIS customer statements in aggregate would have almost
certainly had an impact on the market price of each such security, and in certain instances such
as the XOM example described above, may not have been possible due to sheer volume alone.

104. Over time the volume of the fiction grew. For example, the volume of Amgen
(AMGN) positions falsely reported on the November 30, 2008 customer statements would
amount to more than 3 times the daily exchange traded volume on the Filing Date, or any other
date in December of 2008 for that matter. Similarly, HP (HPQ) would be more than 2 times such
volume, and Microsoft (MSFT) would be more than 1.5 times such volume.

105. Just as BLMIS did not have the funds to purchase the fictitious baskets of
securities, it did not have the funds required to purchase the Treasuries listed on customer
statements as part of that strategy. For example, the October 2002 customer statements falsely
report a face value of $23 billion of Treasuries at the start of the month and $8.2 billion at the
end of the month. At this time, DTCC reports that BLMIS never held more than $84 million in
treasuries.

106. We identified many occurrences where purported trades were outside the
exchange’s low/high price range for the trade date. For example, in one instance a monthly
account statement for December 2006 reported a sale of Merck (MRK) with a settlement date of
December 28, 2006. BLMIS records reflect a trade date of December 22, 2006 at a price of
$44.61 for this transaction. However, the daily price range for Merck stock on December 22,

2006 was a low of $42.78 to a high of $43.42.
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I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated: October 16, 2009
New York, New York

21

/s/ Joseph Looby

Joseph Looby, CFE

Senior Managing Director

FTI Consulting, Inc

Three Times Square, 11™ Floor
New York, NY 10036
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JOSEPH H. LOOBY, J.D., C.F.E.
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EXPERIENCE
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EXPERIENCE

Senior Managing Director, FTI

J.D., Union University School of Law at Albany, New York
B.A. in Economics, Fordham University

Joe Looby is a senior managing director in FTI’s Technology
segment, delivering consulting expertise and advanced technology for
investigations, antitrust and complex litigation matters. He has
provided expert testimony and consulting on economic and
technology issues and appeared before regulatory agencies on diverse
technology matters.

Mr. Looby has spoken and written extensively on litigation
technology, electronic evidence and computer forensics, and he is a
contributing author and lecturer at the Sedona Conference, for projects
including: Search & Retrieval Sciences; and, Achieving Quality in E-
Discovery.

Joe has also participated in studies on search technology effectiveness,
sponsored by the National Institute of Standards and Technology
(NIST) and DOD Advanced Research and Development Activity
(ARDA).

Prior to joining FTI, Mr. Looby provided forensic technology
leadership to Deloitte’s National Audit Technology Steering
Committee, towards the detection of fraud in financial statement
audits; he trained a team of more than 50 forensic technologists and
accountants on the FASTech data interrogation approach; and, he led
Deloitte’s nationally deployed FASTech teams to perform forensic
procedures for high-risk billion-dollar market cap audit clients.

Mr. Looby is a former U.S. Navy JAG Lieutenant, an experienced
regulator, and published software developer.

Investigations & Antitrust — Technology: Leader of forensic and
technology teams on numerous highly confidential internal and
regulatory investigations. Responded to regulator, audit committee,
auditor and whistleblower concerns using forensics and technology,
including for example computer forensics, investigation of accounting
systems, and interviews of technology and business professionals.

Pharmaceutical — Electronic Evidence: Led a team that assisted an
international pharmaceutical company in response to a multibillion
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dollar class action, and regulatory investigation. The project involved
more than 60 custodian’s email and electronic files. Thousands of
DVDs and numerous external hard drives were indexed and compiled
into a comprehensive online review environment. FTI supported
multiple review teams, across 5 client offices located throughout the
EU and US. This engagement utilized advanced processing, review,
and production technologies including Attenex, Ringtail and FTI
proprietary software.

Services — Accounting Investigation: Led a team of forensic
accounting and technology experts for outside counsel to a large,
publicly-traded staffing company that was facing possible accounting,
control and compliance issues at its North American operations that
stalled the release of its financials. The company’s audit and finance
committee began an internal investigation into the issues while facing
investigations from the SEC and U.S. Attorney’s Office. FTI team
assessed and analyzed the company’s complex staffing management,
payment, and billing systems, including the largest PeopleSoft
implementation in the world. The team identified systems control
issues relating to shared computer IDs that turned out to be a chief
concern of the auditors.

Manufacturing — Lost Profits: Assisted defendant in a lawsuit
alleging breach of contract and lost profits. Assisted with the
discovery and analysis of financial data from plaintiff’s various global
accounting information systems. Tested the profitability of the product
group used by plaintiff's expert and determined that he relied on the
wrong one. ldentified the correct one and determined that it was an
unprofitable product line. This challenged plaintiff's claim for lost
profits, and the case was favorably settled.

Pharmaceutical — Licensing Dispute: Assisted with a multibillion
dollar pharmaceutical licensing dispute. The claim involved pricing,
incentives, market share, and 10 years of sales. The parties provided
35 CDs of contracts, nine sales databases, four customer databases and
two market share databases. Integrated the disparate data and built a
computer model. The computer model showed the timing and effect of
plaintiff’s improper practices. Before trial, plaintiff retracted each
claim that we were asked to test and respond to in our expert report.

Health Care — Employee Fraud: Engaged by an HMO to investigate
a key executive suspected of committing a fraud. We used computer
forensic technology to copy the suspect’s hard drives, restore deleted
files and search through e-mail and electronic files. Fraudulent
invoices, e-mail, deleted and other suspicious files were recovered.
Based on these leads, we designed tests to mine data and interrogate
the client’s financial systems. Through this process, we reduced the
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number of “questionable” vendors/payments from 5,000 vendors and
35,000 payments to 48 vendors and 345 payments.

Hospitality — Class Action: Investigated the client’s systems
regarding alleged failure to pay overtime for hours worked. Our
investigation revealed that overtime was tracked via monthly payroll
reports and the supporting documentation was largely handwritten
paper documents. We scanned and coded the documents, imported
them into a litigation database (LDB), and wrote a software program
to match payroll records to supporting documentation. Our client used
the LDB to show that a system to track overtime was in place,
significant overtime was in fact paid, and the named plaintiffs were
not representative of the larger putative class.

Advertising Firm — Fraud Detection: Investigated the client’s
purchasing system regarding an employee who allegedly colluded
with vendors to transfer charges between jobs. We determined the
employee’s transfer method, mapped seven years of archived data into
a LDB, wrote a software program to identify suspect invoices, and
pinpointed 220 (out of an original population of 85,000) invoices that
were fraudulent.

Food & Feed — SEC Investigation: Assisted with an investigation of
improper revenue recognition. We gathered six years of sales data
from disparate corporate systems, restored data from backup tapes and
built a data warehouse of over two billion records. Accounting staff
reconciled the data to financial statements filed with the SEC.
Technical staff designed complex algorithms to data mine the
warehouse and identify transactions not compliant with GAAP.
Economic staff statistically sampled and quantified the data as the
company’s basis for re-statement. Forensic staff imaged laptop
computers to restore deleted files and review e-mails.

Leasing — Purchase Price Dispute: Assisted an investment bank with
a purchase price dispute for its client, the seller of a three billion dollar
equipment leasing company. The seller relied on a proprietary
program to manage its portfolio of millions of leases. We wrote a
custom software program to convert the client’s data into a useable
format. We data mined the lease portfolio and rapidly identified an
anomalous cluster of high value leases that were written off with low
residual values. Our efforts uncovered a basis to restate millions of
dollars of value to the company.

Mining — Environmental Insurance Claim: Assisted a law firm with
an environmental insurance claim. The claim was based on coverage
for the client’s historic environmental events. The client had
completed a merger, and its information systems were transitioning
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from local to global operation. To prove the claim, we retrieved and
quantified three decades of environmental cost evidence from the
client’s existing and retired information systems and archives.

Health Care — Medical Claim Fraud: Engaged by a leading health
care provider to review medical claims to identify indicators of fraud
and abuse. The client’s claims data were reconcilable with its
management reports. We reconciled the data, imported it into our
system, and data mined for providers that met fraud and abuse
indicators. From the original 20,000 health care providers, we
identified 170 that were positive for the indicators. Without reviewing
“paper” claims, we identified suspicious claims in the one-half to
three million dollar range.

Manufacturing — Vendor Fraud: Investigated allegations by a
whistle-blower that a company’s purchasing officer was sending
business to preferred vendors for kickbacks. We retrieved four years
of vendor payment data and applied data mining to the vendor
payment transactions. We tested the data for anomalous vendor shifts,
product price spikes, and preferential payment terms. We identified
400 vendors that had been shifted to despite the fact that such vendors
charged a higher price for a generic product. We quantified the loss at
one million dollars over the four-year period.

Banking — Payment Tracing: Engaged by a foreign bank to assist
with a dispute over alleged interbank payments. Plaintiff’s expert
extracted financial communication (SWIFT) messages from back-up
tapes, matched the messages to payment requests, and quantified the
matched payments. We rebutted plaintiff’s expert report based upon
plaintiff’s unreliable matching method and its failure to consider data
that indicated whether a payment message had been rejected, pended,
failed or receipted.

Hoechst Celanese Corporation v. XL Insurance (Bermuda) Company
Ltd. (testified). Mr. Looby has also presented to regulatory agencies,
auditors and audit committees.

Achieving Quality in the E-Discovery Process, The Sedona
Conference, Contributor, May 2009.

What If Search Terms Only Find 50 Percent Of Relevant Documents?
Information Management, December 2008.

Best Practices on the Use of Search & Information Retrieval Methods
in E-Discovery, The Sedona Conference, Contributor, Fall 2007.
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System, Software and Method for Examining a Database in a Forensic
Accounting Environment, U.S. Patent 7,590,658, Co-Inventor.

VISTA, Copyright 1999-2000.

NYS Department of Environmental Conservation — General
Counsel’s Office (""DEC™). Enforcement Attorney, 4/1993 — 7/2000.

Designed and programmed VISTA, a software program used by
hundreds of professionals to track the detection and resolution of
environmental violations. The software includes business intelligence
components that enable managers to: estimate the resolution of case
backlogs, assure compliance with EPA enforcement policy, identify
trends in enforcement, and prioritize staff resources.

On a statewide basis, prosecuted CAA, CWA & RCRA (air, water and
solid waste) multi-media administrative enforcement actions.
Analyzed proposed enforcement settlements to ensure conformance
with applicable State and Federal enforcement response and penalty
assessment policies.

Lead counsel for CERCLA / Superfund efforts to recover natural
resource damages. Negotiated the recovery of more than twenty
million dollars in damages. Advised scientific staff on proof of harm
and economic staff on valuation of harm. Liaison with Federal
agencies and Tribal governments.

Represented DEC to the EPA Multi-Program Enforcement Steering
Committee and the Environmental Council of States’ Enforcement
Coordination Forum. Advised on enforcement indicators, penalties,
commitments, and targeting.

Presenter of numerous speeches to forums including the NYS Bar
Association, and the NYS Business Council. Authored an article for
the Albany Law School Environmental Outlook.

US Navy Judge Advocate General’s Corps (“JAG”). Lieutenant,
8/1989 -6/1993.

Served as general counsel for a US Navy Industrial Design,
Manufacture and Test Center. Negotiated with EPA on all aspects of
the center’s environmental compliance. Prosecuted / defended at
courts-martial and administrative discharge boards, investigated
incidents, and handled civil matters for Navy personnel.

1


jhaase
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1
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EXHIBIT 3

BERNARD L. MADOFF ' 212 230-2424
MADF| | INVESTMENT SECURITIES LLC 800 334-1343
885 Third Avenue New York, NY 10022 Fax 212 486-8178

TRADING AUTHORIZATION LIMITED TO PURCHASES
AND SALES OF SECURITIES AND OPTIONS

To Whom It May Concern:

The undersigned hereby authorizes Bernard L. Madoff (whose signature appears below) as his
agent and attorney in fact to buy, sell and trade in stocks, bonds, options and any other securities in
accordance with your terms and conditions for the undersigned's account and risk and in the
undersigned's name, or number on your books. The undersigned hereby agrees to indemnify and hold

you harmless from, and to pay you promptly on demand any and all losses arising therefrom or debit
balance due thereon.

In all such purchases, sales or trades you are authorized to follow the instructions of Bernard L.
Madoff in every respect concerning the undersigned's account with you; and he is authorized to act for
the undersigned and in the undersigned's behalf in the same manner and with the same force and
effect as the undersigned might or could do with respect to such purchases, sales or trades as well as
with respect to all other things necessary or incidental to the furtherance or conduct of such purchases,
sales or trades.  All purchases, sales or trades shall be executed strictly in accordance with the
established trading authorization directive.

The undersigned hereby ratifies and confirms any and all transactions with you heretofore or
hereafter made by the aforesaid agent or for the undersigned's account.

This authorization and indemnity is in addition to (and in no way limits or restricts) any rights

which you may have under any other agreement or agreements between the undersigned and your
firm.

This authorization and indemnity is also a continuing one and shall remain in full force and effect
until revoked by the undersigned by a written notice addressed to you and delivered to your office at
883 Third Avenue New York, NY. Such revocation shall not affect any liability in any way resulting from
transaction initiated prior to such revocation. This authorization and indemnity shall enure to the benefit
of your present firm and any successor firm or firms irrespective of any change or changes at any time
in the personnel thereof for any cause whatsoever, and of the assigns of your present firm or any
successor firm.

Dated, ;/i gloH

(J (State)

Very truly yours,

(Client Signature)

Signature of Authorized Agent: _%\

Affiliated with;
Madoff Securities International Limited
12 Berkeley Sireet, Mayfair, London W1J 8DT. Tel 020-7493 6222

- AMF00151195
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EXHIBIT 3

BERNARD L. MADOFF ' 212 230-2424

MADF| | INVESTMENT SECURITIES LLC 800 334.1343

885 Third Avenne New York, NY 10022 Fax 212 486-8178
OPTION AGREEMENT

In order to induce you to carry accounts ("Option Accounts") for me (however designated) for
transactions in option contracts (including, without limitations, purchase, sale, transfer and exercise)

("Option Transaction"), | hereby warrant, represent and agree with you as set forth below on this Option
Agreement.

1. I understand, and am well aware, that option trading may be speculative in nature. | am also
aware that on certain days, option trading may cease and this could result in a financial loss to
me. | agree to hold the company, its other divisions, and its officers, directors and agents
harmless for such loss.

2. I'understand that any option transaction made for any account of mine is subject to the rules,
regulations, customs and usages of The Options Clearing Corporation and of the registered
national securities exchange, national securities association, clearing organization or market
where such transaction was executed. | agree to abide by such rules, regulations, custom and
usages and | agree that, acting individually or in concert with others, | will not exceed any
applicable position or exercise limits imposed by such exchange, association, clearing
organization or other market with respect to option trading.

3. If | do not satisfy my transaction obligations on a timely basis, you are authorized in your sole
discretion and without notification, to take any and all steps you deem necessary to protect
yourself (for any reason) in connection with option transactions for my account including the
right to buy and/or sell for my account and risk any part or all of the shares represented by
options handled, purchased, sold for my account, or to buy for my account and risk any option
as you may deem necessary or appropriate. Any and all expenses or losses incurred in this
connection will be reimbursed by me.

4. In addition to the terms and conditions hereof, my option account will be subject to all of the
terms and conditions of all other agreements heretofore or hereafter at any time entered into
with you relating to the purchase and sale of securities except to the extent that such other
agreements are contrary to or inconsistent herewith.

Affiliated with:
Madoff Securities International Limited
12 Berkeley Street, Mayfair, London W1] 8DT. Tel 020-7493 6222
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DATED

’

r——_—_—————— EXHIBIT 3
L

;
!
|

This agreement}shali apply to all puts or calls which you may have executed, purchased, sold
or handled for any account of mine and also shall apply to all puts, or calls which you may
hereafter purchase, sell, handle or execute for any account of mine.

| have receivecfj from the company the most recent risk disclosure document entitied
"Characteristics' and Risks of Standardized Options". | have read and understand the
information contained in this document.

|
| understand that you assign exercise notices on a random basis. You may preferehtially assign
exercises of block-size (i.e. covering $1,000,000 or more of underlying securities) to block-size
writing positions and you may preferentially assign smaller exercises to smaller wri’:ting positions.
| understand that upon my request you will provide me with further information regarding the

procedure used to assign exercise notices.

account No_ | Dodd '-L:;?

SIGNATURES

!
|
]
.
i
:
|
|
i
l
i
i
i
‘

(1f a Corporation) (If Individuals)

’ I

By,

(Name of Corporation) |
jz
{

(Second Party if Joint Account)

Title

|
i

(If a Partnership)

(Name of Partnership)
SEAL

By

(A Partner)
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EXHIBIT 3
i [=—|BERNARD L. MADOFF ' 212 2309424

MADF| | INVESTMENT SECURITIES LLC 800 334-1343
885 Third Avenue New York, NY 10022 Fax 212 486-8178

CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

In consideration for you (the "Broker") opening or maintaining one or more accounts (the *Customer*), the Customer agrees to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement. The heading of each provision of the Agreemenit is for descriptive purposes only and shall not be deemed to modify or qualify any of the rights
or obligations set forth in each such provision. For purposes of this Agreement, "securities and other property" means, but is not limited to money, securities, financial

| instruments of every kind and nature and related contracts and options. This definition includes securities or other property currently or hereafter held, carried or maintained
i by you or by any of your affiliates, in your possession or contral, or in the possession or control of any such afﬁliatg, for any purpase, in and for any of my accounts now or
hereafter opened, including any account in which | may have an interest. , ‘ '

1. APPLICABLE RULES AND REGULATIONS
Al transactions in the Customer's Account shall be subject to the constitution, rules, regulations, customs and usages of the exchange or market, and its
clearing house, if any, where the transactions are executed by the Broker o its agents, including its subsidiaries and affiliates. Also, where applicable, the
transactions shall be subject (a) to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (b) to the rules and regulations of (1) the Securities

and Exchange Commission and (2) the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

2. AGREEMENT CONTAINS ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING/ASSIGNMENT
This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Customer and the Broker conceming the subject matter of this Agreement. Customer may not

assign The rights and obligations hereunder without first obtaining the prior written consent of the Broker.

| 3. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held o be invalid, void or unenforceable by reason of any law, rule, administrative order or judicial decision, that
determination shall not effect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

4. WAIVER

Except as specifically permitted in this Agreement, no provision of this Agreement can be, nor be deemed to be, waived, altered, modified or amended unless
such is agreed to in a writing signed by the broker.

5. DELIVERY OF SECURITIES
Without abrogating any of the Broker's rights under any other portion of this Agreement and subject to any indebtedness of the Customer to the Broker, the

Customer is entitied, upon appropriate demand, o receive physical delivery of fully paid securities in the Customer's Account.

|
|
6. SALES BY CUSTOMER
The Customer understands and agrees any order to sell "short" will be designated as such by the Customer, and that the Broker will mark the order as *short".

All other sell orders will be for securities owned (*long"), at that time, by the Customer by placing the order the Customer affimms that he will deliver the securities
)
| on or before the settlement date.

Affiliated with;
Madoff Securities International Limited
12 Berkeley Street, Mayfair, London W1J 8DT. Tel 020-7493 6222

- o
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EXHIBIT 3
| |
‘ “
|
7. BROKER AS AGENT 5 1
The customer understands that the Broker is acting as the Customer's agent, unless the Broker notifies the Customer, in writing before the settlement date for ‘
the transaction, that th‘;e Broker is acting as dealer for its own account or as agent for some other person.
8. CONFIRMATIONS AND STATEMENTS
Confirmations of transactions and statements for the Customer's Account(s) shall be binding upon the Customer if the Customer does noté object, in writing,
within ten days after receipt by the Customer.
x
9. SUCCESSORS
Customer hereby agrees that this Agreement and all the tems thereof shall be binding upon Customers heirs, executors, administrators, personal
representatives and aésigns. This Agreement shall ensure to the benefit of the Broker's present organization, and any successor organizat}on, imespective of
any change or change% at any time in the personnel thereof, for any cause whatsoever.
|
10. CHOICE OF LAWS i
THIS AGREEMENT .i‘:HALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE STATE OF /\}1, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED, AND
THE RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF THE PARTIES DETERMINED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
M
|
11. CAPACITY TO CONTRACTf, CUSTOMER AFFILIATION
By signing below, the'Customer, represents that he/she is of legal age, and that he/she is not an employee of any exchange, or of any corpo(raﬁon of which any
exchange owns a majority of the capital stock, or of a member of any exchange, or of @ member firm or member corporation registered on any exchange, of of a
bank, trust oompany; insurance company or of any corporation, firm or individual engaged in the business of dealing, either as broker‘or as principal, in
securities, bills of exchange, acceptances or other forms of commercial paper, and that the Customer will promptly notify the Broker in writing‘ if the Customer is
now or becomes so employed. The Customer also represents that no one except the Customer has an interest in the account or accounts of the Customer with
you. :
12. ARBITRATION DISCLOSURES
|
* ARBITRATION IS FINAL AND BINDING ON THE PARTIES.
|
* THE PARTIES ARE: WAIVING THEIR RIGHT TO SEEK REMEDIES IN COURT, INCLUDING THE RIGHT TO JURY TRIAL.
t
. PRE-ARBITRATIO& DISCOVERY 1S GENERALLY MORE LIMITED THAN AND DIFFERENT FROM COURT PROCEEDINGS.
| |
*THE ARBITRATOITRS AWARD IS NOT REQUIRED TO INCLUDE FACTUAL FINDINGS OR LEGAL REASONING AND ANY PARTY'S RVIGHT TO APPEAL
OR TO SEEK MODIQ’ICAT!ON OF RULINGS BY THE ARBITRATORS IS STRICTLY LIMITED.
!
* THE PANEL OF ARBITRATORS WILL TYPICALLY INCLUDE A MINORITY OF ARBITRATORS WHO WERE OR ARE AFFILIATED I
WITH THE SECURITIES INDUSTRY.
i
|
{
| ;
! [
e S 1' N
AMF00151199
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EXHIBIT 3

13. ARBITRATION

THE CUSTOMER AGREES, AND BY CARRYING AN ACCOUNT FOR THE CUSTOMER THE BROKER AGREES THAT ALL CONTROVERSIES WHICH
MAY ARISE BETWEEN US CONCERNING ANY TRANSACTION OR THE CONSTRUCTION, PERFORMANCE, OR BREACH OF THIS OR ANY OTHER
AGREEMENT BETWEEN US PERTAINING TO SECURITIES AND OTHER PROPERTY, WHETHER ENTERED INTO PRIOR, ON OR SUBSEQUENT TO
THE DATE HEREOF, SHALL BE DETERMINED BY ARBITRATION UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE FEDERAL
ARBITRATION ACT AND THE LAWS OF THE STATE DESIGNATED IN PARAGRAPH 10, BEFORE THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION, OR
AN ARBITRATION FACILITY PROVIDED BY ANY EXCHANGE OF WHICH THE BROKER IS A MEMBER, OR THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF
SECURITIES DEALERS, INC. AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RULES PERTAINING TO THE SELECTED ORGANIZATION. THE CUSTOMER MAY
ELECT IN THE FIRST INSTANCE WHETHER ARBITRATION SHALL BE BY THE AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION, OR BY AN EXCHANGE OR
SELF-REGULATORY ORGANIZATION OF WHICH THE BROKER IS A MEMBER, BUT IF THE CUSTOMER FAILS TO MAKE SUCH ELECTION, BY
REGISTERED LETTER ADDRESSED TO THE BROKER AT THE BROKER'S MAIN OFFICE, BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF TEN DAYS AFTER
RECEIPT OF A WRITTEN REQUEST FROM THE BROKER TO MAKE SUCH ELECTION, THEN THE BROKER MAY MAKE SUCH ELECTION, THE
AWARD OF THE ARBITRATORS, OR OF THE MAJORITY OF THEM SHALL BE FINAL, AND JUDGMENT UPON THE AWARD RENDERED MAY BE
ENTERED IN ANY COURT, STATE OR FEDERAL, HAVING JURISDICTION.

14. DISCLOSURES TO ISSUERS

Under rule 14b-1(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we are required to disclose to an issuer the name, address, and securities position of our customers

who are beneficial owners of that issuer's securities unless the customer objects. Therefore, please check one of the boxes below:
—Yes, | do object to the disclosure of information.

_yﬂo, 1 do not object to the disclosure of such information.

THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PRE-DISPUTE ARBITRATION CLAUSE AT PARAGRAPH 13.

w N m,g\
(Customer Signature/date) -

{Customer Signature/date)

| Apoq LL/B

{Account Number)

(Customer Address)

- AMF00151200
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EX. 4: Account Man AdJErs (active accounts only as of 11/30/08)
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EX. 5: Basket Trading — October 2002

WHAT HAPPENED AT BLMIS |I WHAT HAPPENED ELSEWHERE
AN A : 30 oo
/ / \ —— « IA “purchased [0
25 - mmoct 16 B 131%” of XOM By
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H Total 7,745,592,516  25,619,047,998  (17,873,455,482) | | I IR e
———————— "703" Account and Related |
Investments Ending Balances
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EX. 6: CBOE Options Reconciliation (10/11/02)

Call (420 Put (410Y

CBOE Volume
October 11, ZOOLZJ (Trade Date) M 61298 6,407

CHICAGO BOARD OPTIONS EXCHANGE

Participants in 1 1
BERNARD L. MADOFFi October 11, 2002 Basket Call (420 ) Put (410 )

MADF| [ INVESTMENT SECURITIES LLC
New York g London I Puts/Calls % of Volume % of Volume
# of each
1 1-FNO069 8,745 139% 136%
2 1-FNO70 8,363 133% 131%
3 1-FNO61 7,504 119% 117%
4 1-FROO8 4,124 65% 64%
5 1-C1260 3,250 52% 51%
6 1-FN094 2,703 43% 42%
7  1-FN095 2,610 41% 41%
8 1-FNO0O05 2,389 38% 37%
9 1-A0058 2,103 33% 33%
10 1-D0026 1,784 28% 28%
Remaining 269 Accounts 39,384 625% 615%

BLMIS BASKET TOTAL 82,959 1,317% 1,295%

1 This represents the strike price of the option



EX. 7/: DTCC Securities'Reconciliation (10/2002)

30 RalUCIN A1G
—-C citi \¢
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—— INJ  fohmonafohmon

20 -0 Costils
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Investment Advisor
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BLMIS™ -
************ Thousands of Shares -

DTCC
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/
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* These securities are traceable to the Market Making business, and not the Investment Advisory business.



UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION
CORPORATION,

Adv. Pro. No. 08-01789 (BRL)
Plaintiff,
SIPA Liquidation
V.
(Substantively Consolidated)
BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT
SECURITIES LLC,

Defendant.

In re:
BERNARD L. MADOFF,

Debtor.

DECLARATION OF BIK CHEEMA IN SUPPORT OF TRUSTEE’S MOTION FOR AN
ORDER UPHOLDING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION DENYING “CUSTOMER”
CLAIMS FOR AMOUNTS LISTED ON LAST CUSTOMER STATEMENT,
AFFIRMING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION OF NET EQUITY, AND EXPUNGING
THOSE OBJECTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE DETERMINATIONS RELATING
TO NET EQUITY

I, Bik Cheema, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, declare as follows:

1. I am an associate with Baker & Hostetler LLP (“BH”). I am member of the New
York Bar Association and the Southern District of New York, and am in good standing.

2. Baker & Hostetler LLP is counsel to Irving H. Picard, the Trustee appointed by
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York for the substantively
consolidated liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC (“BLMIS”), under the
Securities Investor Protection Act (“SIPA”), and for Bernard L. Madoff (“Madoff”).

3. On or about June 22, 2008, I began reviewing objections to determinations of

customer claims in this SIPA liquidation.



4. I make this declaration based upon the information and knowledge acquired
during the course of Baker & Hostetler LLP’s engagement as counsel to the Trustee, as described
herein.

Claims, Determinations and Objections

5. During the course of my engagement in this matter, I have personally reviewed
thousands of documents, including claims filed by customers, determination letters issued by the
Trustee in response to these claims, and objections filed by customers in response to the
Trustee’s determination of their claims.

6. As part of my review, I reviewed all objections received by the Trustee in
response to his determination of all timely filed claims. Most of the objections I reviewed had
more than one basis for objection, but for purposes of this motion, I have isolated the net equity’
objections which were then categorized as follows:

“Net Winners” - Under the parlance of this proceeding, a “net winner” is defined as a
BLMIS customer that withdrew more funds from BLMIS than the customer deposited with
BLMIS. Thus, the customer received payments constituting a full return of her principal
investment, plus some amount of fictitious “profits” generated by BLMIS. Although she has
already withdrawn all of her principal, along with some amount of fictitious profits (in reality,

funds deposited by other customers), the “net winner” customer who objects to the Trustee’s

' The statutory framework for the satisfaction of customer claims in a SIPA liquidation proceeding provides that
customers share pro rata in customer property to the extent of their “Net Equity,” as defined in section 78/l/(11) of
SIPA, and to the extent that a customer’s Net Equity exceeds his or her ratable share of customer property, SIPC
shall advance funds to the SIPA trustee up to $500,000 for securities for that customer. The Trustee has determined
each customer’s Net Equity by crediting the amount of cash deposited by the customer into her BLMIS account, less
any amounts withdrawn from her BLMIS customer account, otherwise known as the “cash in/cash out approach.”
Certain claimants disagree with the Trustee as to the construction of the term Net Equity and how that term should
be applied to determine the amount of the valid customer claim of each claimant. Various claimants have asserted
that Net Equity should be determined on the basis of each claimant’s balance as shown on their November 30, 2008
account statement provided by BLMIS.



methodology is claiming that she is due the fictitious amount fabricated on her final fake

November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statement.

“Net Losers” (over-the-limit) - Under the “cash in/cash out” approach, the customers that
fall within the category of “over-the-limits net losers that have received full SIPC protection” are
customers that withdrew less money from BLMIS than they deposited over time, and had net
investment amounts in excess of $500,000. They are entitled to an allowed claim for the amount
that they invested, less the amount that they have withdrawn from BLMIS. The difference
between the amount invested and the withdrawn amount over time is the customer’s Net Equity.
The customer has received or will receive a pro rata share of any customer property based upon
her Net Equity, and will receive a check from the Trustee of $500,000 from funds advanced by
SIPC against her share of customer property. Although the claims of these investors should be
based on their Net Equity as measured by the net amount invested, these claimants assert that the
amount of their Net Equity should be equal to the fictitious amounts represented on their final
fake November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statement. Some of these claimants also argue that

their claim for this last reported fictitious amount should be satisfied in securities and not cash.

“Net Losers” (under-the-limit) - Like the previous category, customers that fall within
this category also have allowable claims because they invested more over time than they
withdrew from the fraudulent scheme. The net investment amount is less than $500,000, so their
respective SIPC protection is limited to the amount of their respective net investment. They will
not be entitled to a further distribution from the fund of customer property because their Net

Equity claim will have been fully satisfied by the SIPC advance, and SIPC will receive the




customers’ share of customer property as subrogee. These customers’ respective final fake
November 30, 2008 BLMIS customer statements may, however, show a balance higher than

$500,000.

In connection with the investigation, I drafted a document entitled “Description of Net Equity
Claimants,” which serves as Exhibit A (“Exhibit A”) to the Trustee’s Motion for an order
upholding the Trustee’s determination denying customer claims for amounts listed on last
statement, affirming Trustee’s determination of net equity, and expunging those objections with
respect to the determinations relating to net equity.
Basis of Personal Knowledge

7. Specifically, in order to populate Exhibit A, I reviewed claims filed by claimants
who objected on the basis of the Trustee’s determination of net equity, reviewed the respective
determination letters issued by the Trustee, and reviewed the respective objections by claimants.

8. In order to perform my review, [ accessed and reviewed documents using PACER
in addition to files filed by customers with the Trustee pursuant to this Court’s Claims
Procedures Order, determination letters issued by the Trustee, and objections to those
determinations by claimants, filed with the Court.

0. The purpose of the review was to ascertain the number and details of each

objecting claimant on the basis of the Trustee’s determination of net equity.



I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated: New York, New York

October 16, 2009

BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP

By:/s/ Bik Cheema

Baker & Hostetler LLP

45 Rockefeller Plaza

New York, NY 10111
Telephone: (212) 589-4200
Facsimile: (212) 589-4201

Bik Cheema

Email: bcheema@bakerlaw.com

Attorneys for Irving H. Picard, Esq.,
Trustee for the Substantively Consolidated
SIPA Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff
Investment Securities LLC and Bernard L.
Madoff



Baker & Hostetler LLP

45 Rockefeller Plaza

New York, NY10111
Telephone: (212) 589-4200
Facsimile: (212) 589-4201
David J. Sheehan

Email: dsheehan@bakerlaw.com
Marc E. Hirschfield

Email: mhirschfield@bakerlaw.com
Seanna R. Brown

Email: sbrown@bakerlaw.com

Attorneys for Irving H. Picard, Esq., Trustee for the
Substantively Consolidated SIPA Liquidation of
Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC

and Bernard L. Madoff

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION
CORPORATION,

Plaintiff,
V.

BERNARD L. MADOFF INVESTMENT
SECURITIES LLC,

Defendant.

In re:
BERNARD L. MADOFF,

Debtor.

Adyv. Pro. No. 08-01789 (BRL)
SIPA Liquidation

(Substantively Consolidated)

DECLARATION OF SEANNA R. BROWN IN SUPPORT OF TRUSTEE’S
MOTION FOR AN ORDER UPHOLDING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION
DENYING “CUSTOMER” CLAIMS FOR AMOUNTS LISTED ON LAST
CUSTOMER STATEMENT, AFFIRMING TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATION
OF NET EQUITY, AND EXPUNGING THOSE OBJECTIONS WITH
RESPECT TO THE DETERMINATIONS RELATING TO NET EQUITY

300036428
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Seanna R. Brown, under penalty of perjury, declares the following to be true and correct:

1. I am a member of the Bar of this Court and an associate with the firm of Baker &
Hostetler, LLP, counsel for Irving Picard, Trustee for the SIPA liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff
Investment Securities LLC and Bernard L. Madoff. I submit this declaration in support of the
Trustee's motion (“Motion”) for an order upholding the Trustee’s determination denying
“customer” claims for amounts listed on last customer statements, affirming the Trustee’s
determination of net equity, and expunging those objections with respect to the determinations
relating to net equity.

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the Transcript of the Madoff Plea
Hearing held on June 29, 2009 in the United States District Court, Southern District of New
York, United States of America v. Bernard L. Madoff;, 09-cr-213 (DC).

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a copy of the Transcript of the DiPascali Plea
Hearing held on August 11, 2009 in the United States District Court, Southern District of New
York, United States of America v. Frank DiPascali; 09-cr-764 (RJS).

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a copy of the Brief For Appellants James W.
Giddens As Trustee For The Liquidation Of The Businesses of New Times Securities Services,
Inc. and New Age Financial Services, Inc. and Securities Investor Protection Corporation filed

on October 17, 2002 in the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, /n re New

300036428 2



Times Securities Services, Inc. and New Age Financial Services, Inc., Case No. 02-6166 (2d Cir.
2002).

Dated: New York, New York
October 16, 2009
s/Seanna R. Brown
BAKER & HOSTETLER LLP
45 Rockefeller Plaza
New York, New York 10111
(212) 589-4200 / Fax (212) 589-4201
David J. Sheehan
Email: dsheehan@bakerlaw.com
Marc E. Hirschfield
Email: mhirschfield@bakerlaw.com
Seanna R. Brown
Email: sbrown@bakerlaw.com

Attorneys for Defendant Irving H. Picard, Esq.,
Trustee for the Substantively Consolidated SIPA
Liquidation of Bernard L. Madoff Investment
Securities LLC and Bernard L. Madoff

300036428 3
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98B6DIP Plea

UNITED STATES DISTRICT;COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ONITED STATES OF AMERICA,
V. . 09 CR 764 (RJS)
FRANK DIPASCALTI,
Defendant.
______________________________ %

New York, N.Y.
August 11, 2009
3:15 p.m.

Before:
HON. RICHARD J. SULLIVAN,

District Judge

APPEARANCES

LEV L. DASSIN
United States Attorney for the
Southern District of New York
MARC LITT
LISA BARONTI
Assistant United States Attorney

BRACEWELL & GIULIANT
Attorneys for Defendant

MARC L. MUKASEY

CRAIG S. WARKOL

JAMIE RENNER

DANIEL S. CONNOLLY

Also Present:

Special Agent Keith D. Kelly
Special Agent Julia Hanish
Special Agent Steven Garfinkel
Natasha Ramesar, Pretrial Services

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300
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98B6DIP Plea

(In open court; case called)

THE DEPUTY CLERK: All parties can state their
appearances for the record, please.

MR. LITT: Good afternoon,‘your Honor. Marc Litt for
the United States. With me at counsel table is Lisa Baroni,
Keith Kelley of the FBI, Julia Hanish, and Steven Garfinkel of
the FBI, and Natasha Ramesar of the U.S. Pretrial Services
Office.

THE COURT: Good afternoon to each of you.

For the defense.

MR. MUKASEY: Good afternoon, your Honor. Marc Mukasey
from the law firm Bracewell & Giuliani for the defendant Frank
DiPascali, who is seated to my left. With me are Dan Connolly,
Craig Warkol, and Jamie Renner.

THE COURT: Good afternoon to each you and to Mr.
DiPascali.

Let me just get a little bit of background so it is
clear since this is the first appearance of anyone on this
case. On Friday I received a letter from the government, Mr.
Litt and Ms. Baroni, advising me that the defendant, Mr.
DiPascali, was prepared to waive the indictment and plead
guilty pursuant to an information in this case.

The government also included a notice of intent to
file an information as opposed to an indictment, as well as a

motion pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3771
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regarding the right of victims. The government also provided a
disclosure statement setting forth a list of potential victims
of the criminal activity alleged in the case. This statement
contained a 6l-page, single-spaced 1ist.bf victims which the
government conceded was not an exhausted or complete list but
was a list that they had been able to put together over the
course of the investigation.

Mr. Litt, so far so good?

MR. LITT: Yes. I believe it is only institutional
victims, corporate parties.

THE COURT: That's right. 61 pages of institutional
victims.

In light of this fact that this case has not been
assigned a docket number, it will not receive a docket number
today after the defendant formerly waives indictment and pleads
here in open court.

The government requested that I issue an order
directing that its letter of August 7th be posted and the other
materials I mentioned be posted on the web page created by the
U.S. Attorney's Office for Madoff related cases. 1In the
government's view this was the most practical and efficient way
to notify potential victims of today's proceeding. So I issued
such an order on Friday, August 7th.

Late yesterday afternoon I received a copies of a

proposed information, a plea agreement, as well as a letter
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from the government setting forth the bail conditions proposed
by the parties in this case. I ordered that the last of these
be posted similarly on the and U.S. Attorney's Office web page
page. The information and plea agreement wiil presumably be
posted today presuming the defendant waives indictment and
executes the agreement that I received a draft of yesterday.

To ensure at least some notice to the victims,
including those who may be present here today, I directed the
government to summarize and post on the web page the charges
contained in the information and the nature of the proposed
plea agreement between the parties.

So are there any other additional facts that I left
out, Mr. Litt?

MR. LITT: I don't believe so. No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, anything you think is
relevant to the record?

MR. MUKASEY: No, Judge. I think that is it.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, I understand that your client
wishes to plead guilty pursuant to the information that has
been drafted and provided to me, is that correct?

MR. MUKASEY: That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, before I accept your guilty
plea -- you can sit for the woment. Before I accept your
guilty plea, I am going to ask you certain questions to ensure

first of all that you are pleading guilty because you are
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guilty and not for some other. And also to make sure that you
fully understand your rights, your Constitution and statutory
rights, including your right to a trial.

So if at any point during the course of‘my questioning
you don't understand my question or require some further
elaboration on my part, let me know and I will do everything to
clarify. If at any point you wish to confer with Mr. Mukasey
or your other attorneys, that is perfectly fine. I will give
you as much time as I need. I don't want you to feel rushed
into a plea in this matter.

At this point I am going to ask Ms. Levine to
administer the oath. This is an oath that I ask you to rise
for. This is an oath that you will answer truthfully my
questions.

THE DEPUTY CLERK: Please raise your right hand.

(Defendant sworn)

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, having taken that oath, do
you understand that any false answers to my questions could
subject you to the penalties for perjury or for making a false
statement, which would carry separate penalties and be accept
and distinct from any of the crimes charged in the information
in this matter?

THE DEFENDANT: I do, your Honor.

THE COURT: Again, if at any point you wish to confer

with your attormeys before answering, that is fine. If at any
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point you would like me to clarify a question before answering,
that is also fine. 1In fact, you should do that. But don't
make any false statements because that will compound any
problems that you may already have. )

THE DEFENDANT: Understood.

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, could you state your full
name for the record?

THE DEFENDANT: Frank DiPascali, Jr.

THE COURT: How old are you, Mr. DiPascali?

THE DEFENDANT: 52.

THE COURT: How far you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT: High school.

THE COURT: Where was that?

THE DEFENDANT: Archbishop Malloy High School in
Briarwood, Queens.

THE COURT: Are you now or have you recently been
under the care of a doctor or a psychiatrist?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: Have you ever been treated for any type of
mental illness or any type of addiction, including drug or
alcohol addiction?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you taken any drugs or any medicine

or any pills or have you drunk any alcohol in the past 48

hours?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

98B6DIP Plea

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Tell me about that.

THE DEFENDANT: I had a glass of wine at dinner the
night before last. )

THE COURT: The night before last?

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct.

THE COURT: No medication, no pills, no drugs of any
kind?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: No other alcohol?

THE DEFENDANT: Correct.

THE COURT: Is your mind clear today?

THE DEFENDANT: Crystal clear, sir.

THE COURT: Do you under the nature of this proceeding
and what is going to take place here today?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, do you have any doubt as to
your client's mental competence to enter an informed plea at
this time?

MR. MUKASEY: None whatsoever.

THE COURT: Let me ask Mr. Litt and Ms. Baroni if they
share your confidence in that regard.

Mr. Litt?

MR. LITT: We do. We have no reason to think

otherwise.
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THE COURT: On the basis of Mr. DiPascali's responses
to my questions, my observations of his demeanor, and on the
representations of his counsel and the prosecutors, I find that
Mr. DiPascali is competent to enter an information plea at thig
time.

Now, Mr. DiPascali, as I understand it you wish to
plead guilty to an information, is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you had enough of an opportunity to
discuss this information and the charges contained in it with
your attorney, Mr. Mukasey?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with Mr. Mukasey's
representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Do you feel you need or require any
additional time to review the information or review any of the
other documents associated with this matter?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Now, have you received a copy of the
information that I've been referring to?

THE DEFENDANT: I have.

THE COURT: Have you read it yourself?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you discussed it with your attorney

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Mr. Mukasey?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you waive the public reading of that
information, or would you like me to read it to you here in
open court?

THE DEFENDANT: I would prefer it to be waived.

THE COURT: You will waive the public reading. That's
fine.

Now, do you have in front of you -- I don't know
whether you have the original in front of you -- a waiver of
indictment form?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Is that your signature on that document?

THE DEFENDANT: It is.

THE COURT: When did you sign that?

THE DEFENDANT: About 15 minutes ago.

THE COURT: Prior to signing that document had you
reviewed the information in this case and discussed it with
Mr. Mukasey?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, is your signature on that
form as well?

MR. MUKASEY: It is, Judge.

THE COURT: And prior to signing it, did you review

the information and discuss it with your client?
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MR. MUKASEY: Extensively.

THE COURT: Now, I want to make sure you understand,
Mr. DiPascali, that you have a right, a constitutional right,
to proceed by way of an indictment, which is a charging
instrument returned by a grand jury rather than an information,
which is simply a charging instrument brought by prosecutors.

Do you understand that?

THE COURT: I do. Under the Constitution you have a
right to have evidence underlying the crimes charged in the
information brought before the grand jury, which is a group of
23 citizens who would decide by majority vote whether probable
cause had been established to demonstrate that you had
committed the crimes charged in the charging instrument.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Only if the grand jury reached that
determination of probable cause by a majority vote with a
proper quorum of grand jurors present could those charges be
returned against you.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: By waiving indictment, you will be giving
up that right and you will be agreeing to go forward on the
charges contained in the information without ever having the

evidence brought before a grand jury.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

11

98B6DIP Plea

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you voluntarily and freely giving up
that right to proceed by a grand jury?

THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Now, I want to explain to you your other
constitutional rights. Have you had a chance to review with
your attorney, Mr. Mukasey, a three-page document probably
entitled Advice of Rights Form that should have been provided
to you by my chambers?

THE DEFENDANT : I have.

THE COURT: Is your signature on the second page of
that document?

THE DEFENDANT : It is.

THE COURT: Before you signed that document, did you
review it carefully with your attorney, Mr. Mukasey?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, we did.

THE COURT: Did you have an opportunity discuss with
him any questions you may have had or any further explanation
of the rights described in that document?

THE DEFENDANT: Thoroughly.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, did you sign the third page?

MR. MUKASEY: I did, Judge.

THE COURT: Before signing it, did you have a full and

extensive opportunity to discuss the rights described in that
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document with your client?

MR. MUKASEY: Yes.

THE COURT: I am going to mark that as a court
exhibit. I will mark it as Court Exhibit 1. I will date it
and I will initial it.

I am also going to ask you in open court, Mr.
DiPascali, some questions about the rights that are contained
in this document. The reason I do that is because these rights
are so vitally important and it is so essential that you
understand these rights because they are there rights that you
will would be waiving. In addition to this document, I want to
make sure you have had an ample opportunity to consider them so
I will ask you questions that may seem redundant but I think is
it a price worth paying for rights that are this serious.

Mr. DiPascali, under the Constitution and laws of the
United States, you would be entitled to a speedy and public
jury trial on the charges contained in the information.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: At trial you would be presumed to be
innocent and the government would be required to prove you
guilty by competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt before
you could be found guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: Now, at trial a jury of 12 people would
have to agree unanimously that you were guilty before you could
be found guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You would not have to prove that you were
innocent if you went to trial.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I understand.

THE COURT: The jury would have to be persuaded beyond
a reasonable doubt and they would have to be persuaded
unanimously of that fact before you could be found guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, at trial and at every stage of your
case, you would be entitled to be represented by an attorney
and if you couldn't afford an attorney, one would be appointed
for you at no cost to you.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: During a trial, the witnesses for the
government would have to come into court and testify in your
presence.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

14

98B6DIP Plea

THE COURT: It is called your right to confront your
accusers. It is the confrontation clause of the Constitution.
What that means is the witnesses would have to come and sit
right here or in a box like it if it were in a different
courtroom and you would be able to see them and hear them and
they would be able to see you.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: At trial your attorney Mr. Mukasey would
have an opportunity to cross-examine those witnesses.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I have seen him do it. He is really good
at it. You would have that opportunity.

THE DEFENDANT: That is why I sit next to him.

THE COURT: He would also have an opportunity to
object to the government's evidence if he wished and if he felt
appropriate.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: At trial you would have the right to have
subpoenas issued, or other compulsory process used to compel
witnesses to testify if you wished.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: If there are witnesses who you felt had
valuable testimony, valuable to your defense and they didn't
wish to testify, you could compel them to testify through
subpoenas.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: At trial you yourself would have the right
to testify if you chose.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Would you also have the right not to
testify if you chose not to testify. If you chose not to
testify then no one, particularly the jury, could draw any
negative inference or any suggestion of your guilt by virtue of
the fact that you chose not to testify.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I would tell the jury that more than once.
I tell them at the beginning and I would tell them in the
middle and at the end that this was a fundamental right and
principle of bedrock proportions in our constitutional system,
that the criminal defendant never has any obligation to do
anything at a trial. The burden also rests with the
government. So if a defendant were not to testify, they could

not and must not draw any negative inference against that
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witness by virtue of that nontestimony.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Now, do you understand that if you went to
trial and you were convicted at trial, you would then have a
right to appeal the jury's verdict if you wished.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, if you plead guilty and if I accept
your guilty plea, you will give up your right to a trial and
all the other rights I have just described.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: The only exception to that would be your
right to counsel. That right would continue through your plea,
through sentencing, and through appeal if you wished to appeal.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: But the other rights that I just described
and are described in the document that we talked about before,
Court Exhibit 1, those would be gone. You would be waiving
those.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand you have a right to

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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change your mind even now?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: There are a lot of people here, and your
lawyers are here, the government is here. That is well and
good but if you want to go to trial, you have a right to go to
trial and nobody will be upset with you and annoyed at you.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I understand, sir.

THE COURT: Do you nevertheless wish to go forward
with your guilty plea at this time?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, do you understand that if you plead
guilty and if I accept your guilty plea then you will be
sentenced on the basis of that guilty plea among other things;
do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand that if you plead
guilty, there will be no appeal on the question of whether or
not you committed the offenses to which you pled guilty; do you
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Do you also understand if you plead
guilty, I am going to ask you questions about what you did. I
am going to ask you basically to give up your right not to

incriminate yourself because I am going to need you to tell me
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what you did that makes you guilty of these crimes before I
will accept the plea; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I said a minute ago if you went to trial
you would have a right not to testify and that of course is
true. No negative inference could be drawn against you or
considered by the jury. If you are going to plead guilty then
I will need to be persuaded that you are pleading guilty
because you are guilty and not for some other reason. So that
is why I am going to ask you questions about what you did and
how that makes you guilty of the offense.

Do you understand?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand each and everyone of
these rights, Mr. DiPascali-?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Are you waiving your rights to a trial and
all the other rights I just mentioned?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now, the information that you have
indicated you've read charged you in 10 separate counts.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: I am not going to go through it in detail.

I am not going to read it. The first count charges you with

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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conspiracy to commit securities fraud, investment advisory
fraud, falsify books and records of a broker/dealer, falsify
books and records of an investment fund, mail fraud, wire
fraud, money laundering all in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 371-72.

Count Two charges you with a substantive count of
securities fraud violation of 15, United States Code, Section
787 (b), 78ff.

The third count charges you with investment adviser
fraud, in violation of Title 15, United States Code, Section
80b-6 and 80b-17.

The fourth count charges you with falsifying
broker/dealer books and records in violation of Title 15,
United States Code, Sections 78g(a) and 78ff as well as the
regulation that is promulgated thereafter 17, C.F.R., Section
240.17(a) (3) .

The fifth count charges you with falsifying investment
adviser books and records in violation of 15, United States
Code, Section 80(b) (4) and 80b-17 as well as a code section of
the C.F.R.

Count Six charges you with mail fraud in violation of
18, United States Code, Section 1341.

Count Seven charges you with wire fraud in violation
of Title 18, United States Code, 1343.

Count Eight charges you with money laundering in

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a) (2).

Count Nine charges you with perjury in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1621.

Count Ten charges you with income tax evasion in
violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201.

So those are the 10 counts.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: In addition the information contains two
forfeiture allegations. The first calls for you to forfeit all
property and proceeds deprived from the crimes charged in
Counts One, Two, Six and Seven for a total amount of $170
billion.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes I do.

THE COURT: Billion with a "B."

And the second forfeiture allegation charges or
contains an allegation which would call for you to forfeit all
the property derived from the money laundering count, Count
Eight. That is for a total amount of at least $250 million.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I am going to ask the government now to
state the elements of the offense. These are the things that

the government would have to prove and the jury would have to
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find beyond a reasonable doubt for you to be convicted on those
counts of the information. These are the things that I will
have to find have been demonstrated before I will accept the
guilty plea on those counts. So I want you to listen very
carefully as Mr. Litt or Ms. Baroni describes these elements.
It may take a while frankly. But it is essential that you
understand these elements.

I assume you have discussed the elements of these
offenses with your attorney Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: In detail.

THE COURT: So, mr. Litt, do you want to go through
the counts in the indictment and the elements? In the
information. I think I said indictment. Information.

MR. LITT: With respect to Count One conspiracy, in
order to prove the crime of conspiracy the government must
establish each of the following elements beyond a reasonable
doubt:

First, that the conspiracy charged in the
information existed. In other words, that there was in fact an
agreement or understanding to violate the law of the United
States;

Second, that the defendant knowingly, willingly,
and voluntarily became a member of the conspiracy charged;

Third, that any one of the co-conspirators

knowingly committed at least one overt act in the Southern
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District of New York in furtherance of the conspiracy during
the life of the conspiracy.

Ccount Two, securities fraud. In order to prove the
crime of securities fraud, the government must prove each of
the following beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that in connection with the purchase or
sale of a security the defendant did any one or more of the
following:

1: Employed a device, scheme or artifice to
defraud or,

2: Made an untrue statement of a material fact
or omitted to state a material fact which made what was said
under the circumstances misleading or,

3: Engaged in an act, practice, or course of
business that operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit
upon a purchaser or seller.

Second, that the defendant acted knowingly,
willfully, and with the intent to defraud; and,

Third, that the defendant knowingly used or
caused to be used any means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or the use of the mails in
furtherance of the fraudulent conduct.

Count Three, investment adviser fraud. In order to
prove the crime of investment adviser fraud, the government

must prove beyond a reasonable doubt the four following
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elements:

First, that the defendant was an investment
adviser;

Second, that the defendant either (A) employed a
device, scheme, or artifice to defraud clients and prospective
clients, (B) engaged in a transaction, practice, or course of
business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon those
clients and perspective clients, or (C) engaged in an act,
practice, and course of business that was fraudulent, deceptive
and manipulative;

Third, that the defendant devised or participated
in such allege device, scheme, or artifice to defraud, or
engaged in such alleged transaction, practice, or course of
business knowingly, willfully, and with the intent to defraud;

Fourth, that the defendant employed such alleged
device, scheme, or artifice to defraud or engaged in such
alleged transaction, practice, or course of business by use of
the mails or other instrumentality of interstate commerce.

Count Four, falsifying broker/dealer books and
records. In order to prove the crime of falsifying
broker/dealer books and records, the government must prove
beyond a reasonable doubt the following elements:

First, that at the time of the alleged offense,
Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities was a registered

broker/dealer;
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Second, that that company failed to make and keep
certain accurate records as required under the SEC's rules and
regulations;

Third, that the defendant aided and abetted the
failure of that company to make and keep accurate records; and

Fourth, that the defendant acted knowingly and
willfully.

Count Five, falsifying books and records of an
investment adviser. In order to prove this crime, the
government must prove beyond a reasonable doubt each of the
following:

First, that at the time of the alleged offense,
the Madoff firm was an investment adviser;

Second, that the firm failed to make and keep
certain accurate records as required under the SEC's rules and
regulations;

Third, that the defendant aided and abetted the
failure of the firm to make and keep accurate records;

Fourth, that the defendant acted knowingly and
willfully;

Fifth, that the offense involved the use of the
mails and means of instrumentalities of interstate commerce.

In order to prove Count Six, mail fraud, the
government must establish beyond a reasonable doubt each of the

following:
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First, that on or about the time alleged in the
information, there was a scheme or artifice to defraud in order
to obtain money or property by false and fraudulent pretenses,
repfésentations, Oor promises;

Second, that the false or fraudulent statements
and representations concerned material facts;

Third, that the defendant knowingly and willfully
devised or participated in the scheme or artifice to defraud
with knowledge of its fraudulent nature and with specific
intent to defraud;

Fourth, that the United States mails or a
commercial carrier were used in furtherance of the scheme
specified in the information.

In order to prove the crime of wire fraud, Count
Seven, the government must establish beyond a reasonable doubt
the following four elements:

First, that at or about the time alleged in the
information, it was a scheme or artifice to defraud in order to
obtain money or property by false and fraudulent pretenses,
representationg, or promises;

Second, that the false or fraudulent statements
and representations concerned material facts;

Third, that the defendant knowingly and willfully
devised or participated in the scheme or artifice to defraud

with knowledge of its fraudulent nature and with specific
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intent to defraud; and

Fourth, that interstate or foreign wire
facilities were used in furtherance of the scheme to defraud
and specified in the information.

In order to prove the crime of unlawful transportation
of funds or monetary instruments with the intent to promote the
carrying on of a specified unlawful activity --

THE COURT: This is what we are referring to as the
money laundering count?

MR. LITT: Count Eight, money laundering count, the
government must establish the following elements:

First, that the defendant transported a monetary
instrument or funds from a place in the United States to or
through a place outside the United States, or to a place in the
United States from or through a place outside of the United
States;

Second, that the defendant did so with the intent
promote the carrying on specified unlawful activity.

In order to prove Count Nine, perjury, the government
must prove beyond a reasonable doubt each of the following
elements:

First, that the defendant took an oath to testify
truly before the Securities and Exchange Commission, a body
authored by law to administer oaths;

Second, that the defendant made false statements

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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as to matters about which the defendant testified under oath
and set forth in the information;

Third, that the matters as to which it is charged
that the deféhdant made false statements were material to the
issues under inquiry by the Securities and Exchange Commission;
and

Fourth, that such false statements were willfully
made.

To prove the offense of the attempting to evade or
defeat a tax or the payment thereof, which is Count Ten, the
government must prove the following elements:

First, that the defendant attempted to evade or
defeat a tax;

Second, that additional taxes were due and owing
by the defendant;

Third, that the defendant acted knowingly and
willfully.

I should point out that there are aiding and abetting
charges as well with respect to the substantive counts set
forth in Counts Two through Eight. So if the defendant caused
or aided and abetted another in committing any of those crimes,
he would be guilty as if a principal.

THE COURT: I think I may have neglected to mention
the aiding and abetting counts.

You understand, Mr. DiPascali, in addition to the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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substantive crimes charged after the conspiracy count, Counts
Two through 10, some of those, most of those also charge aiding
and abetting so that even if you didn't commit the crime, it is
alleged that you ;ided and abetted others to commit the crime
and so each of the elements would have to be met for aiding and
abetting; all right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you understand those are the elements
of the offenses?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: It took a long time but is that consistent
with what you discussed with your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, do you agree those are the
elements to the offenses in the information?

MR. MUKASEY: I do, Judge.

THE COURT: I want to go over with you, Mr. DiPascali,
the maximum penalties you face for each of these offenses.
Count One, the conspiracy count, carries a maximum term of
imprisonment of five years, a maximum term of supervised
release of three years, a maximum fine of the greatest of
either $250,000, or twice the gross pecuniary or financial loss
to persons, other than yourself, resulting from the offense, or
twice the gross pecuniary gain derived from the offense,

whichever is greatest of those three alternatives is the
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maximum fine. In addition as part of your sentence, I can
order restitution be paid to any victims and I can also order
that you forfeit the proceeds or least -- Count One carries at
least part of the foréeiture allegation, right?

MR. LITT: Yes.

THE COURT: In addition, Count One carries a mandatory
special assessment of $100. That is in addition to any fine or
forfeiture or restitution.

Count Two, which is the securities fraud count,
carries a maximum term of imprisonment of 20 years, a maximum
term of supervised release of three years, a maximum fine of
the greatest of $5 million, or twice the gross gain or twice
the gross loss as I previously described those things so
whichever is greatest of those three, as well as restitution
and forfeiture and $100 special assessment. The 100-dollar
special assessment would be mandatory.

Count Three, which is the investment adviser fraud
count, carries a maximum term of imprisonment of five years, a
maximum term of supervised release of three years, a maximum
fine of the greatest of either $250,000, or twice the gross
pecuniary gain deprived from the offense or twice the gross
pecuniary loss to persons, other than yourself, as well as
restitution to any persons injured by this conduct, and a
mandatory special assessment of $100.

Count Four, which is falsifying books and records of a
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broker/dealer carries a maximum term of imprisonment of 20
years, a maximum term of supervised release of three years, a
maximum fine again of the greatest $5 million, or twice the
gross gain or twice the grgss loss to persons, other than
yourself, from the offense, as well as restitution, and again a
mandatory special assessment of $100.

Counts Five, which is falsifying books and records of
an investment adviser carries a maximum term of imprisonment of
five years, a maximum term of supervised release of three
years, a maximum fine of the greatest of $10,000, or twice the
gross gain derived from the offense, or twice gross pecuniary
loss to persons, other than yourself, resulting from offense,
as well as restitution and again a $100 special assessment.

Count Six is the mail fraud count. It carries a
maximum term of imprisonment of 20 years, a maximum term of
supervised release of three years, a maximum fine of $250,000,
or twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, as well as
restitution, and a mandatory special assessment of $100.

County Seven, wire fraud, carries similar penalties.
Again, a 20-year maximum term of imprisonment, a three-year
term of supervised release, a maximum fine of the greatest of
250,000, or twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss to
persons, other than yourself, as well as a potential for
restitution to any victims, and a $100 special assessment.

Count Eight, which is a money laundering count,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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carries a maximum term of imprisonment of five years, a maximum
term of supervised release of three years, a maximum fine of
the greatest of $500,000, or twice the gross gain or twice the
gloss loss resulting from the éffense, as well as restitution
to any victims, and a mandatory special assessment of $100.

Count Nine carries a maximum term of imprisonment of
five years, the perjury count, a maximum term of supervised
release of three years, a maximum fine of the greatest of
$250,000, or twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, and
a mandatory special assessment of $100.

Count Ten, which is the tax evasion count, carries a
maximum term of imprisonment five years, a maximum term of
supervised of three years, a maximum fine of the greatest of
$250,000, or twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss,
whichever is the greatest, as well as restitution, and a
mandatory special assessment of $100.

Do you understand those are the maximum penalties?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Litt, something you wanted to add?
Did I misstate something?

MR. LITT: Your Honor, with respect to Count Six,
Seven, and Eight, mail fraud, wire fraud, and money laundering,
forfeiture is also a possible penalty.

THE COURT: Yes. 1 was going to mention the

forfeiture. I thought I did with respect to the individual
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counts. Understand for those counts for which the forfeiture
allegation as been set forth in the information, in addition to
any fine, in addition to any restitution, in addition to any
mandatory special assessment you cohld also be ordered to
forfeit any of the proceeds from the offense.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: The maximum possible penalties combined
would be a maximum term of imprisonment of 125 years.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: The maximum special assessment, when you
collectively add up would be $1,000, as well as the fines and
everything else I mentioned.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you a United States citizen, Mr.
DiPascali?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand as a result of your
conviction, you could lose certain valuable civil rights,
including your right to hold public office, your right to serve
on a jury, your right to vote, and your right to possess any
kind of firearm; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: Now, are you serving any other sentences
to day, state, federal or local at this time?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Now, with respect éo supervised release,
you should be aware that there are terms and conditions
associated with supervised release. If you were to violate the
terms of your supervised release, you then could be returned to
prison for the full period of your supervised release and you
would not get any credit for the good time on which you are on
supervised release.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: I will give an illustration because it is
not always clear. If I sentenced you to a term of imprisonment
and then sentenced you to five years of supervised -- three
years of supervised release, we will say, three years. What
that means is after you have finished your prison sentence, you
will be released and you would be supervised by the Probation
Department. There will be conditions associated with your
supervigion including, among other things, that you not commit
any further crimes, you not possess a firearm, you not use or
possess any kinds of drugs, among other things.

Well, if for 35 months you were perfect, you did
everything you were asked to do and then in the 36th month, the

last month of supervised release you committed another crime,
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or you possessed a firearm illegally, well, then I could
violate your supervised release and I could return you to
prison for three full years, the full term of supervised
release even though for 35 out of 36 months.you were perfect.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Do you understand that parole has been
abolished so you would not be released from prison any earlier
as a result of parole?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Parole doesn't exist in the federal
system. It exists in certain state systems, including New York
State. It used to exist in the federal system and what that
meant typically is a judge would impose a sentence usually of
an indeterminate nature, five to 10 years, and someone else, a
parole board typically, would determine when would be the
appropriate time for the defendant to be released depending on
whether or not they had been rehabilitated or are ready to
resume life in the community. That is not a part of this
federal system. So whatever sentence I impose is the sentence
you will serve.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I &o.

THE COURT: The only exception to that is that you

could receive up to 15 percent off for good behavior. That
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would be a determination made by Bureau of Prisons and it would
be no more than 15 percent of the sentence imposed.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: I want to go over a few other things with
sentencing. First of all, in terming what your sentence will
be, that is a decision for me to make.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: For the Court and no one else.

So whatever your attorneys may have told you, whatever
the government may have told you, whatever any one else may
have told you, that is not binding on me.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: I will determine what is the appropriate
sentence after reviewing the presentence report, after
reviewing submissions made by you if you wish, made by the
government, made by the victims of the offenses.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Only then will I decide what is the
appropriate sentence.

Now, I also want to go over with you the current state

of the law. Under the law I am required to consider certain
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factors before imposing sentence. I will tell you quite
candidly even if I weren't required to consider these things, I
would consider them. These are the factors that I think any
civilized society would take into account in imposiné a
sentence on another human being.

Those things include, among other things, your own
personal history and background. It also includes obviously
the nature and circumstances of the offenses to which you have
offered to plea guilty. It includes the need for me to impose
a sentence that reflects the seriousness of the offenses and
the need to promote respect for the law.

Another objective for sentencing is deterrence, that
is both general and specific deterrence. I would be obliged to
fashion a sentence that prevents you from committing crimes of
this sort or any other sort in the future and that also would
have the effect of deterring others who might consider engaging
in this kind of criminal conduct to think twice, general
deterrence.

I would consider your own needs, your own
rehabilitative needs, your own medical needs, your own
educational needs, those things. For you and for any defendant
who comes before me I would consider those things before
imposing a sentence.

I would also consider the needs of the victims of

these crimes to receive restitution. That is obviously an
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important factor that would have to be considered in imposing a

sentence.

T would also consider the United States Sentencing
Guidelines. Are you familiar with the Sentencing Guidelihes,
Mr. DiPascali?

THE DEFENDANT: I am.

THE COURT: You have discussed those with your
attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: In detail.

THE COURT: I am not going to go over them in great
detail. The United States Sentencing Guidelines are a big
book. A new edition comes out each year. This year's version
is about 600 pages long. I am not going to go into it in any
kind of detail. What these guidelines attempt to do is provide
objectives and transparent criteria by which an individual and
the criminal conduct that an individual engaged in can be
evaluated.

These guidelines are advisory. They are not binding
on me. I am not required to follow them. I am required to
consider them and I will consider them. What they essentially
do is that for each crime or type of crime, they provide a
framework to assess the seriousness of that crime. There are
two calculations that are done. First, is a offense level
calculation. For financial frauds, for example, the

calculation would focus on the amount of loss involved, the
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number of victims, the nature of the offense. 2And for each of
those factors, it would be numerical value ascribed. And so in
calculating these things, the Court would basically do math and
come up with a number, which would be the offense level. )

In addition there is a separate calculation for
criminal history category and so not surprisingly a person
engaged in other criminal conduct who has prior convictions and
prior sentences would be treated more seriously and would get
more criminal history points than someone who has no criminal
history. On the basis of those two calculations, offense level
on the one hand and criminal history category on the other, the
guidelines comes up with a range in terms of months which in
the view of the Commission that prepares these guidelines would
be appropriate in the ordinary case.

So as I said I will consider those calculations, I
will make calculations, and I will certainly consider the range
that is provided for and proposed by these guidelines. At the
end of the day, ultimately I don't have to follow them and I am
free to go higher or lower as I see fit.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Finally, I want to make sure that you
understand whatever sentence I impose no matter how unhappy you
may be with it, you will not be entitled to withdraw your

guilty plea at that point and go forward with the trial.
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Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: You will be entitled to your opinion that
I got it wrong or I was too harsh, but you would not be able to
say I would like to turn the clock back to August 11th and go
to trial now because that option will have gone.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: I understand there is a plea agreement in
this case, is that correct?

MR. MUKASEY: That's correct.

MR. LITT: Yes.

THE COURT: Is the original with you, Mr. Mukasey?

MR. MUKASEY: It is, your Honor.

THE COURT: You can keep that there for the moment. I
received a draft. I have not received an executed or signed
copy. Let me make sure it is the same as what you have. Bear
with me for a second.

(Pause)

It is an August 11th letter. It is a seven-paged,
single-spaced letter. It is from the government, Ms. Baroni
and Mr. Litt, to Mr. Mukasey, your attorney.

Do you have a copy of this in front you, or the
original in front of you?

THE DEFENDANT: I have the original.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

98B6DIP

THE

THE

THE

THE

THE

40
Plea

COURT: Is your signature on the last page?
DEFENDANT: It is.

COURT: When did you sign it?

DEFENDANT: 35 minutes ago.

COURT: Before you signed it, did you have an

opportunity to read this agreement?

THE

THE

DEFENDANT: In detail.

COURT: Did you have an opportunity discuss it

with Mr. Mukasey in detail?

THE

THE

DEFENDANT: We have.

COURT: Do you require any additional time to

review this agreement?

THE
THE
last page as
MR.
THE
agreement in
MR.
THE
over this in

seven-paged,

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

COURT: Mr. Mukasey, is that your signature on the
well?

MUKASEY: It is, Judge.

COURT: Before you signed it, did you review this
detail with your client?

MUKASEY: Yes, we did.

COURT: Now, Mr. DiPascali, I am not going to go
tremendous detail because as I said it is a

single-spaced letter. I want to make sure you

understand the nature of this agreement. This agreement is

what is known as cooperation agreement.

Is that your understanding?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: By this agreement you have agreed to
cooperate with the government and to take on certain
obligations that are set forth in this agreement.

Is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: The government has agreed if you provide
substantial assistance, well, they will make a motion to the
Court to apprise me of that assistance, which would then allow
me for sentence you below the Sentencing Guidelines. So that
is essence what the agreement is.

Is that your understanding?

THE DEFENDANT: Exactly, sir.

THE COURT: Is there any other agreement that you have
besides this one, besides this August 11th agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Is there any other oral agreement or any
side agreement that exists beyond the confines of these seven
pages?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Has anybody attempted to threaten you or
induce you or otherwise persuade you to plead guilty to the
charges contained in the information or to accept and sign this
plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: You signed it of your own free will and
voluntarily?

THE DEFENDANT: I have.

THE COURT: ©Now, I want to make sure you understand if
the government decides that you provided substantial
assistance -- as I say they can make this motion -- I am not
required to follow it and I will still ultimately decide what
is the proper sentence.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Now, if the government decides that you
did not provide substantial assistance, then that may limit my
ability to sentence you below the guidelines. As I said the
guidelines are just advisory so it ultimately wouldn't bar me
from doing so. There was a time when it would have, but it
wouldn't today. Certainly the government has the exclusive
right to decide whether or not you provided substantial
assistance under this agreement.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, are you aware of any of valid
defense that would apply as a matter of law or any other reason
why your client should not be allowed to enter a plea at this
time?

MR. MUKASEY: No, Judge.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: Now, at this point I am going to ask you
to stand, Mr. DiPascali. I want you to tell me in your own
words what it is that you did that makes you guilty of the
offense -- excuse me -- the offenses charged in the
information. So sgince there are 10 counts, this may take a
while. I am not sure if you discussed with your lawyer how is

the best way to do this, either count by count or groups of

counts.

Mr. Mukasey, do you have a view?

MR. MUKASEY: Judge, we have we have worked together
to prepare a statement that I think covers all the counts. T

think we can have Mr. DiPascali read it if that is okay with
the Court. I think that he will hit all the elements of all
the counts. If you would like he can advise the Court of the
counts that he is about to discuss if that is helps focus the
Court.

THE COURT: Whatever you think is most appropriate.
There is nothing wrong with reading a statement, Mr. DiPascali,
as long as they are really your words. It is not usual a
defendant in your position would work with their attorney to
prepare a statement that would be their allocution to crimes
charged in the information. But it is important that they be
your words and that is something you are just reciting or
reading.

I may ask you some questions or interrupt along the
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way. If you have a statement, why don't we start with that and
we will see if it is necessary to follow up in certain areas.

MR. MUKASEY: May I have one moment?

THE COURT: Yes.

While you are conferring if you could hand to
Ms. Levine the plea agreement, I will mark that as a court
exhibit. I will mark that as Court Exhibit 2. I will initial
and date it as well.

(Pause)

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, are you ready?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I am.

THE COURT: Let me ask you to read slowly so the court
reporter can get it down. We have very good court reporters,
probably the best in the world, but there are limits to what 10
fingers can do. I frequently speak too quickly and they are
too polite to remind me, but I will remind you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, your Honor.

I am standing here today to say that from the early
1990s until December of 2008 I helped Bernie Madoff, and other
people, carry out the fraud that hurt thousands of people. I
am guilty and I want to explain a little bit about what I did
and how I want everybody everyone to know that I take
responsibility for my conduct.

Judge, I started working for Bernard Madoff Investment

Securities in 1975 right after a graduated from high school. I
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was a kid from Queens. I didn't have a college degree. I
didn't know anything about Wall Street. I ended up spending
the next 30 years working for Bernie Madoff and his firm until
December 11th, 2008.

Over the first 15 or so years at the Madoff firm, I
had a bunch of different jobs. I worked a research analyst,
and options trader, and a guy who basically did whatever I was
told to do around the office.

In 1987 I helped move our firm from the office at 110

Wall Street to our new office at 885 Third Avenue. Eventually

‘Bernie Madoff's investment advisory business, which managed

client accounts, took space on the 17th floor of 885 Third
Avenue and I became sort of a supervisor of that floor.

During that first 15 or so years, I watched Bernie
Madoff and other people at the firm. I learned how the
securities industry worked, or at least how it worked in the
Madoff universe. I thought I worked for a prestigious and
successful securities firm.

By 1990 or so Bernie Madoff was a mentor to me and a
lot more. I was loyal to him. I ended up being loyal to a
terrible, terrible fault. By the early 1990s Bernie Madoff had
stable clients whose accounts he managed as an investment
adviser. He attracted a lot of these clients by telling them
that the firm would apply a hedged investment strategy to their

money. The clients were told that the strategy involved
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purchasing what we call basket of blue chip common stocks.
Hedging those investments by buying and selling option
contracts, getting in and out of the market at opportune times
and investing in government securities at other times.

By 2008 Bernie Madoff had thousands of clients who
believed their funds were being invested this way. For years I
was a main point of contact for many of those clients when they
had questions about their account.

From at least the early 1990s through December of
2008, there was one simple fact that Bernie Madoff knew, that I
knew, and that other people knew but that we never told the
clients nor did we tell the regulators like the SEC. No
purchases of sales of securities were actually taking place in
their accounts. It was all fake. It was all fictitious. It
was wrong and I knew it was wrong at the time, sir.

THE COURT: When did you realize that?

THE DEFENDANT: In the late '80s or early '90s.

I would 1like to address some of the counts in the
information. Regarding Count One, conspiracy; Count Two,
securities fraud; and Count Three, investment adviser fraud.

From our office in Manhattan at Bernie Madoff's
direction, and together with others, I represented to hundreds,
if not thousands, of clients that security trades were being
placed in their accounts when in fact no trades were taking

place at all.
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THE COURT: How did you do that? Through documents or
through oral communications?

THE DEFENDANT: Both.

THE COURT: Both.

THE DEFENDANT: Most of the time the clients' money
just simply went into a bank account in New York that Bernie
Madoff controlled. Between the early '90s and December '08 at
Bernie Madoff's direction, and together with others, I did
follow things: On a regular basis I told clients over the
phones and using wires that transactions on national securities
exchanges were taking place in their account when I knew that
no such transactions were indeed taking place. 1 also took
steps to conceal from clients, from the SEC, and from auditors
the fact that no actual security trades were taking place and
to perpetuate the illusion that they actually were.

On a regular basis I used hindsight to file historical
prices on stocks then I used those prices to post purchase of
sales to customer accounts as if they had been executed in
realtime. On a regular basis I added fictitious trade data to
account statements of certain clients to reflect the specific
rate of earn return that Bernie Madoff had directed for that
client.

Regarding Count Six, mail fraud, on a regular basis I
caused the U.S. mail to be used to send fraudulent account

statements to clients from our office in Manhattan. The
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account statements listed security transactions that had
supposedly taken place in the client accounts, although I knew
that no such transactions had indeed taken place. For example,
in December of 2008, I caused fake accounts statements to be
mailed from the Madoff firm to a client in Manhattan.

Regarding the wire fraud, or Count Seven, on a regular
basis I caused money to be wired from bank accounts in that New
York to bank accounts in London, and other places abroad. For
example, in March of '07 I caused about $14 million to be sent
by wire from a bank account in London to a bank account in New
York in furtherance of this fraudulent scheme.

THE COURT: How did it further this scheme?

THE DEFENDANT: Bernie Madoff was trying to present
the scenario, Judge, to regulators and others that he was
earning commission income on these fictitious trades in order
to substantiate the ruse. He had me wire funds -- excuse me.
He had our London office wire funds to New York that
represented the theoretical amount of those commissioned
incomes, had the regulators come in and added up all the
tickets, if you will, to see our customer commissions. And in
the example I cited in that particular instance, we would have
had we actually done those trades earned $14 million in
commission income. So he had the London office wire to the New
York office a figure of about $14 million.

THE COURT: What was your role in connection with

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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those wire transfers?

THE DEFENDANT: I calculated the theoretical
commissions and advised the London office where to send the
money .

On Count Eight, sir, international money laundering,
between 2002 and 2008, I caused money to be wired from a Madoff
firm bank account in New York to a Madoff account in London,
which again was used to continue this fraud. I participated in
falsifying documents that were required to be made and kept
accurately under the SEC rules and regulations, including
ledgers, trade blotters, customer statements, and trade
confirmations.

On Count Four and five, falsifying broker/dealer books
and records and falsifying investment adviser books and
records, between 2004 and 2008 the firm was a registered
broker/dealer. Between September '06 and December '08 when the
firm was also a registered as an investment adviser, it was
required to make accurate books and records under the SEC
rules. In January of '06, together with others, I used data
from the Internet to create fake trade blotters that were made
and kept and produced for the SEC.

In April of '08, together with others, I caused fake
trade blotters, ledgers, and other books and records to be made
and kept by the firm.

In order to discuss Count Nine, which is perjury, on

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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January 26, 2006, at Bernie Madoff's direction I lied to the
SEC during testimony I gave under oath in Manhattan about the
activities of the Madoff firm. My false testimony is set out
in Paragraph 61 of the information.

I did all of these fraudulent activities, your Honor,
in Manhattan.

THE COURT: Let me ask you about the perjury count.
There is a number of specifications of false statements, eight,
in particular with an underlying portions which I gather are
the false or allegedly false statements. Is your statement
here today that the underlying portions set forth in pages 41
through 43 were in fact false statements?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: At the time you uttered these
statements -- this is a transcript of your testimony, is that
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: It is indeed a transcript describing
the Madoff trading operation, which I knew at time when I was
describing it was entirely fraudulent.

THE COURT: So you anticipated my next question. You
knew at the time you made these statements that portions of the
statements, in particular the underlying portions, were false?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You did this to mislead the SEC?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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THE COURT: For what purpose?

THE DEFENDANT: To throw them off their tracks, sir.

THE COURT: Did you have a sense they were on the
track?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: At that point?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: These statements were made all on one
occasion, January 26, 20067

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And where was that?

THE DEFENDANT: Down at the SEC offices in the World
Trade Center.

THE COURT: World Financial Center?

THE DEFENDANT: Correct.

THE COURT: I interrupted you. I think you were
proceeding on to another count.

THE DEFENDANT: Judge, thousands of clients,
institutions, individuals, funds, charities were all misled
about the status of their accounts, what was being done with
their money, and what their accounts were worth.

In order to discuss Count Ten, which is tax evasion,
let me say that in the years 2002, 5; 6 and 7, I evaded federal
taxes that I owed by putting some of my income in the name of a

corporation I controlled and that I didn't fully and truthfully
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report my income on my federal income tax returns.

Your Honor, while this was going on, I knew no trades
were happening. I knew I was participating in a fraudulent
scheme. I knew what was happening was criminal and I did it
anyway .

I thought for a long time that Bernie Madoff had other
assets that he could liquidate if the clients requested the
return of their money. That is not an excuse. There is no
excuse. I knew everything that I did was wrong and it was
criminal and I did it knowingly and willfully. I regret
everything that I did. I accept complete responsibility for my
conduct. I don't know how I went from an 18-year-old kid
happening to have a job to before someone standing before the
Court today. I can only say I never wanted to hurt anyone. I
apologize to every victim of this catastrophe and to my family
and to the government. I am very, very sorry.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. DiPascali.

Let me ask you a couple questions about the tax fraud
count.

This is the years between 2002 and 2007. It sound
like it is 2002, 2005, 2006, and 2007; is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And when you made the false statements to
the IRS, where were you when you did that? This was in your

tax returns you made these false statements?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

53
98B6DIP Plea

THE DEFENDANT: In those years, sir, I did not file
tax returns.

THE COURT: But at the time you either filed false tax
returns or didn't file tax returns, you understood that you
were liable for additional taxes, that you had hidden income so
to speak through this company that you controlled?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Did any of the fraud associated with the
tax evasion take place in New York?

MR. MUKASEY: May I have one moment, your Honor?

THE COURT: Certainly.

(Pause)

MR. MUKASEY: Your Honor, with respect to the venue on
Count Ten, I think it is fair to say that the evidence would
show that the income that was evaded was earned in New York and
the money was transferred into this corporation from an account
in New York. To the extent that that establishes venue, we
offer that for venue. If not, Judge, we are willing to waive
venue as to Count Ten.

He is a resident of New Jersey. A lot of his personal
accounting actions take place in New Jersey. So it is a
movement of the money into this account that he controlled in
the Southern District of New York. If it is not enough to
establish venue, we will waive venue on Count Ten.

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, do you understand what

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
(212) 805-0300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

54

98B6DIP Plea

Mr. Mukasey just said?

THE DEFENDANT: I do, sir.

THE COURT: We didn't talk really about venue when we
were going through the elements of the offense. These are the
10 elements that Mr. Litt described and these were things that
would have to be demonstrated and proven beyond a reasonable
doubt if you went to trial.

Each of the counts of the information also have a
requirement that venue be established. The standard of proof
for venue is lesser. It is by a preponderance. It means a
little more than halfway basically. So what Mr. Mukasey has
said is he thinks there is such basis for venue to be
established on the tax evasion case; but if there weren't that
you would you be prepared to waive venue, which you can do.

Is that your understanding? Is that what you wish to
do?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Give me a minute. There are 10 counts
here so I want to take a quick lock to make sure we covered the
elements.

While I am doing that, Mr. Litt, to your mind is that
a sufficient allocution with respect to each of the 10 Counts
of the information?

MR. LITT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, do you agree?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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MR. MUKASEY: I do, your Honor.

Mr. DiPascali, has one or two more sentences.

THE COURT: I am sorry. I didn't mean to cut you off,
Mr.‘DiPascali.

THE DEFENDANT: I wanted to make it very, very clear I
know my apology means almost nothing but I hope my actions
going forward with the government will mean something and I
promise to dedicate all my energy to try to explain to others
how this happened. I hope my help will bring some small
measure of comfort to those who have been harmed.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

(Pause)

THE COURT: Mr. Litt, let me ask you to summarize the
government's evidence if it were to go to trial.

Mr. DiPascali, let me ask you to listen carefully to
Mr. Litt as he summarizes the evidence and also as he
summarizes your role in these offenses. Because after he is
done, I am going to ask you if you take issue with or dispute
anything he just said. So I want you to pay close attention.

MR. LITT: Yes, your Honor. If this case were to have
proceeded to trial, the government would have proven through
testimony and evidence beyond a reasonable doubt the facts set
forth in the information. In summary, the government would

have proven that beginning at least as early as the 1980s, a
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conspiracy existed between Mr. DiPascali, Mr. Madoff, and
others, to commit securities fraud, investment adviser fraud,
falsifying books and records of a broker/dealer and of an
investmeht adviser, mail fraud, wire fraud, and money
laundering.

Mr. Madoff's firm, Bernard L. Madoff Investment
Securities, LLC., was a registered broker/dealer throughout the
period and was a registered investment adviser between about
September 2006 and December 1lth of 2008.

Mr. DiPascali worked at the firm in New York, New
York, where the firm was located beginning in 1975. By the
early 1990s, Mr. DiPascali was responsible under the direction
of Mr. Madoff for a major part of the firm's investment
advisory business. That part of the business purported to
invest client funds in the basket of stocks from the 8§ & P 100
hedged by options transactions. In fact, the evidence would
demonstrate that Mr. DiPascali, Mr. Madoff, and others knew
that no stocks or options were being purchased as had been
promised to investors.

Mr. Madoff, Mr. DiPascali, and other co-conspirators
made it appear as though clients' investments with the firm
were profitable by sending those clients literally millions of
pages of false account statements and trade confirmations
through the U.S. mails. Those account statements and trade

confirmations reported or purported to report transactions that
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had been made up using historical price data and with the
benefit of hindsight. None of the reported transactions were
real.

In iater years when revenues from other parties of
Mr. Madoff's business declined, Mr. Madoff and Mr. DiPascali
wired hundreds of millions of dollars of invested funds to a
bank account in London and sent some of that money back to New
York, New York to an operating account that funded other
parties of Mr. Madoff's business. Among the uses of interstate
wires -- I should say Mr. DiPascali used interstate wires in
connection with the fraud both in speaking with investors
located outside New York as well as to transfer money to and
from bank accounts in New York, New York.

The government also would have proven that to conceal
the fraud and to deceive the SEC under the direction of
Mr. Madoff, Mr. DiPascali and other co-conspirators created
false books and records, records that were required to be kept
and maintained by the firm and were required by SEC regulation
to contain true data.

THE COURT: Can I ask -- perhaps I should have asked
Mr. DiPascali this -- is Mr. DiPascali an advisement adviser or
broker/dealer licensed to do these things, or the firm does and
he worked with the firm?

MR. LITT: He is not. He worked for the firm. And

the aiding and abetting charges in the information cover that.
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THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. LITT: As I was saying for the books and records,
SEC rules and regulations require the firm to keep various
books and record; both in its capacity as a broker/dealer and
as an investment adviser and Mr. Madoff, Mr. DiPascali, and
others caused false and fraudulent records to be created, some
of which were presented to the SEC as well. They did that to
conceal the fraud and conceal some of the activities that the
firm was engaged in.

At Mr. Madoff's direction Mr. DiPascali also committed
perjury in sworn testimony from the SEC in New York. There are
several instances of that set forth under the indictment.

THE COURT: Information.

MR. LITT: Sorry.

THE COURT: I did it before, too.

MR. LITT: In sum that false testimony disguised the
nature and scale of the investment advisory business that the
firm was engaged in.

Finally, the defendant attempted to evade federal
income taxes by taking income through a nominee LLC, limited
liability corporation, in which he controlled in failing to
declare and pay taxes on that income.

THE COURT: Do you have a view with respect to venue
on that count, Count Ten?

MR. LITT: I think the transfer of the money from New

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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York, New York probably is sufficient; but I think out of an
abundance of caution I think a waiver of venue is appropriate
and covers venue.

THE COURT: }s a waiver of venue contained in the
agreement between the parties on Count Ten?

MR. LITT: It is not.

THE COURT: So that would be something that Mr.
DiPascali has agreed to waive venue on Count Ten but it is not
contained in the agreement?

MR. LITT: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, did you hear what Mr. Litt
just said.

THE DEFENDANT: I have.

THE COURT: Do you disagree or take issue with any of
his characterization of the facté or the evidence in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: No, gir, I don't.

THE COURT: Have a seat.

At this time I had put out a couple sign-in sheets
before to provide for victims if they wish to be heard on the
issue of whether or not the plea should be accepted and the
plea agreement should be accepted, and if they wish to speak
later on the issue of bail and remand. I had one victim sign
the sheet to be heard as to whether or not the plea and plea
agreement should be accepted. That is Miriam seed man.

Is Ms. Seed man here?

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Ms. Seed man, would you still like to be heard on this

issue.

MS. SIEGMAN: I would.

THE COURT: Come‘up and use the lecturn if you don't
mind. While I am here, if there is any other victim who wishes
to be heard on this issue, and this issue only, who did not get
a chance to sign, perhaps you can raise your hand now and I can
send the sheet your way.

Is there anyone?

Let the record reflect that there is no other person
here in the courtroom has signified that they wish to speak as
a victim with respect to the issue of whether or not the Court
should accept the plea and the plea agreement.

Ms. Siegman, identify yourself for the record, speak
slowly, spell your name too, and then I am happy to hear you.

MS. SIEGMAN: Thank you, Judge Sullivan.

Can you hear me?

THE COURT: I can.

MS. SIEGMAN: My name is Miriam Siegman. M-i-r-i-a-m,
last name, S-i-e-g-m-a-n.

THE COURT: I probably mispronounced your name. I
apologize.

MS. SIEGMAN: That's fine.

I am a 65-year-old Madoff victim now penniless and

facing homelessness. I stand before you, Judge Sullivan, to
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ask that you consider rejecting this deal.

Ccriminal defendants in the Madoff case central to this
murderous fraud want to cut deals by swapping information,
naming names in exchange for iighter sentences. That, of
course, is their right. To some victims, not all, but to some
this behind-closed-doors bargaining seems to depend heavily on
the quality and connectedness of the defendants' lawyers and a
quest for expediency.

I ask, and others as well: Should these factors trump
the victims and the public's need for the truth, the full truth
that could come of a trial or the chance for victims to hear in
open court evidence, witnesses' questioned, and cross-examined,
or the chance to have brought before the mighty power of the
Bench even the most exalted, the most highly placed, including
government officials, and elected officials?

Has it been decided somewhere that a trial is too
great a luxury, too much of an expense for the public quest for
truth, too time consuming and bothersome or politically
unpleasant?

Why, Judge Sullivan, am I asking you to consider my
request to reject a deal? The crimes allegedly committed by
Mr. DiPascali and already admitted to by Mr. Madoff, Mr.
DiPascali's bcoss of 30 years, are €normous in scope. These
crimes have affected thousands of men, women, and children,

whole generations of families have been decimated, children,
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parents, dependents who are ill. None of these victims knows
how or why this has happened to them. The defendants won't say
a word until today, even then very little, and the prosecutors
have said very little to victims. )

The alleged crimes were vast and systematic, executed
with great attention to detail. The result total: Total
destruction of normal daily life now and likely forever for
thousands of us, certainly for me. Dazed, we are told that we
have no need to know how the crimes against us were carried
out. Today, a few tasty tidbits were thrown out into the court
and I could see every snap to attention with a genuine interest
in hearing those details and the need to know them.

Then there is the astonishing duration of the crime.
Mr. DiPascali was an employee of Madoff for 30 -- well over 30
years or around 30 years. The criminal enterprise went and on.
He, of course, had ample opportunity to do the right thing.
Victims have no idea how this could have been possible, this
long duration. Though, there are hints of horrendous
dereliction of duty within and outside of government and in the
street. One sentence about lying to the SEC doesn't tell the
story.

There is also the corrupting ripple effect of Mr.
DiPascali's alleged activities, activities which in the view of
many victims encouraged and enabled criminal activity on the

part of others, but we have learned nothing about how or why
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and likely we will learn nothing about how or why.

And Finally, and perhaps the most troubling of all for
me, the possible purchase of influence with the goal of
protecting Madoff from investigation aﬁd legislation. Victims,
and as importantly the American public, the little guy with a
401K or pension desperately need light to shine on this
process. Victims want more than confirmation. They need
information and knowledge. We want the kind of justice that
allows the truth to be spoken out loud in a courtroom and we
want to know that prosecutors will not conveniently pass over
the too highly placed.

The crimes committed against me and others are
life-shattering and they are forever. I want no others to
suffer in this way. Judge Sullivan, you have the power to show
the American people that justice works for victims and society
as a whole as well as for defendants. Take the process out
from behind closed doors and reject this plea deal.

In closing, if in the end you cannot, will you or
someone help me and others victims understand why and how a
plea deal will help them and the American public and allow men
and women who run our public institutions to learn from this
tragedy.

Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Siegman. I appreciate the

time and attention you obviously put into preparing those
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remarks.

Is there any other victim that wishes to be heard?

Let me ask Mr. Litt or Mr. Mukasey if they wish to
respond to anything that Ms. Siegman just s;id?

MR. LITT: ©Not at this time, your Honor, no.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: Simply that I think the allocution was
sufficient for acceptance by the Court, Judge.

THE COURT: Ms. Siegman, I am certainly sensitive to
the points you've made, but I think there is a difference
between a criminal trial and a truth commission, which each may
have their benefits to be sure. But I think a criminal trail
is less ambitious than a truth commission.

Mr. Mukasey I think is correct in saying that the
allocution that Mr. DiPascali gave is sufficient under the law
and so the issue for me is there something manifestly unjust
about the plea agreement or the plea that has been offered
here. I don't believe that the request for the truth ends
today. Certainly sentencing will not take place for several
months. But before imposing sentence, I would expect to have
more information than what I've heard today and what you've
heard today. So I expect there will be more information and
the Court will sentence on the basis of additional information.
I assume that to be the case.

So in light of those remarks I will, I believe, accept
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the plea. I have a few other things I would like to take up
with Mr. DiPascali. I am certainly sensitive to your concerns,
which I think are probably the concerns of many other people as
well. Thank you for your time. )

Let's me ask you now to rise again, Mr. DiPascali.

How do you now plead to Counts One through Ten of the
information, guilty or not guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT: Did you do the things you are charged with
doing in the information?

THE DEFENDANT: Indeed I did.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty because you are
guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty voluntarily and of
your own free will?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. DiPascali, because you acknowledge
that you are guilty as charged in Counts One through Ten of the
information, because you know your rights and are waiving those
rights, because your plea is entered knowingly and voluntarily
and is supported by an independent basis in fact for each of
the elements of the offenses charged in the information, I
accept your guilty plea and I adjudge you guilty on Counts One

through Ten of the information.
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You may have a seat.

Mr. Litt.

MR. LITT: I would ask if the Court could inquire
about whether the defendant Mr. DiPascali admits to Lhe
forfeiture allegations.

THE COURT: Fair enough.

Mr. DiPascali, let me also ask you about the
forfeiture allegations. There are two forfeiture allegations
in the information.

You indicated you have read them both, is that
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: That's correct.

THE COURT: Do you admit the facts that are contained
in each of the allegations?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Is that sufficient, Mr. Litt?

MR. LITT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Let's talk about sentencing now. The parties
requested the sentencing be put over for a number of months in
light of Mr. DiPascali's cooperation and had requested that I
set a control date in May of 2010.

Is that still the position of the parties?

MR. LITT: It is of the government, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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MR. MUKASEY: It is the position of the defemnse,

Judge.

THE COURT: Tell me what exactly it is that you have
in mind? So by that date I would get another submission‘or
letter from the parties, or by that date we would have
presumably a sentencing unless I adjourned it?

MR. LITT: Well, I think you would get a letter from
the parties, your Honor.

THE COURT: On that date or a date before that date?

MR. LITT: On that date.

THE COURT: On that date. You expect that the
cooperation will be going for at least that long?

MR. LITT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Or approximately that long?

MR. LITT: I would say at least.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey, that is your position as
well?

MR. MUKASEY: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: May 15th. I will expect a letter from the
government apprising the Court as to whether or not it is
prepared to go forward with sentencing, and if not proposing
another control date. Obviously Mr. Mukasey should be CC'd on
any correspondence.

Let's talk about bail pending sentencing. Title 18,

Section 3143 (a) provides that a defendant shall be detained
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following a plea or conviction, unless the judicial officer
finds by clear and convincing evidence that the person is not
likely to flee. This is for the period between a jury's
verdict or in the case of today a guilty plea and the
sentencing.

So I had also had sign-in sheet to hear from any
victims who wish to be heard on this sheet. No one has signed
that sheet.

Does anyone wish to be heard with respect to bail or

remand?

The parties have submitted a letter, which I
referenced earlier. Bear with me while I am looking for it. I
remember it well. It provided for a bond of $400,000 -- excuse

me, $2.5 million to be secured by three financially responsible
persons, to be secured with property of $400,000 which would in
essence be the equity value in the home of Mr. DiPascali's
sister, surrender of all travel documents with no new
applications permitted, and travel restricted to the Southern
District of New York, Eastern District of New York, and here it
says the District of Pennsylvania but Pennsylvania has more
than one district, as well as regular pretrial supervision.

Is that the position of the parties?

MR. LITT: We meant to say the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania and the District of New Jersey, which is where the

defendant lives.
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MR. MUKASEY: That's right.

THE COURT: I see. Anything else that the parties
wish to say on this?

MR. LITT: No, your Honor.

MR. MUKASEY: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: By agreement with Mr. Litt, subject to
approval of the Court, we would ask for one week from today
until August 18th to satisfy those bail conditions if they are
acceptable to your Honor.

THE COURT: I am not sure they are. I should state
that up front. Following a jury's verdict or following a
guilty plea there is a presumption that the defendant will be
detained, remanded pending sentencing. That is for a variety
of reasons. That is the Bail Reform Act of 1984. I think
everyone at the front two tables understands that.

So I want to explore that. It seems to me that this
defendant has ample incentive to flee. I understand he is
cooperating with the government, but the defendant is 52 years
old. He is facing a maximum term of imprisonment of 125 years.
Although the plea agreement has no guidelines calculation, I
certainly have done an admittedly quick and dirty guidelines
calculation. But based on just the fraud counts, it seems to
me that the guidelines calculation comesg out at a fairly

astronomical place based on the amount of the loss involved,
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based on the abuse of trust that was involved in the course of
the schemes to which Mr. DiPascali admitted.

So it seems to me under the guidelines, even with the
acceptance the guidelines would call for a range of mandatory
life. ©Now, because the maximum sentence is not life but 125
years, under the guidelines before considering cooperation,
before considering the Section 3553 (a) factors, the guidelines
would be recommending a life term. So that is certainly
serious, serious consequences facing Mr. DiPascali.

Now, the bail package proposed here by normal
standards would seem pretty considerable. There is 2.5 million
dollar bond that would have three financially responsible
persons and property that is valued -- at least the equity
value is $400,000. So by most standards that would be a pretty
large package. But that amount is completely dwarfed by the
amount of restitution and forfeiture in this case. $170
billion is what the plea agreement provides for Mr. DiPascali
to forfeit. So it would seem to me that a 2.5 million dollar
bond thrown on top of that mountain doesn't count for much.

Now, the next argument would be that the financially
responsible persons, the co-signers and Mr. DiPascali's sister
would have some moral suasion over him, that he would be
disinclined to flee or do anything that might put thewm at risk,
and only that might be persuasive. But in this case there are

thousands of victims who many of them lost more than $2.5
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million. So the fact that three more victims might be thrown
on top of a long list of victims doesn't strike me as a
terribly compelling basis to believe that Mr. DiPascali would
be deterred from engaging in conduct that would constitute a
violation of the terms of his bail or flight.

Now, the penalties for bail jumping are by most human
standards considerable. It is five years' imprisonment,
maximum, with a two-level enhancement for obstruction of
justice on top of the guidelines calculation in this case. But
here it would be again virtually meaningless. It would expand
the maximum penalty from 125 years to 130 years. It would
expand the guidelines calculation from what I think looks like
a level 46 to a level 48. And for those of you unfamiliar with
the guidelines level 43 is life. So you can't do much more
than that.

So in light of this, the package strikes me as fairly
symbolic and not terribly onerous in light of the other facts
in this case. So it seems to me that it is really we are on an
honor system. I am being asked to believe that Mr. DiPascali
is not going to run away because he has turned his life around
and that I should credit his statements here today that he is
sorry for what he has done and he is committed to making amends
to the best of his ability, which I can understand the
sentiment. But the fact of the matter is the defendant's

conduct which is admitted today doesn't give me great
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confidence on that store.

Mr. DiPascali has admitted to a 20-year period of
fraud in which he committed perjury to the SEC under oath. He
maintained and manufactured false books and records that were
designed to mislead regulators and auditors. He issued by his
own account and the government's account literally thousands or
even millions of statements to investors that were designed to
mislead them and lull them into maintaining investments they
had made or increasing the investments that they had made. The
money laundering that is set forth in one of the accounts
describes a fairly massive-scale scheme that continued as
recently as December of 2008.

So I think all of that suggests to me that Mr.
DiPascali is not a good bet. I think the argument that I
anticipate is that, Well, Mr. DiPascali understands that if he
violates the terms of his bail then his cooperation agreement
will be ripped up and any hope he would have for a sentence
below the guidelines would be greatly diminished. I understand
that as well. But I don't think it would be irrational for a
defendant faced with the kind of sentence that Mr. DiPascali is
facing to decide that maybe cooperation is not going to do it.

So all of this basically leads me to the statute, back
to the statute which is that I need to be persuaded as the
judicial officer that there is clearing and convincing evidence

that he is not going to flee and at this point I am not really
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there.

So let me hear from counsel if they want to be heard
on this. Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: Thirty seconds, Judge, to confer?

THE COURT: Certainly.

(Pause)

MR. MUKASEY: Judge, if I could be heard on the issue.

THE COURT: Certainly.

MR. MUKASEY: Mr. DiPascali, your Honor, has known
that he has been under investigation that could put him in jail
for the rest of his life since December 11th, 2008. At that
time he was served with a grand jury subpoena. He has known
that this day was coming for probably eight months.

THE COURT: Can I interrupt you?

Because it seems to me that based on what has been
described to me is that Mr. DiPascali must have known that this
house of cards was going to come crashing down for years but it
didn't prevent him from doing what he did up until December of
2008.

MR. MUKASEY: As Mr. DiPascali mentioned, Judge, I
think that he always thought that there would be a safe landing
for many investors and it wasn't until really the end that he
learned the full truth of this.

I would like to address my comments really to his ties

to the community and why I think notwithstanding your guideline
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analysis, which is pretty darn accurate, and notwithstanding
the really cataclysmic nature of the fraud here, I think Mr.
DiPascali is a clear and convincing bet to return to court.

He has known he has been under investigation for the
better part of nine months. He has been speaking with the U.S.
Attorney's Office. He has been following the guidance by the
FBI. I am not shy to say that I believe he has established a
relationship with the agents of trust. He is where he is
supposed to be when they ask him to be there. He has been at
every proffer, at every meeting, and every location that he is
supposed to be at. He understands that he has but one way to
ever see the light of day and that is to satisfy the government
that he is trustworthy person.

I think the government is signing him up to the
cooperation agreement says something about their trust in him.
He understands that he has got miles to go in terms of
providing substantial assistance. He is here today and he has
known he was going to be here today to try to reach that goal.
He understands that he is working his way down from probably a
life sentence. I anticipate Mr. DiPascali, and I think the
government would back me up on this, to be a cooperator in a
white-collared case in a historic nature, somebody who can pull
the curtain back on a fraud and answer a lot of questions that
Ms. Siegman wants to be answered and the whole world wants to

be answered.
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We would not have gone through what was really a
grueling process to convince the government that he was a
person worthy of its trust if we didn't want to see this
through to the end. Mr. DiPascali does want to see it through
to the end and that is why he came here and admitted in open
court a fraud of 30 years or the better part of 20 or 30 years.

Let me talk a little bit, Judge, about Mr. DiPascali's
background. He has in Bridgewater, New Jersey, four children.
He comes from an extremely close family. In fact, this is the

first time I have ever seen him discuss the fraud without

_ breaking down and crying. He is an emotional person. He is

not a person that would ever do anything to harm his family. T
think that really in the back of his mind he wasn't convinced
that investors would be hurt here. Of course they could have
been. I am not sure he was convinced that they would have been
had Mr. Madoff actually had assets to back this up.

Let me tell you a little bit about each of Mr.
DiPascali's kids and the relationship he has with them as well
has his siblings. He has a daughter today who is starting
Brooklyn Law School. Yesterday he went with her to move her
in. He is incredibly close with her.

He has three sons -- Frank, Jr., Greg, and Mike. The
two young ones live at home. Mr. DiPascali is their world and
he is their world. He supports his mother who is 77 years old

and also lives in Bridgewater with one of his sisters. Then he
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has the other sister who is willing to post her house to show
her confidence in Mr. DiPascali.

T think that if the amount of the bond were raised and
perhaps if we could somehow find additional security that that
could be thrown on to the pile as well. There is not a bail
package in the universe that is not without some risk, but I
think this is a bail package that can be fashioned into a bail
package that gives the Court comfort, like the government has
comfort in Mr. DiPascali.

It is worth pointing out that since January Mr.
DiPascali has been operating under, to use your term, the honor
system with the government. They have never frozen his assets.
They never seized his bank accounts. He voluntarily turned
over to the U.S. Marshal some of his property. He is prepared
to turn over his property. He has been operating since January
on really a letter agreement with the government regarding his
spending knowing that he would be ultimately subject to a
forfeiture order. He has not violated the government's trust
once.

Every month we report to the government the amount of
money he is spending. They are keeping him on a tight leash
and he is abiding by that. He has almost no assets that are
not forfeitable. So as soon as the government moves to freeze
the bank accounts and seize the bank accounts, he is not going

to have disposable income. He doesn't have an ability to flee.
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He doesn't have anywhere to go frankly. We turned over his
passport. My office has kept the passport for months.

To the extent it is worth knowing, he has put hundreds
of hours into preparing to proffer with the govermment,
learning about what it means to be a government witness,
learning what it means to accept responsibility and hopefully
get a 5K1 letter because he wants it not because he wants to
take off. He takes care of his mother. The Pretrial Services
officer asked this morning, Do you speak to your mother and
your sisters on a weekly basis? And he said, No, much more
than that. He speaks to them not on a daily basis but
sometimes on a multiple-times-in-a-day basis.

It sounds maybe odd stacked up against this fraud, but
he is a family person. He doesn't travel. He doesn't go on
lavish vacations. He is a homebody. He wants to cause no more
pain to his kids. He sat in our office a couple nights ago
explaining to his family the possibilities and the
consequences. He has been straight up with them, he has been
straight up with us, and he has been straight up with the
government.

You can take this bet, Judge, Mr. DiPascali is here to
do the right thing. He wants the 5K letter. It would be inane
for him to flee and leave his family with nothing as it is.
They are going to have to endure very, very rough times. I

don't think he thinks about it in terms of, Well, T am facing
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life in prison, what is another two years if I get a bail
jumping charge. He thinks of it in the opposite way, which is
I am facing life in prison and I better show up every darn day
if I am to avoid anything but that.

That is why we entered into the cooperation agreement.
That is why we hope Mr. DiPascali can satisfy the Miriam
Siegmans of the world and the government and this Court. I
don't want to put anybody on the spot. I think the FBI agents
would speak to diligence and his compliance and his ability to
be trusted to continue to work with them. I think they would
establish a very good relationship with him, professional and
arm's length but very trusting. You can imagine the hill that
the government faced in offering him a cooperation agreement.
They I think came at this perhaps at the beginning with the
same scepticism that your Honor does and he won them over. If
your Honor releases him on an appropriate bail package, he will
win your Honor over with trust and with compliance.

May I have one moment, Judge?

THE COURT: Certainly.

(Pause)

MR. MUKASEY: Thank you for hearing me, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Litt, anything you want to add?

MR. LITT: I would ask a couple of points that I think
your Honor anticipated in the arguments. Mr. Mukasey hit on

some of them.
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Mr. DiPascali, we do believe has known since very
early on -- December 1llth, 12th -- that he was a key player in
this and he was under investigation and has not fled. He has
always cooperated with the govermnment to date and appeared when
called upon to do so. He showed up today knowing what the
consequences of his actions today would be and certainly
deserves credit for that.

He does appear to be close to his family and he does
have significant ties to the community. The plea agreement
that he has entered into gives him every incentive to appear
and to try to fulfill the terms of that agreement because to do
otherwise would likely confine him to the rest of his life in
jail.

THE COURT: If he flees and you were able to get him
back.

MR. LITT: Yes. That's right, your Honor.

With respect to the bail package and amount, the
reason why there is less securities than there is in some other
cases there might have been is related to the forfeiture issue
and the fact that most of Mr. DiPascali's assets are subject to
forfeiture. And over the coming weeks we expect to be
presenting preliminary orders or forfeiture to your Honor which
may be submitted any time prior to sentencing to start the
process of accomplishing that. We have already to date

confiscated some of Mr. DiPascali's assets.
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Finally, the government believes that the assistance,
if we did not believe that he could provide substantial
assistance to the government, we wouldn't have entered into
this agreement. We do believe that he can provide substantial
assistance and we believe that his ability to do so would be
hampered were he to be detained.

THE COURT: Why is that?

MR. LITT: This is a very documented intensive
investigation, among other things. There are literally
millions of pages of documents and data and computer equipment
and the like that it will be very beneficial were he to be able
to have access to provide the substantial assistance that we
expect he will be able to do.

I think some of the concerns that your Honor has can
be addressed in part through electronic monitoring and home
detention if your Honor thinks that would add such an
additional layer of surety about flight. There are flaws with
that as your Honor well knows. There is no substitute in terms
of assuring somebody's presence in court other than
incarceration, but the government certainly believes that given
his connections to the community, again his record with the
government to date, the fact that he has not fled in the last
eight months, the fact that he showed up today and admitted his
guilt, exposed himself to 125 years of incarceration, that he

has three family members who would be tremendously harmed were
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he to flee if they were approved as cosigners on the package,
that those things even without home detention and electronic
monitoring in the government's view provide clear and
convincing evidence in this case, and every case must be viewed
on its own facts, to reasonably assure clear and convincing
evidence that Mr. DiPascali would appear when required.
Certainly those factors when necessary combined with home
detention and electronic monitoring would do that.

THE COURT: Mr. Litt, I am looking at a submission you
made to me in another case, which you reminded me that the Bail
Reform Act of 1984 creates no general expectation of post
verdict liberty. To the contrary, it establishes as a
presumption in favor of detention. You then went on to remind
me that "the interest in detaining defendants who have been
found guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of such crimes also
includes the need to encourage general respect for the law by
signaling that a guilty person will not be able to avoid or
delay imposition and service of the sentence prescribed by
law."”

So, look, let me say this: I have great respect for
the lawyers in this room. I know them. I think they are good
at what they do and I have great respect for them. Clearly
they have taken the positions they take because they believe
them and I don't disregard that lightly. On the other hand, I

think everybody recognizes that each of us has an independent
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role to play in this process.

Mr. Litt and Mr. Mukasey have focused on what Mr.
DiPascali has done since December of 2008. I keep focusing on
what he did for 20 or 30 years before that. I keep thinking of
how many people put their trust in Mr. DiPascali and have lived
to regret it deeply and I am frankly reluctant to put my trust
in Mr. DiPascali. I don't see why he would anymore respect the
oath he would take on a bail package than he would respect the
oath he took in front of the SEC, another arm of the
government. So I think we may have disagreement on this one.

I am not persuaded. Maybe I haven't heard enough
about how remand would affect his ability to cooperate with the
government. I think there are lots of individuals who are in
custody who can still cooperate very effectively and work with
law enforcement agents very effectively. On this record, in
the length of time that this conspiracy went on, again the
amount and nature of the misrepresentations to clients, to
government entities, to auditors, I just cannot find by clear
and convincing evidence that Mr. DiPascali does not pose a risk
of flight. I just can't do it.

MR. MUKASEY: Judge, if I could add some facts to the
record that might help persuade you that he is a trustworthy
defendant. 1In terms of your concern about how he would be
hampered from cooperating were he detained, not only he is

going to cooperate with the U.S. Attorney's Office and with the
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FBI, I can tell you from having been in these proffers, it is
an extremely onerous process involving computers and documents
and account statements and it requires the sort of 8-hour,
10-hour, 12-hour sessions that you just cannot have when you
are remanded.

He is also going to be cooperating with the SEC, with
the IRS, with any agency that wishes to speak with him, and we
hope and we believe there will be a number of agencies both
inside New York and outside New York that wish to speak with
him. We've discussed among ourselves the Massachusetts
Attorney General has been very, very active in this case.

Obviously he is a U.S. Attorney's Office cooperator,
but I would hope that when the Madoff cases are going to spring
up all over the country, Mr. DiPascali will be at least a very
valuable witness to debrief to understand the operations and he
is not a testifying witness. There are civil lawsuits that he
may be able to help people out. I think he is going to be
working chiefly with the FBI and SEC here in New York, but he
can and is ready, willing and able to work with these other
agencies.

The SEC of course have their limitations on where they
can do and when they can go and when Mr. DiPascali can go if he
were detained. I think it would seriously hinder his ability
to work with the SEC. Part of what the world wants to know

here is how did the SEC fail to catch this for lack of a better
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phrase and just to use the terms of discussion of the day. T
don't know the case that your Honor read back Mr. Litt's
language to him but I would ask the Court consider whether that
was a case of cooperatiomn.

THE COURT: It was not.

MR. MUKASEY: And you make a good point obviously
about --

THE COURT: You have to say that, Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: I am not saying I agree with everything.
You make a good point about how do trust a guy who basically
has been a fraudster for 25 years. Here is the answer: He
lived in a universe for 25 years that he doesn't live in
anymore. On December 11th he exited that universe. Once he
got out of that universe -- by the way that universe was
twisted and it was perverted, and it was almost impossible for
somebody who wasn't living in that universe to understand. It
was an alternative reality. It was not the kind of conspiracy
where a bunch of people are down in the dungeon plotting how to
rip off innocent old ladies. It wasn't like that.

Mr. DiPascali started with Mr. Madoff when he was 18
or 19 years old. He didn't know the way things run at Goldman
Sachs. He didn't know the way things run at Morgan Stanley.
go sat and watched and he learned and listened and at some
point after several years I think a light went off, I think he

said to himself, This is kind of a bizarre universe but this is
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my universe. This is what Bernie tells me to do and this is
what I am doing. By the way no one is going to get hurt at the
end because Bernie Madoff has been telling me he has assets
ab£oad and in real estate and in commodities that are going to
make sure that all the clients' money will be able to be
returned.

So he wasn't out there sort of ripping and robbing and
stealing as you might think of it. He is guilty? 1,000
percent. No question about it. There is no way we could have
a trial in this matter. He is absolutely guilty. He was
living in a universe creating fake trade tickets and creating
fake trade blotters. It is the way you did things. It was
okay because Bernie was going to take care of it. Don't worry,
Bernie will take care of it. That is how he went to sleep at
night. That was the universe he was living in for 25 years, 20
years.

On December 11lth he came to my office shaking, crying
out of that universe. He stepped out of that universe and
stepped into the real kind of world, the world that Ms. Siegman
lives in, I live in, you live in. The world where you cannot
create a fake trade ticket and say, Don't worry it is okay
because no one is going to get hurt here. He realizes now, he
is out of that universe. He is in a universe with laws and
rules and regulations and oaths and promises and trusts.

I am happy to tell you that we had to knock hard on

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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the door of the U.S. Attorney's Office to get Mr. DiPascali in
there because they originally have the same -- I don't want to
speak for them. I would imagine prosecutors in the real world
have th; same degree of scepticism. The guy was a fraudster
for 25 years. How could I trust him? How can I put him on the
witness stand? Well, you know what? He earned their trust.

He now I think has their trust. Because he stepped out of the
universe, the one that you are focusing on, the one that said
you have wanton disregard for these victims and you have a
20-year history of fraud.

He is in a new world where he talks to the FBI agents
almost every day. They were at his house yesterday. He goes
to the U.S. Attorney's Office at his job. It is going be his
full-time job. Never has never missed an appearance. He comes
early. He stays late. He goes outside to smoke and gets a
class of water. Otherwise he is in there looking at records,
explaining history.

So you are right there was a world that he is going
get punished for. He doesn't live in that world anymore. Now
he ig in this world. Now he is in the world where he has got
to live up to what he says and he has to tell the truth or he
is going to go right back to that world where the only other
inhabitant is Bernie Madoff spending 150 years in prison.

THE COURT: I understand the arguments and the

sincerity of what you are saying and what Mr. Litt is saying

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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that you have each reached a conclusion that Mr. DiPascali
would do that. Perhaps you know him better than I. T don't
think I can overlook the conduct that he admitted to today,
which T thiﬁk coupled with the seriousness of the penalties
that he is looking at I think provides ample incentive to flee
if cooperation doesn't look like it is going to pan out the way
he thought, or as he gets closer to the day of sentencing that
the harsh realities of a sentence for this conduct starts
staring him in the face. I think in light of all facts and all
the conduct in this case and in light that Mr. DiPascali has
made false statements to the SEC and to others and in light of
the fact for decades he made false statements to people that
entrusted him with their life savings -- I am not going to
trust him with his life savings. I am just hoping he shows up
to court. People entrusted him with the life savings. I am
unpersuaded respectfully.

MR. MUKASEY: Perhaps if we can add some heft to the
bail package, something such as home detention.

THE COURT: Well, look, I don't rule out the
possibility of the parties to make another motion. Based on
what is before me today and based on the proposal that has been
made jointly by the parties for bail, I am going to deny that
request. I am going to remand Mr. DiPascali. It not designed
to be punitive. Time for sentencing is later. It is designed

really I think to meet the objectives of the statute in light
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of the facts as I understand them.

Mr. DiPascali, it may not be what you wanted or
expected today but --

MR. MUKASEY: May I have one moment to discuss one
matter with the government?

THE COURT: Certainly.

(Pause)

MR. LITT: Your Honor, if I could at the risk of
trotting over ground that we've covered, first with respect to
the brief that your Honor mentioned that, as your Honor knows,
was in a case following three and a half years of intense
litigation and a nine-week trial, not a cooperator.

THE COURT: A man whose fraud, total fraud was tiny in
comparison to this defendant's, right.

MR. LITT: Yes. Absolutely, your Honor.

THE COURT: I don't want anyone to be in the dark
here. I am referring to Mr. Litt's submission in the case of
United States v. Alberto Villar, 05 CR 621.

MR. LITT: That's right. I guess what I am having
difficulty articulating is it is essential I think is that we
believe that Mr. DiPascali's cooperation, what he wants to do,
what he says he wants to do will be hampered if we --

THE COURT: You have to take him out in order to bring
him to the FBI. Look, we are all experienced with cooperators.

We all know there are many cooperators who are in custody who

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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are able to cooperate and meet with law enforcement officials
and engage in cooperation. He is not doing anything activity.
He is not wearing a wire and going out. I am not sure I am
persuaded that he neéds to be out to be able to effectively
cooperate.

MR. LITT: The documents involved in this case fill a
half a floor of a New York office building and about 6,000
boxes in a warehouse and a computer server that was dedicated
in large part to the investment advisory activities, a computer
that Mr. DiPascali has a certain amount of specialized
knowledge about, a server that has proprietary software, that
is ancient by modern standards in terms of technology and the
operating system and the like. The records and the unraveling
of what happened in this case over decades requires looking
through exactly what I just described, a half of a floor of an
office building.

In going through this process, and I will just speak
in hypotheticals, to present a document to a witness that
triggers a recollection of something else. It is one thing to
be able to walk across the room or pull a file and present that
file in realtime and through that process get to the bottom of
what happened and a very small piece of what happened in this
case then it would be to do that process through the cumbersome
circumstance of Mr. DiPascali's being incarcerated.

I think it will just be a lot more efficient, the

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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government will be able to get Mr. DiPascali's cooperation much
more fully, completely, efficiently, and quicker if he is out.
I would just urge the Court --

THE COURT: Let'; me interrupt you, though. That is
not really the consideration of 3143. It doesn't say or if the
government thinks it would be more convenient to have a person
out. So clearly the government has reached a conclusion. And
I don't mean this disrespectfully. Clearly you reached a
determination that bail is appropriate. I understand that. I
am not persuaded by clear and convincing evidence that Mr.
DiPascali is going to be here at the time of sentencing given
the monumental sentence he is facing and given the amount of
cooperation that is going to be needed to put a dent into that
sentence.

So, look, I don't think there is much more that you
folks can say today that is going to persuade me. If you want
to make another submission, I will consider it. But on the
basis of the facts as I have laid them out, I am not prepared
to agree to the bail package that you have all proposed.

MR. MUKASEY: Understood that the current bail package
on the table needs to be withdrawn and obviously I am told
needs some more energy and some more heft. Judge, we were
obviously surprised by your Honor's take on this and what I
would propose is to allow us to brief this issue and or -- I

guess the law is pretty clear. I am not sure how much briefing
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there is going to be, but Mr. DiPascali's family is completely
unprepared for this. He is completely unprepared for this. He
is the financial provider to his family. I frankly didn't
recognize -- )

THE COURT: Is he working, though?

MR. MUKASEY: No. But I think he is certainly taking
care of his family, the four kids and the girl in law school
and the boys that are home for the summer. I think that we can
probably work out a package if your Honor were to give us 48
hours, 72 hours that was strict, that satisfied your Honor of
his ties to the community.

I agree that cooperation is not one of the 3142, 43
prongs. However, I think it bears some thinking about really
how he will be able to cooperator or not cooperate if he is
remanded, and probably satisfy your Honor with a package that
includes home detention, strict Pretrial Services reporting,
perhaps less travel, and a lot more for those he loves to lose.

THE COURT: I am reacting to what I have in front of
me now. The statute is pretty clear that unless I make the
finding that I am not prepared to make, Mr. DiPascali is
remanded. So I am going to order his remand without prejudice
to renewing a motion whenever you see fit with whatever
submissions you think appropriate.

Mr. DiPascali, we have not set a sentencing date for

you. That is because it has been represented to me that your
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cooperation will continue for some time. We have a control
date in May. Then perhaps we will have more information as to
when we will go forward with sentencing. I want to make sure
you understand about sentencing, ﬁbwever. As I said before,
the Probation Department will prepare a report, a presentence
report, that will be quite extensive. They will interview a
number of people, including the government to get more
information about the offenses that are in the information, and
also interview you, among others. So I would ask that you be
cooperative with the Probation Department as they prepare that
report.

Mr. Mukasey, I assume you wish to be present for any
interview?

MR. MUKASEY: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: I will direct that no interview is to take
place unless Mr. Mukasey is present. So if they show up to
interview you and Mr. Mukasey is not there, you remind them
that I told you not to go forward. If Mr. Mukasey directs you
not for answer certain questions, listen to him, but don't make
any false statements to the Probation Department. If you were
to do that, it could be a separate offense or an enhancement
for obstruction of justice. So I think that would serve no
one's interest. De as cooperative as you can be.

Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: I am going to back to the bail issue. I

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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think that it might persuade your Honor what Mr. DiPascali is
looking forward to in terms of his cooperation and the ties
that he has to his family and the community and the cooperation
that he has already given to the goverhment is perhaps if I
were allowed to ask the FBI Agent Keith Kelley some questions
that --

THE COURT: Asking here in open court, you mean?

MR. MUKASEY: Yeah. I don't want to do anything that
will put anybody on the spot, but I think there is a
relationship of trust here that can be considered a tie to the
community, in addition with the FBI and the government, which I
think Special Agent Kelley would shed some light on, in
addition to the very, very close ties Mr. DiPascali has with
his family.

THE COURT: I am not sure what you are asking me. Are
you asking me to put Mr. Kelley on the stand and let you
examine him?

(Pause)

THE COURT: Counsel.

Mr. Mukasey.

MR. MUKASEY: I am going to withdraw that application.

THE COURT: If you folks want to renew the
application, you can do so. I think I've explained what my
concerns are and what the burden is.

Is there anything else we need to cover today,

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
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Mr. Litt?

MR. LITT: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mukasey?

MR. MUKASEY: If I can have just 6ne moment?

(Pause)

MR. MUKASEY: Nothing further, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you all. I will hear from you May
15th if not before then. I appreciate all your time. Thank
you to the court reporter, the marshals, and all the victims

who came as well.

o0o
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PRELIMINARY AND JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Appellants James W. Giddens, (the “Trustee”) as Trustee for the liquidation
of the businesses of the substantively consolidated estates of New Times Securities
Services, Inc. (“New Times”) and New Age Financial Services, Inc. (“New Age”)
(together, the “Debtor”) and the Securities Investor Protection Corporation
(“SIPC”) submit this brief in support of their Joint Appeal from the Judgment of
the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York (Judge Thomas C.
Platt), which denied their motion for an order upholding the Trustee’s
determinations with respect to claims filed by fourteen claimants seeking SIPC
cash advances equal to the fictitious value of one or more non-existent money
market funds (“bogus mutual funds”). See SEC v. Goren, 206 F. Supp. 2d 344
(E.D.N.Y. 2002).

The District Court had jurisdiction over this contested matter pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 78eee(b)(2)(A) (2002) and 28 U.S.C. § 158(a) (2002). This Court has
jurisdiction over this Joint Appeal pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1291 (1993).

The District Court’s judgment was entered on June 25, 2002. The Trustee
and SIPC filed a timely Joint Notice of Appeal on July 1, 2002.

NY 679376_7i



STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Whether the Trustee correctly determined that claimants should be
treated as having claims for cash rather than securities covered by the Securities
Investor Protection Act (“SIPA”) where claimants deposited monies with an
insolvent brokerage firm to purchase non-existent shares in bogus mutual funds

that were:
(a) never organized as mutual funds or registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”);
(b) never had any assets or market value;
(c) never issued prospectuses or complied with the nation’s
securities laws; and
(d) had no class or series of securities that could be identified or
purchased on the open market.
2. Whether the Trustee correctly determined that claimants who seek
cash advances from SIPC cannot be treated as having claims for SIPC advances
with respect to wholly fictitious dividends and interest which were never in fact

generated by bogus mutual funds, never received by the broker-dealer, and never

deposited in the claimants’ accounts.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order of the District Court sustaining the
objections filed by fourteen claimants (the “Claimants”)' to the Trustee’s
determinations of their claims. These Claimants (among a host of others who have
not disputed the Trustee’s position on this issue) deposited cash with the Debtor in
order to purchase shares of bogus mutual funds. The Claimants received fictitious
confirmations and fictitious account statements from the Debtor, indicating the
purchase of the bogus shares. Even though the bogus mutual funds they intended
- to purchase never existed, were never registered with the SEC, never issued
prospectuses, and never advertised or had their share prices listed in print (such as
the newspaper), electronic, or live media, Claimants filed claims seeking their
return or fictitious cash values. The Trustee determined that since no real
“securities” under SIPA ever existed or could be purchased on the open market for
return to Claimants, and since the bogus mutual funds had no market value, the
Claimants could not have a claim for the return of the bogus mutual funds shares
under SIPA. Instead, the only allowable SIPA claim that the Claimants could have
was a claim for the return of the cash that they deposited with the Debtor in order

to purchase securities, less any withdrawals or redemptions.

1. These Claimants are: Myma K. Jacobs (“Jacobs™); Simon and Helga Noveck
(“Novecks”); Miriam Seidenberg (“Seidenberg”); Felice Linder (“Linder”);
Angelo Scarlata (“Scarlata”); the Rose Marie Ceparano Irrevocable Trust
(“Ceparano Trust”); the Estate of Allan A. Blynd (“Blynd Estate); Salvatore
and Stella DiGiorgio (“DiGiorgios™); Project Earth Environmental
Fundraisers, Inc., (“Project Earth™); New York Optical, Inc. (“New York
Optical”); the Carl Carter Irrevocable Trust (“Carter Trust™); Craig Roffman
(“Roffman”); Ellen Eschen (“Eschen”); and Jill Gundry (“Gundry™).
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The District Court disagreed with the Trustee’s determination and held that
claims for the fictitious value of the bogus mutual funds were claims for securities
under SIPA. It ordered the Trustee to satisfy the claims with cash advances from
SIPC equal to the wholly fictitious value of the bogus mutual funds as shown on
the Claimants’ final account statements. The District Court also determined that
claims for completely fictitious interest/dividends that were supposedly to have
been generated by the non-existent funds were allowable customer claims for
securities. In its decision, the District Court relied entirely on rules adopted by
SIPC (the “Series 500 Rules”) that address whether an actual security transaction
gives rise to a claim for cash or a claim for securities. The District Court, without
discussion, assumed that the Series 500 Rules applied so as to convert bogus
transactions into real ones, thereby ignoring all relevant case law. The relevant
case law, SIPA, its legislative history and purpose, and the federal securities laws’
confirm that the Series 500 Rules do not apply to convert fictitious transactions in
fictitious securities into real ones that would give rise to a customer claim for

securities as opposed to cash under SIPA.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On May 18, 2000, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
New York entered an Order pursuant to the Securities Investor Protection Act of
1970 (“SIPA™), 15 U.S.C. § 78aaa et. Mf finding that the customers of New

Times were in need of the protections afforded by SIPA. (Protective Decree 9 I,

2. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 78bbb, “the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 apply [to SIPA] as if this chapter [of SIPA] constituted an amendment
to, and was included as a section of, such Act.”

3. For convenience, references hereinafter to provisions of SIPA shall omit “15
USsS.C”»
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J.A. 48.) Pursuant to SIPA § 78eee(b)(3), James W. Giddens was appointed as
Trustee (the “Trustee”) for the liquidation of the business of New Times, and
Hughes Hubbard & Reed LLP his counsel. (Id. 11, J.A. 48.) Pursuant to SIPA
§ 78eee(b)(4), the liquidation proceeding was removed to the Bankruptcy Court.
(Id. X, J.A. 51))

In accordance with a standard Administrative Order, the Trustee sent notices
and claim materials to each person who appeared from New Times’ books and
records to have been a customer of New Times during the year prior to the filing
date. (Admunistrative Order, J.A. 93.)

While claims were being filed, the Trustee examined the operations of New
Times and New Age and their principal William Goren (“Goren™). Based on his
investigation, which revealed extensive intermingling of the two entities in
communications with the public, the Trustee moved for an order substantively
consolidating the estates of New Times and New Age. The Trustee, with SIPC’s
approval, sought the order so as to maximize recovery to victims of Goren’s
fraudulent activities, irrespective of whether they had dealt with New Times, the
broker- dealer entity or New Age, the non broker-dealer entity. The Bankruptcy
Court granted the Order on November 27, 2000 (the “Substantive Consolidation
Order”). (Substantive Consolidation Order, J.A. 134.) Pursuant to the Substantive
Consolidation Order, for purposes of determining “customer” claims under SIPA,
the Debtor includes New Times and New Age for claims arising after April 19,
1995, the date that New Times became registered with the SEC and a member of
SIPC. (I1d., J.A.137.) As aresult of the Substantive Consolidation Order, these
fourteen objecting Claimants have claims eligible for SIPC cash advances even
though they actually transacted with Goren through an unregistered entity.

Nine hundred five (905) claims have been filed in the liquidation

proceeding. One hundred seventy-four (174) of these claims relate to funds
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deposited with the Debtor and the subsequent confirmation of a supposed purchase
of non-existent shares of one or more bogus mutual funds. The Trustee has
determined one hundred seventy three (173) of the 174 bogus mutual fund claims
filed. The Trustee notified each claimant that his or her claim was allowed as a
claim for cash in the amount deposited with the Debtor for the purpose of
purchasing the bogus shares, minus any withdrawals or redemptions. The Trustee
also notified claimants that amounts shown on account statements as dividends or
interest earned on the fictitious funds were not allowable customer claims. Most
claimants accepted the Trustee’s determination of their claims. In fact, of all the
bogus mutual fund claims determined, only these fourteen Claimants objected to
the Trustee’s determination by filing written objections to be resolved pursuant to
the Claims Resolution Procedures set forth in the Administrative Order. Because
the limit of protection for securities claims is higher than the limit on cash claims,
these Claimants, though seeking only cash, sought to have their claims treated as
claims for return of securities in order to be eligible for the higher level of SIPC
cash advance.’

Claimants’ objections arise from the fact that they were fraudulently induced
by Goren or his employees to part with cash or other property that supposedly was
to be invested in one or more bogus mutual funds—often called the New Age
Securities Money Market Fund but sometimes called something else—allegedly
held at Fleet Bank.” Claimants deposited money with New Age for investment in

the bogus mutual funds based on Goren’s misrepresentations. Allegedly, Goren

4. Thirteen of the objecting Claimants have claims that are over the $100,000
limit that SIPC may advance to satisfy claims for cash.

5. Goren also offered investors a tax-free version of the New Age Money Market
Fund and another fictitious fund which he called the New Times Prime Money
Market Fund.
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misrepresented that the bogus mutual funds yielded higher interest rates than bank
money market funds, that they would maintain constant share values of $1.00 per
share, and that they would provide returns that were better than bank deposits.
Goren promised the Claimants returns 1 to 1 % points higher than most bank
savings accounts; these promised returns ranged from 5 % to 6 ¥ percent. The
bogus mutual funds never existed; they were never organized as mutual funds,
registered with the SEC, or issued prospectuses for investors as required by the
Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Company Act of 1940. The cash that
Goren received for the bogus mutual funds was used to support his lavish lifestyle,
to finance the Debtor’s operating costs, to fund returns of principél, or to make
supposed Interest payments on promissory notes and to redeem mutual funds®

allegedly purchased on behalf of other claimants.

6. Goren also purported to sell to other claimants shares in mutual funds that
actually existed. Investors in this fund scheme believed that Goren was
purchasing bona fide mutual funds (e.g., Vanguard, Putnam, Kemper) for their
accounts and received written confirmations of such purchases and monthly
account statements. Although these transactions were never executed, the
information provided on the account and confirmation statements mirrored
what would have happened had the given transaction been executed. Goren
tracked each mutual fund that he purported to purchase on behalf of an
investor in order to generate account statements that accurately reflected the
value of the bona fide mutual fund in question. Because real securities existed
at all times and could be purchased to satisfy these claims to complete the
claimants’ transactions with the Debtor, the Trustee has treated these claims as
securities claims, rather than cash claims. In contrast to the situation with the
Claimants in this appeal, claimants checking on their mutual funds would
receive every indication that the fund existed, complied with all regulatory
requirements and performed as Goren represented. Moreover, unlike the
situation with respect to Claimants here, the Trustee could identify the shares
of the real securities involved and use SIPC advances to purchase missing
securities to return to claimants.
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Pursuant to the Claims Resolution Procedures set forth in the Administrative
Order, a hearing was held before the Honorable Stan Bernstein on June 25, 2001,
to resolve the Claimants’ objections. (Hr’g Tr., J.A. 511.) Judge Bemstein issued
a “preliminary decision” in December 2001 denying the Trustee’s motion to
uphold his determination with regard to these Claimants. (Prelim. Op., J.A. 735.)
Subsequently, on January 30, 2002, Judge Bernstein sua sponte recused himself
from the case and vacated his preliminary decision. (Order Withdrawing Bench
Op. and Recusing Ct., J.A. 750.) Claimants sought reconsideration of Judge
Bernstein’s recusal. (Claimants’ Joint Mot. Recons., J.A. 757.) Judge Bernstein
denied their motion for reconsideration on February 19, 2002, and suggested to the
District Court that it withdraw the reference as to this contested matter. (Mem. and
Order Den. Recons., J.A. 759.) On March 6, 2002, Judge Platt withdrew the
reference and agreed to decide the issue de novo. (Mem. and Order, J.A. 761.)

Subsequently, on May 28, 2002, Judge Platt issued a Memorandum and
Order denying the Trustee’s motion to uphold his determinations and sustaining
the Claimants’ objections. (Mem. and Order, J.A. 773.) The District Court held
that the receipt of bogus share purchase confirmations and monthly statements
established that Claimants somehow had securities claims, whether or not the
transactions confirmed involved actual securities. In addition, because the account
statements indicated that bogus dividends were being reinvested to purchase
additional bogus shares of the bogus mutual funds, the District Court held that the
Claimants also were entitled to satisfaction of the fictitious dividends as securities
claims. According to the District Court, the receipt of confirmation and account

statements confirming only the purchase of bogus shares and reinvestment of
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bogus dividends created a legitimate expectation in Claimants that they held

.. . . 7
secunties 1n their accounts.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court ignored the relevant case law and the provisions of SIPA
dealing with the satisfaction of customer claims, as well as SIPA’s legislative
history and purpose, in holding that the issuance of a fictitious confirmation of the
purchase of a non-existent mutual fund gives rise to a claim for securities under
SIPA. All of the case law on point -- which the District Court did not discuss or
even cite -- makes clear that the proper way to treat claims for fictitious securnties
consistent with SIPA is for the Trustee to determine (as here) that Claimants have
net equity claims for cash equal to the amounts deposited with the broker-dealer
minus any withdrawals or redemptions. The decisions in these cases reach the
only result that is consistent with the language of SIPA, its legislative history and
purpose, and the federal securities laws of which SIPA is a part.

SIPA protects the “custodial” function broker-dealers perform for claimants
and remedies claimants’ losses by having the Trustee return to them the actual
property that the broker-dealer should be holding for them in their accounts.
Where a claimant’s account should contain certain existent securities, but does not,

the Trustee 1s authorized to use SIPC cash advances—up to $500,000—to purchase

7. Inits May 28, 2002, Memorandum and Order, the District Court purported to
calculate what each Clamant had claimed. Upon review of the District
Court’s decision, the parties realized that the District Court had improperly
calculated some of the ciaims. The Trustee and Claimants entered into a
Stipulation, which was subsequently signed by the District Court, agreeing on
amounts that would be owed to Claimants if their claims were for securities
and if they were entitled to the payment of non-existent dividends.
(Stipulation Regarding Total Claimants’ Claims, J.A. 794.)

9
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securities of the “same class and series of an issuer” on the open market to the
extent practicable to return to the claimant. SIPA §§ 78fff-1(b), 78fff-2(d). If the
security in question is for some reason not available for purchase, SIPA authorizes
the Trustee to provide cash in lieu of the security to the claimant based on the
security’s filing date market value. SIPA §§ 78fff-2(b), 78111(11). Where a
claimant’s account should contain cash, but does not, the Trustee is authorized to
use SIPC cash advances—up to $100,000—to return to the claimant. SIPA §
78ft-3(a)(1).

Though classifying Claimants’ claims as claims for cash results in a lower
SIPC advance being made to Claimants in satisfaction of their customer claims,
this result is unavoidable. Since SIPA’s enactment more than thirty years ago, a
distinction has existed between the amount SIPC can advance to a SIPA Trustee to
pay a claim for return of securities as opposed to a claim for return of cash. This
distinction exists so that cash on deposit with a broker-dealer will not be better
protected than cash deposited with a federally-insured bank, a situation that
Congress believed would place the federally regulated banking system at a
disadvantage to the federally regulated securities broker-dealer system. SIPA is a
custodial statute which was never intended to be a panacea that protects against
unscrupulous brokers’ frauds. The theory behind the higher limit on securities
claims is that a SIPA Trustee ordinarily will use the higher cash advance from
SIPC to purchase identifiable securities for return to claimants who hold securities
claims. In contrast, claimants whose broker-dealer could only have been holding
cash for them will receive a SIPC cash advance similar to what the FDIC would
pay for cash held in a bank account.

As all the cases on point hold, Claimants only can have claims for return of
“cash” and not for return of “securities” where they deposit money with a broker-

dealer for the purchase of non-existent or fictitious securities. A fictitious security,

10
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such as the bogus mutual funds touted by Goren, is simply not a “security” covered
by SIPA. It is not a security that the broker-dealer could have purchased. In turn,
it cannot be returned to, or purchased on the open market for, a claimant by a SIPA
trustee. A SIPA trustee cannot assign a filing date value (other than “zero”) to a
fictitious security or find a “similar” security to replace it without compounding
the fiction.

Moreover, classifying the claims as claims for cash results in Claimants
being afforded some degree of SIPA protection. If Claimants’ claims in fact had
been for securities, no delivery could have been made by the Trustee because no
security existed to deliver. Instead, the statute would require the Trustee to treat
the non-existent fund as “unavailable” and to satisfy the claim with cash in lieu of
the non-existent security. Pursuant to the net equity definition in SIPA, the amount
remitted to Claimants would be the filing date value of the bogus mutual fund.

The filing date value of the bogus mutual fund is not the fraudulent value assigned
to it by Goren on fictitious account statements, as the District Court held. Rather,
it is the amount that would have been owed to Claimants had the debtor liquidated
“by sale or purchase on the filing date, all securities positions of such customer”
less any net indebtedness owed by the customer. SIPA § 78111(11). Under this
calculation the amount owed to Claimants would be zero. Thus, although
classifying the Claimants’ net equity claims as claims for securities would allow
for the higher upper limit on SIPA protection to apply, it also would result in the
Claimants having zero net equity claims.

The decision below ignores, and to a large extent undermines, the scheme of
the securities laws, of which SIPA is a part. Indeed, the decision is an open
invitation to fraud by broker-dealers and encourages a lack of vigilance by

investors. Before something can be recognized as a security under SIPA, it must
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have the basic requisites of a security under federal laws. The bogus mutual funds
had none of these requisites.

There is no dispute that Claimants had the intent to deposit funds to purchase
securities and therefore became “customers” of the Debtor entitled to some degree
of SIPA protection. But no purchase of any actual security was ever entered into
on their behalf or confirmed to them. Nor did the bogus mutual funds listed on
their confirmations have any of the indicia of a real security that a prudent investor
might have expected. For example, the account statement prices of the securities
were not listed in newspapers or other sources. There were no prospectuses to
review. No regulatory authority had any record of the funds’ existence.

If a claim for securities can exist for unregistered, non-existent phantom
entities, investors will have every incentive to believe unscrupulous brokers or
even to go along with a wink and a nod as long as they receive a written
confirmation or account statement. Such actions make the SIPC fund, which is
funded by the legitimate portion of the securities industry, the guarantor of fraud
and imprudence and turns the theory of investor protection and system of investor
safeguards on its head. Allowing claims for fictitious securities as securities
claims does not foster SIPA’s goal of encouraging individuals to trade in the public
securities market, but rather fosters fraud, and promotes a lack of vigilance among
investors.

The District Court relied entirely on the Series 500 Rules to mandate that the
Trustee treat the disputed claims as claims for securities. This reliance was
manifest error. The Series 500 Rules do not govern a situation such as the one
here, where the confirmation received purported to confirm the purchase of a non-
existent security. The Series 500 Rules were passed for a limited purpose: to deal
with the classification of claims where the trade date of a securities transaction (i.e.

purchase or sale) straddled the filing date of the SIPA liquidation. The Series 500
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rules do not rewrite the nation’s securities laws to make fraudulent transactions
bona fide or convert non-existent securities into real ones. The Series 500 Rules
create bright-line, black letter rules for determining when an actual security has
been purchased or sold for a customer. The Series 500 Rules have no bearing on
determining whether a claimant has a customer claim for the return of fictitious
securities rather than a claim for the return of funds deposited to purchase the
fictitious securities. In order for Series 500 Rules to apply, the security in question
must exist.

Finally, the District Court compounded the fiction and distortion of SIPA
protection by adding non-existent interest and dividends to the supposed value of
wholly fictitious securities. Like piling Pelion on Ossa, this may seem possible in
a metaphorical world but is not possible in the real world of the securities laws and
not under a statute crafted as precisely as SIPA. The case law under the statute is
clear that non-existent dividends or interest supposedly “earned” on non-existent

shares are not customer claims protected by SIPA.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

This Court reviews the District Court’s conclusions of law de novo. Gurary
v. Nu Tech Bio Med, Inc., 303 F.3d 212, 219 (2d Cir. 2002); Harris Trust & Sav.
Bank v. John Hancock Mut. Life Ins. Co., 302 F.3d 18, 26 (2d Cir. 2002). There

are no contested facts 1n this case.
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ARGUMENT

L THE TRUSTEE CORRECTLY DETERMINED THAT
THE DISPUTED CLAIMS SHOULD BE TREATED AS
CLAIMS FOR CASH AND NOT CLAIMS FOR THE
FICTITIOUS VALUE OF THE BOGUS MUTUAL FUND.

The District Court ignored relevant case law, provisions of SIPA dealing

with the satisfaction of customer claims, as well as SIPA’s legislative history and
purpose, in holding that the confirmation of the purchase of non-existent mutual
funds gives rise to a claim for securities under SIPA. Under no circumstance can
the confirmation of the purchase of non-existent securities transform bogus mutual
funds into real ones. Claimants have conceded that the bogus mutual funds at issue
here did not exist. They cannot meet their burden of demonstrating that they have
claims for return of securities as opposed to claims for return of cash. SIPA

§ 78ftf-2(b); SIPC v. Stratton Oakmont, Inc., 229 B.R. 273, 278 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y.
1999) (“Claimants bear the burden of proving that they are the type of priority

creditors known as ‘customers’”); In re Adler Coleman Clearing Corp., 204 B.R.
111, 115 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1997) (burden of proof on claimants); see also SEC v.
Packer, Wilbur & Co., 498 F.2d 978 (2d Cir. 1974).

A. ALL CASE LAW ON POINT SUPPORTS THE
TRUSTEE’S DETERMINATIONS.

The central issue in this appeal is whether claims that are based on the

intended purchase of non-existent securities are claims for return of cash or claims

for return of securities under SIPA. Although this is an issue of first impression in

this Circuit, this exact question has been decided directly by two Courts of Appeals
and indirectly by a Bankruptcy Court. Both the Sixth and Third Circuits have held
that claimants who deposit money for the purchase of non-existent securities

whose purchase is later confirmed to them by the debtor have net equity claims for
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cash. Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Ret. Fund v, Appleton (In
re First Ohio Secs. Co.), 39 F.3d 1181, No. 93-3313, 1994 WL 599433, at *1 (6th
Cir. 1994) (unpublished opinion),’ cert. denied, 514 U.S. 1018 (1995); SEC v.
Aberdeen Secs., Co., 480 F.2d 1121, 1127 (3d Cir.), cert. denied sub nom.
Seligsohn v. SEC, 414 U.S. 1111 (1973).

In Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Retirement Fund,

investors believed that they had purchased, collectively, over $3 million worth of
“pooled certificates of deposit” offered by the debtor, First Ohio Securities
Company (“First Ohio™). Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Ret.
Fund, 1994 WL 599433, at *1. Gilmartin, the founder of First Ohio, sent investors

bogus purchase-confirmation notices and fictitious account statements, and used
the investors’ funds for his own personal use. Id. After SIPC initiated a
liquidation proceeding, the investors filed claims with the Trustee for
approximately $3 million in securities and cash. Id. The Trustee determined that
the securities in question never existed and therefore treated their claims as claims
for cash rather than for securities based on the information in the bogus account
statements and confirmations. Id. The Trustee rejected claimants arguments that
they had a legitimate expectation that their accounts contained securities. The

District Court agreed with the Trustee’s determination:

All of the rules and legislative history cited by appellants on the
legitimate expectations and satisfaction of claims for securities is

8. Appellants cite to this unpublished opinion of the Sixth Circuit (a copy of
which is contained in the addendum to the brief) because, as this Court has
previously recognized, “the Sixth Circuit allows parties (and, by extension,
courts) to cite its unpublished opinion when such opinions have precedential
value in relation to a material issue in a case and . . . there is no published
opinion that would serve as well.” United States v. Leon, 203 F.3d 162, 164
n.3 (2d Cir. 2000) (quoting 6th Circuit Rule 24(c)).
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determinative of a security of such type being in existence. Not only
were these “securities” never purchased, they never existed.
Therefore, with no evidence presented that would enable this Court to
find the non-existence of the securities clearly erroneous, the
conclusion of law that [claimants] were each entitled to one cash
claim was correct as a matter of law.

Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Ret. Fund v. Appleton (In re First
Ohio Secs. Co.), No. 92CV0349, at 3 (N.D. Ohio Feb. 18, 1993) (Lambros, J.)
(unpublished order)’.

On appeal, the Sixth Circuit affirmed, stating:

[u]nfortunately for the plaintiffs here, the record fully supports the
finding by the trustee and by both the bankruptcy and district courts
that the “pooled certificates of deposit” which were the subject of the
agreement between the plaintiffs and the broker-dealer not only were
not purchased by Gilmartin but, indeed, never even existed. Given
this fact, the only legal conclusion possible is that the claims against
First Ohio were ones “for cash” and not “for securities.” As the
district judge noted, SIPA is intended to protect investors against a
broker-dealer’s insolvencys; it is not designed to achieve restitution for
fraud.

Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Ret. Fund, 1994 WL 599433, at
*1 (emphasis added).

In SEC v. Aberdeen Securities Company, the claimant had purchased shares

of a prospective new issue. Aberdeen Secs., Co., 480 F.2d at 1127. The shares

were paid for, and the trade confirmed to the claimant by its broker, Aberdeen

Securities Co. (“Aberdeen”). Although Aberdeen remitted the funds to the broker-
dealer underwriting the offer, no certificates were received. Id. Instead, before the
stock could be issued, both the issuer and the underwriter went into bankruptcy. A

SIPA liquidation proceeding subsequently was initiated for Aberdeen, and the

9. A copy of Judge Lambros’ order is contained in the addendum to the brief.
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claimant filed a claim in that proceeding. Because the non-existent security had no
value, the Aberdeen Trustee determined that no payment could be made to the
claimant, a conclusion that was affirmed by the lower court. Id. On appeal, the

Third Circuit disagreed, commenting as follows:

because the facts demonstrate that since this particular stock was not
in existence, the purchase never could be made. [Claimants],
therefore, do not have a claim for the stock itself. . . . We have no
doubt, however, that the “dollar amount” of a customer’s account
includes his cash which the broker has, or should have, been holding. .
. . Thus, if under local law, or by virtue of regulations under which it
operated, the debtor was obligated to refund the $500 to the
[claimants] because of inability to deliver the Boatland stock, then
there would be a claim for cash properly included in the term “net
equity.”

480 F.2d at 1127 (following remand the Trustee returned to claimants the cash they

had deposited for the purchase of the Boatland stock).

In addition, in Appleton v. Hardy (In re First Ohio Secs., Co.), No. 590-
0072, Adv. No. 92-5085 (Bankr. N.D. Ohio 1992) (unpublished Order),'o the

claimants deposited $140,000 with the debtor for the purchase of securities which

included certificates of deposit (“CDs”) and a mutual fund, the “All America
Fund.” Id. at 2. The Trustee determined that the claimants had a net equity claim
for securities and paid them $141,203.58 (including interest). The Trustee made
this payment based on his belief that the CDs and the “All America Fund” actually
existed. Subsequently, the Trustee discovered that neither the CDs nor the All
America Fund existed. I1d. Because the securities were fictitious the Trustee
asserted that the claimants’ claim was not for securities but for cash and thus
subject to the $100,000 statutory limit on SIPC advances for cash claims. He

therefore filed a turnover proceeding to recover the $41,203.58 excess payment.

10. A copy of the Appleton order is contained in the addendum to the brief.
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Id. The claimants filed a motion to dismiss the Trustee’s action. Claimants argued
that the Trustee could not recover the excess payment on two grounds: (1) a SIPA
proceeding does not create an “estate” and pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code only
“property of the estate” is recoverable by a Trustee, and (2) even if an estate is
created, SIPC advances are not property of the estate. Id. After reviewing all the
relevant materials and construing the facts in the light most favorable to claimants,
the court held that the claimants’ arguments were “specious” and therefore denied
their motion to dismiss. Id. at 4. In doing so, the court implicitly acknowledged
that the Trustee had a right to recover the overpayment made to the claimants
based on his incorrect classification of their claim as one for securities when
neither the funds nor the CDs existed. Accord Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490
Severance & Ret. Fund, 1994 WL 599433, at *2 (affirming bankruptcy court’s and

district court’s decision to uphold Trustee’s determination that where certificates of
deposit did not exist claimants had claims for cash not securities).

In all of these cases the purchase of a non-existent security was confirmed to
the claimant. In all of these cases the courts relied on the fact that the security did
not exist in ruling that the claimant had a claim for the return of cash and not on
the existence, or lack of, a confirmation statement. These cases are directly on
point and reach the only result that 1s consistent with SIPA, its purposes and
legislative history and the securities regulatory scheme of which SIPA is a part.
See also, SIPC v, Old Naples Secs.., Inc., (In re Old Naples Secs.. Inc.), 218 B.R.
981, 985-86 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 1998), aff’d, 223 F.3d 1296 (11th Cir. 2000)

(finding that claimants had asserted customer claim for cash in situation where
claimants had received monthly account statements indicating investments in non-
specified bonds but where no such bonds were “in fact” purchased); SIPC v.

Pepperdine Univ.. (In re Brentwood Secs., Inc.), 925 F.2d 325, 329 (9th Cir. 1991)

(debtor broker-dealer did not hold shares of a security for a claimant where the

18
NY 679376_7 i



shares did not issue); SIPC v. C.J. Wright & Co., (In re C.J. Wright), 162 B.R. 597,
610 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 1993) (because debtor misappropriated their money and

certificates of deposit were not purchased claimants had a claim for the principal
they invested and not for the interest promised); In re Investors Sec, Corp., 6 B.R.
415, 419-20 (Bankr. W.D. Pa. 1980) (where claimants intended to purchase bona

fide certificates of deposit and had received interest payments on such purchases
for seven months, but where no such purchases had in fact been made, and where
certificate of deposit would have nonetheless matured into cash prior to the filing
date even if it had been purchased, claimants had a claim for cash); In re June S.
Jones Co., 52 B.R. 810, 813-14 (Bankr. D. Or. 1985) (distinguishing case from

Aberdeen and Investors based on the fact that June S. Jones’ claimants placed

orders to purchase bona fide securities even though they were not actually

purchased, while claimants in Aberdeen and Investors placed orders to purchase

non-existent securities (Aberdeen) or securities that would have matured into cash

on the filing date (Investors)).

B.  SIPA AND ITS LEGISLATIVE HISTORY AND
PURPOSE SUPPORT THE TRUSTEE’S
DETERMINATIONS.

In interpreting SIPA, this Court must look first to its language. See Reiter v.
Sonotone Corp., 442 U.S. 330, 337 (1979); SEC v. Ambassador Church Fin./Dev.
Group, Inc., 679 F.2d 608, 611 (6th Cir. 1982); In re MV Secs., Inc., 48 B.R. 156,
159 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1985). The language of SIPA makes clear that whether a

customer has a “cash” or a “securities” claim depends upon whether his or her “net
equity” is based on cash or securities as shown on the debtor’s books and records
or as otherwise established to the satisfaction of the Trustee. SIPA § 78fff-2(b).
See In re Bell & Beckwith, 937 F.2d 1104, 1106 (6th Cir. 1991); SEC v. Albert &
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Maguire Secs. Co., 378 F. Supp. 906, 911 (E.D. Pa. 1974).."" The fact that

Claimants deposited monies with the Debtor for the purpose of purchasing

securities qualifies them as “customers,” but this does not change the fictitious
transaction confirmed to them—a purported purchase of a bogus security—into the
purchase of a real security that can be returned to them. See SIPA § 78111(2).
Indisputably, the bogus mutual fund at issue here was not a bona fide fund. Had it
been, it would have been required to: (1) register with the SEC pursuant to Section
8 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”), (2) comply with the
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 and periodic reporting
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (3) issue a prospectus
for investors. In fact, Claimants conceded and the District Court acknowledged

that the bogus mutual funds did not exist. SEC v. Goren, 206 F. Supp. 2d 344, 351

(E.D.N.Y. 2002). Since no securities ever existed, the Claimants’ net equity
claims had to be for cash.

Congress has mandated in clear and specific terms how a claimant’s “net
equity” is to be determined for purposes of permitting SIPC cash advances, and the
courts as well as SIPA trustees and SIPC itself must adhere to that language. A
claimant’s net equity claim is determined by “calculating the sum which would
have been owed by the debtor to such customer if the debtor had liquidated, by sale

or purchase on the filing date, all securities position of such customer” minus any

11. In pertinent part, section 78fff-2(b) of SIPA provides:

After receipt of a written statement of claim . . . , the trustee shall promptly
discharge, in accordance with the provisions of this section, all obligations
of the debtor to a customer relating to, or net equity claims based upon,
securities or cash, by the delivery of securities or the making of payment to
or for the account of such customer . . . insofar as such obligations are
ascertainable from the books and records of the debtor or are otherwise
established to the satisfaction of the trustee.
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indebtedness. SIPA § 7811(11). Here, there were no securities that the Debtor
could have liquidated by sale on the filing date. Instead, Claimants’ accounts
should have contained the cash that they had deposited with the Debtor to purchase
securities. The fact that Claimants may have thought, reasonably or otherwise, that
their accounts contained securities does not alter the nature of their net equity
claims. Nowhere in the net equity definition does SIPA state that whether a
claimant has a net equity claim for cash or securities depends upon his or her
subjective legitimate expectation. The legislative history of SIPA does not support

such a proposition.

1. SIPA’s Legislative History Confirms that
Claimants have Claims for Cash.

With roots in Section 60e of the Bankruptcy Act, a reclamation statute, SIPA
is a federal statutory scheme designed to restore “customers” to the position they
were 1n vis a vis their broker-dealer before it was placed in liquidation. A SIPA
“customer” claim is similar to a claim for reclamation. As this Court has
recognized, “SIPA was not designed to provide full protection to all victims of a
brokerage collapse.” SEC v. Packer, Wilbur & Co., 498 F.2d 978, 983 (2d Cir.
1974) (emphasis added). See SIPC v. Morgan, Kennedy & Co., 533 F.2d 1314,
1317, n.4 (2d Cir.), cert. denied, 426 U.S. 936 (1976) (noting that Congress

enacted SIPA with the intent to protect the small investor only as is apparent in that

at the time 1t was enacted 90% of the total dollar value of all accounts were
unprotected); Schultz v. Omni Mut. Inc., No. 93-3700, 1993 WL 546671, at *1
(S.D.N.Y. Dec. 30, 1993) (noting that protections of SIPA are limited and SIPC

“does not function as an insurer of all claims against an insolvent broker™). See

also In re A.R. Baron & Co., 226 B.R. 790, 793 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1998)

(explaining that “SIPA is a federal statutory scheme designed to afford limited

financial protection to the customers of registered broker-dealers who experience
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financial difficulty”); In re Adler Coleman Clearing Corp., 195 B.R. 266, 273
(Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1996) (recognizing that “SIPC’s role in a SIPA liquidation is

limited by statute; it does not attempt to make all customers whole.”)." Instead,

SIPA remedies customers’ losses by having the Trustee return to them the actual
property that the broker should have been holding for them in their accounts and
that they could have claimed from the broker-dealer on the filing date. See SEC v.
S.J. Salmon & Co., 375 F. Supp. 867, 871 (S.D.N.Y. 1974); SEC v. Howard
Lawrence & Co., 74 Civ. 193, 1975 Bankr. LEXIS 15, at *7 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y.
1975) (“The Act is designed to remedy situations where the loss arises diréctly
from the insolvency of the broker-dealer.”); S. Rep. No. 95-763 at 2 (1978),
reprinted in 1978 U.S.C.C.A.N. 764. Where a customer’s account should contain

certain real securities, but does not, the Trustee is authorized to use SIPC cash
advances only to purchase securities of the “same class and series of an issuer” on
the open market to the extent practicable. SIPA §§ 78fff-1(b), 78fff-2(d). See In
re Adler Coleman Clearing Corp., 195 B.R. 266, 273 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1996)

(“The distribution of a security of the same class and series of an issuer as the

12, As discussed earlier, SIPA was intended to insure against such practices as the
broker-dealers’ misappropriation of customer property in its possession, and
failure to properly segregate securities entrusted to the broker-dealer for
safekeeping, sale, or as collateral for margin loans. SIPA was not intended to
provide protection in addition to that already provided by law for other types
of claims against broker-dealers such as fraud and breach of contract.
Hearings on Securities Investor Protection Act Before the Subcomm. on
Commerce and Fin. of the House Comm. on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce, 91st Cong. 2d Sess., at 230 (1970). See In re Adler Coleman
Clearing Corp., 198 B.R. 70, 75 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1996) (No SIPA protection
for claims based on fraud or breach of contract.); Howard Lawrence Co., 1975
Bankr. LEXIS 15, at *7 (“The SIPA does not protect customer claims based
on fraud or breach of contract.”).
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security credited to the customer’s account on the filing date is deemed to satisfy

that customer’s claim for that security.”) (Emphasis added).

In short, a SIPA Trustee is authorized to step into the shoes of the debtor and
return the property the broker-dealer should have been holding on the filing date to
the claimant. Where there is no issuer and no covered security of any class or
series, the property that can be returned can only be the cash originally entrusted to
the broker-dealer by the customer. There is no authority anywhere in the statute,
case law, or Series 500 Rules for a Trustee to use cash advances to pretend to
purchase nonexistent securities.

The statute’s legislative history unambiguously reflects that the goal of a
SIPA proceeding is to restore customers as nearly as possible their accounts as they

actually existed on the filing date:

Under present law, because securities belonging to customers may
have been lost, improper.y hypothecated, misappropriated, never
purchased or even stolen, it is not always possible to provide to
customers that which they expect to receive, that is, securities which
they maintained in their brokerage account. Instead, when the
customer claims for a security exceed the supply available to the
trustee in the debtor’s estate, then customers generally receive pro rata
portions of the securities claims, and as to any remainder, they receive
cash based on the market value as of the filing date. . . . A principal
underlying purpose of the bill is to permit a customer to receive
securities to the maximum extent possible instead of cash, in
satisfaction of a claim for securities. By seeking to make customer
accounts whole and returning them to customers in the form they
existed on the filing date, the amendments not only would satisfy the
customers’ legitimate expectations, but also would restore the
customer to his position prior to the broker-dealer’s financial
difficulties.

" S. Rep. No. 95-763 at 2 (1978), reprinted in 1978 U.S.C.C.A.N. 765 (emphasis
added).
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Thus, in most instances SIPA requires that securities that actually exist but are not
in the broker-dealer’s possession be purchased for customers using SIPC’s funds if
necessary." It is for this reason that the limit on advances on securities is higher
than for claims involving return of cash while SIPA advances for cash are subject

to the same limitations as FDIC protection for cash.'

13. This intent is clearly evidenced in the following statement:

In broad terms, there are three problems for which the present Act does not
provide adequate solutions. The First is that customers generally expect to
receive what is in their accounts when the member stops doing business. If
John Q. Investor has 100 fully-paid shares of IBM and a credit balance of
$200 in his account, he expects to receive from the trustee a stock
certificate for 100 shares of IBM and a check for $200. But in many
instances that has not always been possible because securities have been
lost, improperly hypothecated, misappropriated, never purchased, or even
stolen. When there are valid claims for more IBM stock than is on hand,
under the present status John Q. will receive only a pro rata share of his
100 shares. For the remainder of the shares due him, he will receive cash
in lieu of stock based on the market price on the date the liquidation
proceeding is initiated. Naturally, if IBM stock goes up in price while
John Q. is waiting to have his claim settled, he will be decidedly unhappy
with the check he receives from the trustee. On the other hand, if IBM
declines in price, we may receive no complaints from John Q.

Statement by Hugh F. Owens, Chairman, SIPC Before the Subcommittee on
Consumer Protection and Fin. Comm. on Interstate and Foreign Comm.,
House of Representatives, Aug. 1, 1977, 95" Cong. 1% Sess. on H.R. 8331 at
82.

14. SIPA allows a Trustee to satisfy a customer claim for securities by paying the
customer the filing date value of the securities in question in instances where
the purchase of the securities would be detrimental to the estate. The 1978
Amendments’ legislative history provides:

Our expectation is that, in almost all cases, a customer’s claim for
securities would be satisfied by the delivery of securities, and, where
necessary, to accomplish this the trustee would go into the open market
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In enacting SIPA, Congress provided the exclusive framework under which
qualified customer claims are satisfied. The District Court ignored the interlocking
provisions of SIPA that provide for the calculation and satisfaction of “securities”
claims discussed above and substituted its own. According to the District Court,
the Trustee should treat Claimants’ claims as securities claims and satisfy them by
paying cash equal to the fictitious value of the bogus mutual funds as shown on the
Claimants’ final account statements, amounts that include interest and dividends
never in fact earned or received by the Debtor. Goren, 206 F. Supp. 2d at 350. As
the case law cited above recognizes, however, the option to satisfy claims for
securities with cash in lieu of securities does not apply where the security in
question 1s nonexistent.

As recognized in Aberdeen Securities, accepting a contrary interpretation

would not benefit Claimants. In view of the net equity definition and section 78fff-
2(b) which, in relevant part, provides that for “purposes of distributing securities to

customers, all securities shall be valued as of the close of business on the filing

date,” the amount remitted to the customer for the non-existent shares would be the
filing date market value of the non-existent fund. SIPA § 78fff-2(b) (emphasis

added). The filing date market value of the non-existent fund is not the fraudulent

and purchase securities. We believe, however, that it is advisable to
provide that the trustee would not be required to purchase securities where
that could not be done in a fair and orderly market. One chief concern is
that the trustee not be required to make purchases in a market which is
being improperly controlled or manipulated. This may be of particular
significance where the member being liquidated was a market maker.
Under those circumstances, the trustee would decline to purchase the
needed securities and would instead satisfy the claim by paying cash in lieu
of the securities based on the market value of the securities on the filing
date.

1977 H. Rep. at 41-42.
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value assigned to it by Goren on fictitious account statements as the District Court
held. Rather, it is the amount that would have been owed to Claimants had the
Debtor liquidated “by sale or purchase on the filing date, all [of their] securities
positions™ less any net indebtedness owed by them. SIPA § 78l11(1 1). Under this
calculation the amount owed to Claimants for non-existent securities with no
market valué would be zero. Thus, although classifying the Claimants’ net equity
claims as claims for securities would allow for the higher upper limit on SIPA
protection to apply, it would also result in the Claimants having net equity claims

of zero. As the Third Circuit held in Aberdeen Securities, treatment of such claims

as for cash rather than securities is the more equitable result and the only result

consistent with the statutes. See Aberdeen Secs., Co., 480 F.2d at 1127.

The Trustee and SIPC closely followed the statute and relevant case law and
in fact have gone as far as possible to treat these and other claimants not only fairly
but as generously as the statute can possibly allow. For example, had the Trustee
with SIPC’s consent not moved for substantive consolidation, these and other
claimants would have no claims against New Times alone and would have
recovered nothing for their losses.

The distinction between cash being held in an account and securities being
held in an account as of the filing date of a SIPA proceeding is an integral part of
the statute that courts cannot ignore. From its inception, Congress distinguished
between cash claims and securities claims by providing for a greater SIPC advance
in the event of the broker-dealer’s collapse for securities claims than for cash
claims. The distinction between the protection afforded to cash claimants and
securities claimants in the context of a SIPA liquidation came about because
Congress decided that the protection SIPA afforded to the cash component of an
investor’s claim should not be greater than what was provided by the FDIC to cash

held in bank accounts. See SIPA Amendments: Hearing Before the Subcomm. on
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Securities of the Comm. on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs, H.R. 8331, 95%

Cong. 2d Sess. 2 (1978) (opening statement of Senator Williams) (noting that
increase in coverage for cash to $100,000 from $40,000 would guarantee investors
the “same insurance protection for their cash under SIPC as bank and savings

depositors receive under FDIC coverage”); SIPA Amendments: Hearings on H.R.

6831 Before the Subcomm. on Consumer Protection and Fin. of the Comm. on

Interstate and Foreign Commerce, 96" Cong., 2d Sess. 17, 19 (1980) (statement of

Hugh F. Owens, Chairman Securities Investor Protection Corporation) (noting that
cash coverage for cash claims has historically been on a level with the coverage for
the FDIC and FSLIC programs and that “one of the purposes of increasing the
Insurance on securities maintained by customers and member brokers is to
accomplish immobilization of the stock certificate”); SIPA: Hearings on H.R.
13308, H.R. 17585, H.R. 18081, H.R. 18109, and 18458 Before the Subcomm. on

Commerce and Fin. of the House Comm. and Interstate and Foreien Commerce,

91% Cong., 2d Sess. 149 (1970) (letter from Roy T. Englert, Acting General

Counsel of Department of the Treasury). The distinction has been maintained
every time that SIPA has been amended and coverage increased. SIPA coverage
for cash claims is always equal to what the FDIC provides to cash held in bank
accounts. Currently claims for cash are entitled to $100,000 SIPC advance and
claims for securities are entitled to $500,000 STPC advance. These kinds of
distinctions are inherent under the statute. Courts cannot obliterate them by
creating legal fictions to provide more protection to cash claimants by classifying
them as securities claimants where no security was or could have been held in the

account.
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2. Following the Statutory Definitions and
Case Law 1s Consistent with the Policies of
the Nation’s Securities Laws of which SIPA
1s a Part,

The entire federal securities regulatory scheme of which SIPA is a part
supports the basic principle that non-existent securities cannot be treated as if they
were real. To protect mutual fund investors, the federal securities laws impose
several layers of regulation. While the Securities Act of 1933 (the 1933 Act”) and
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act”) regulate the sale of mutual
funds, because mutual funds are investment companies, the Investment Company
Act 0f 1940 (the “1940 Act”) is the primary federal securities law regulating them.
See David E. Riggs, Securities Regulation of Mutual Funds: A Banker’s Primer,
113 Banking L. J. 864, 865 (Oct. 1996) (hereinafter “Securities Regulation”).
Pursuant to the 1940 Act and the 1933 Act, mutual funds must be registered with

the SEC and must issue a prospectus that has gone through the 1933 Act
registration procedures administered by the SEC in selling its shares. Under the
1940 Act, a mutual fund prospectus must set forth the fund’s investment objective
and investment policies. See Investment Company Act §§ 8(b)(2), (b)(3), &
13(a)(3). The requirements imposed by the Acts are intended to facititate informed
investment decisions and protect investors by providing them with material

information concerning initial public offerings of securities. See Securities

Regulation, 113 Bank. L. J. at 865-66. Information regarding the market value of
money market funds that are organized as mutual funds and comport to the
requirements of the Securities Acts is publicly available. Treating the bogus mutual
funds at issue here as bona fide securities in ofder to gain higher coverage for
Claimants undermines SIPA, the 1933 and 1940 Acts.

By ignoring these requirements, the District Court’s decision, if upheld,

would lead to absurd and self-defeating results. Under the District Court’s holding
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a broker can promise anything in terms of returns, call it a security, confirm its
purchase, and claimants would have a claim for the fraudulent cash value of the
non-existent security, together with any promised returns. Under the District
Court’s holding there is absolutely no incentive for investors to check or insist on
receiving documents such as prospectuses, quarterly reports, etc., which are the
hallmarks of bona fide securities and the foundation for investor protection. It
becomes easy for brokers to commit fraud and even easier for those who are
promised better than normal returns to suppress their suspicions. The District
Court’s holding invites fraud and imprudence, encourages a lack of investor
vigilance and circumvents the entire regulatory scheme, which requires that mutual
funds be registered with the SEC and use a prospectus that has gone through the
1933 Act registration procedures administered by the SEC in selling its shares.
Contrary to its belief, the District Court’s holding does not promote investor
confidence in the public securities market, but rather encourages investors to invest
in risky, oftentimes fraudulent securities. Clearly, encouraging fraud and reckless
investing is contrary to the aims of SIPA.

As this Court has recognized, SIPA does not provide general insurance
against investment risk or even investment fraud, and does not provide special
protection for general creditors of the broker, however meritorious their claims.
See SEC v. F.O. Baroff Co., 497 F.2d 280, 283 (2d Cir. 1974) (citing assurances in

legislative history that SIPA “is not to be a bailout operation; it is to protect the
public customers”); accord SIPC v. Wise (In re Stalvey & Assocs.), 750 F.2d 464,
472-73 (5th Cir. 1985) (stating that “[t]he statutory scheme envisioned by the

drafters of the statute was to protect persons buying and selling securities through a
stockbroker” and that “there is evidence in the legislative history that Congress
believed that the SIPA was only an ‘interim step’ that would not provide complete

protection for losses occasioned by the failure of broker-dealer firms”). Given
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SIPA’s limited protections, it is unavoidable that all claimants will not be fully
satisfied for their losses by SIPA."> Even claims based upon a Debtor’s most
egregious acts which result in sigmficant monetary losses to the investor will not
be compensable under SIPA. In explaining this limited protection under SIPA, this
Court stated in SEC v. Packer, Wilbur & Co., that:

[A]rguments based solely on the equities are not, standing alone,
persuasive. If equity were the [sole] criterion, most customers and
creditors of . . . [the debtor] would be entitled to reimbursement for
their losses. Experience, on the other hand, counsels that they will
have to settle for much less. SIPA was not designed to provide full
protection to all victims of a brokerage collapse.

498 F.2d at 983. In short, customers under SIPA are only entitled to the specific
relief afforded under SIPA—the return of their filing date “net equity.” See SIPA
§§ 78fff(a)(1), 78fff-2(b). Here, there are not and never have been any securities
covered by SIPA that could be returned to Claimants and Claimants’ net equities
were correctly determined by the Trustee to consist of monies deposited by the

Claimants for the purchase of non-existent securities.

15. The fact that Claimants’ allowable customer claims are greater than amounts
SIPC can advance in satisfaction of such claims does not mean that they will
never be fully satisfied for their losses. Simply because Claimants will not be
fully satisfied for losses they incurred as a result of Goren’s fraudulent scheme
from SIPC or the fund of customer property does not mean that they will
never be made whole. These claimants are entitled to share in the general
estate of the Debtor. See SIPA § 78fff-2(c)(1). Whether Claimants will
ultimately recover for the losses they incurred depends in large part on the
Trustee’s success in marshailing assets for the estate and in pending class
action filed by Claimants counsel here on behalf of all defendant New
Times/New Age investors. See Gervis v. Berg, No. 00-CV-3362 (E.D.N.Y.
filed June 9, 2000).
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C. THE SERIES 500 RULES DO NOT APPLY TO
TRANSACTIONS IN BOGUS SECURITIES.

The District Court ignored the only case law directly on point, as well as the

wording of SIPA and its relevant legislative history, when it applied the Series 500
Rules to the facts of this case. The Series 500 Rules apply in determining whether

a “securities transaction gives rise to a ‘claim for cash’ or a ‘claim for securities’.”
17 C.F.R. § 300.500 (emphasis added). See Inre A.R. Baron & Co., 226 B.R. 790,
796 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1998). By definition, in order for the Series 500 Rules to
apply, a “securities transaction” must exist. See 53 Fed. Reg. 10368 (Mar. 31,

1998) (a review of the cases giving rise to the Series 500 Rules reveals that in no
instance was the security in question fictitious). The limited purpose for which the
Series 500 Rules were adopted reinforces this basic point.

Prior to the enactment of the Series 500 Rules, SIPC and SIPA trustees
frequently litigated whether SIPA customer claims were claims for cash or claims
for securities where a security transaction (i.e. purchase or sale of a security)

straddled the filing date. 53 Fed. Reg. 10368 (Mar. 31, 1988)."° See Murray v.

16. Prior to the Series 500 Rules, customers sometimes objected to having their
claim deemed a claim for cash for a securities purchase ordered but not
completed by the filing date when their claim exceeded the maximum amount
SIPC could advance to satisfy a cash claim. See, e.g., Murray v. McGraw (In
re Bell & Beckwith), 821 F.2d 333, 335 (6th Cir. 1987); In re Investors Sec.
Corp., 6 B.R. 415 (Bankr. W.D. Pa. 1980); SIPC Proposed Rule, 1988 WL
236666 at *1 (1988). Conversely, customers would object to having their
claims treated as claims for securities when the underlying value of the
security in question had declined. See, e.g., In re June S. Jones Co., 52 B.R. at
813 (claimants argued they had claim for cash, not securities, where securities
were not purchased by the filing date, and securities had declined in value);
SIPC Proposed Rule, 1988 WL 236666 at *2. Customers wishing to disavow
securities purchased for their account in order to have a “claim for cash”
argued that a purchase of securities did not occur because their broker never
actually purchased the securities in question. See id. (emphasis added).
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McGraw (In re Bell & Beckwith), 821 F.2d 333 (6th Cir. 1987); SIPC v. Morgan,
Kennedy & Co., 3 B.C.D. 15 (S.D.N.Y. 1977); Gans v. Reddington (In re Weis
Secs, Inc.), [1974-1975 Transfer Binder], Fed. Sec. L. Rep. (CCH) 9 94,780
(S.D.N.Y. 1974); In re June S. Jones Co., 52 B.R. 810 (Bankr. D. Or. 1985). The

Series 500 Rules were promulgated to make the treatment of customers’ claims

where trades straddled the filing date consistent and to make the delivery of a
confirmation (which completes a contract for statute of fraud purposes) usually
controlling.

As SIPC stated in proposing the Series 500 Rules:

The proposed rules . . . give full effect to the Congressional intent to
“satisfy the customers’ legitimate expectations” and “restore the
customer to his position prior to the broker-dealer’s financial
difficulties.” S. Rep. No. 763, 95th Cong., 2d Sess. 2, [reprinted in], 3
U.S. Code Cong. & Admin. News, 95th Cong., 2d Sess., at 765
(1987). Indeed, the results reached under the proposed rules will
affirmatively effectuate the Commission’s previously stated view on

this subject. . . . [T]hat “[w]hen a customer sells securities, his claim
from that time until settlement and delivery of the funds is a claim for
cash.”

* %k k %k

[T]he Proposed Rules . . . will provide both nationwide uniformity
and reasonable certainty for customers as to how their claims will be
treated in the event of the failure of a SIPC member, and will provide
an objective standard for determining each claimant’s legitimate
expectations. . . .[TThe proposed rules are in complete accord with all
final judicial decisions on this subject, including cases decided prior
to SIPA’s enactment.

Similarly, customers wishing to disavow a sale of securities in order to have a
“claim for securities” argued that the securities were not actually sold by the
broker-dealer so that they were still in their account. See id. (emphasis
added).
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See Rules of the Securities Investor Protection Corp., 53 Fed. Reg. 1793, 1988 WL
236666, at *2-3 (1988) (hereinafter “SIPC Proposed Rules”) (emphasis added).
Thus, the District Court was correct that under the Series 500 Rules it is the receipt
of a confirmation of the purchase or sale of a security, rather than the execution of
a trade, that determines whether the customer’s net equity claim is one for cash or
securities. In this case, however, Claimants did not receive written confirmation of
the purchase or sale of an actual security and thus do not fall under the rubric of the
Series 500 Rules. See, e.g., Plumbers & Steamfitters Local 490 Severance & Ret.

Fund, No. 92CV0349, at 3 (finding that the rules and legislative history cited by
claimants on legitimate expectations is “determinative of a security of such type
being in existence”).

In In re June S. Jones Co., 52 B.R. 810 (Bankr. D. Or. 1985), a case decided
prior to SIPC’s adoption of the Series 500 Rules but noted in SIPC’s Proposed

Rules as being in accord with them, 1988 WL 236666, at *3, the court specifically
addressed whether customers were entitled to receive either cash or securities in
satisfaction of their SIPA claims in a situation where the security existed but had
not been purchased prior to the filing date. The claimants relied on Aberdeen

Securities and Investors Security Corp. to argue that they had net equity claims for

cash. The court rejected their argument noting the distinction between real and

non-existent securities:

In Aberdeen Securities and Investors Security, unlike this case, the
securities either never could be purchased, or, if purchased, would
have matured into cash prior to the filing date.

In re June S. Jones, 52 B.R. at 813 (emphasis added). When the securities actually

existed, the return of the securities, rather than treating the claims for cash, to the

customers furthered the express purpose of SIPA. Id. at 814.
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The two cases relied on by the District Court do not support the application
of the Series 500 Rules to the facts of this case. The first of these cases, SIPC v.
Oberweis Secs., Inc. (In re Oberweis Secs., Inc.) 135 B.R. 842 (Bankr. N.D. IIl.

1991), concerned whether a broker-dealer’s failure to execute claimants’ orders to

purchase bona fide money market funds entitled the claimants to interest and
dividends that would have been eamned had their instructions been followed, in
addition to the money they deposited to purchase the bona fide funds. The court
held that the claimants’ claims for interest and dividends that would have been
carned had the purchases been made were not “customer” claims protected by
SIPA, but rather, breach of contract or fraud claims. Id. at 846-47. The court

relied on the Aberdeen Securities case discussed earlier and relied on by the

Trustee, but disregarded by the District Court, in reaching its decision.
In the second case relied on by the District Court, In re Investors Center,

Inc., 129 B.R. 339 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y. 1991), the issue did not concern fictitious

securities, but rather, whether the confirmation of the sale of a bona fide security
gave rise to a claim for cash or a claim for securities. The court held that the
confirmation of the sale of bona fide securities gave rise to a claim for cash under
the Series 500 Rules, a proposition with which the Trustee had no issue and
applied many times in his determination of claims in this liquidation. Neither

Oberweis Securities nor Investors Center purported to answer or even address the

question that is at issue here.

In addition to its reliance on wholly irrelevant case law, the District Court
musinterpreted the basis of the Trustee’s determinations. The District Court stated
that the Trustee found that the Claimants did not have claims for securities because
the Debtor “embezzled” their assets instead of investing them in an existing money
market fund. The Trustee’s determination that Claimants had claims for cash did

not hinge on the Debtor’s embezzlement of funds, but in what the Claimants
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intended to purchase. Indeed, the Trustee allowed the claims here as customer
claims for all of the cash deposited by Claimants, less any withdrawals or
redemptions. He also allowed claims for confirmed purchases of bona fide mutual
funds that could be identified and purchased on the open market, but were never in
fact purchased because Goren embezzled the funds, as claims for securities. Here,
Claimants intended to purchase a fund that in fact did not exist. The Debtor, even
if it had not embezzled their funds, could never have purchased the bogus mutual
funds for them. The only expectation that Claimants objectively could have had,
that SIPA is designed to address, was that their money would be available for
return to them. In short, it is not the fact that funds were “embezzled” that dictates
the result here. It is the wording of the SIPA statute.

Finally, the Series 500 Rules were not enacted to circumvent SIPA’s
prohibition against allowance of fraud claims as “customer” claims. See SIPC v.
Barbour, 421 U.S. 412 (1975) (SIPA was not designed to achieve restitution for
fraud). As discussed above and recognized by the district court in In re Adler

Coleman Clearing Corp., the Series 500 Rules were enacted to meet customers

“legitimate expectations” in terms of restoring their pre-liquidation position vis a
vis the debtor with regard to claims treatment where confirmation of a bona fide
securities transaction had occurred. See In re Adler, Coleman Clearing Corp., 263
B.R. 406 (S.D.N.Y. 2001).

In Adler Coleman, claimants contested the bankruptcy court’s ruling that

they failed to establish that they had claims for securities under the Series 500
Rules on the grounds that they lacked funds to purchase the securities. Id. at 424-
26. In that case, fraudulent credits were posted into the claimants’ accounts, on the
eve of the broker’s liquidation filing, from the purported sale of securities that the
bankruptcy court had found were practically worthless. Id. at 434. The cash

shown in the accounts supposedly derived from these sales was then shown on
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confirmations to support purchases of blue chip securities that could never in fact
be purchased because their market value far exceeded the fair value of the proceeds
in claimants’ accounts. Id. at 434. Claimants argued that they had securities
claims under the Series 500 Rules because of the confirmations of fictitious
purchases and were entitled to the return of the blue chip securities. The Trustee
denied their claims.

On appeal, Claimants argued that the bankruptcy court erred because the
cash was shown to be in their accounts and the Series 500 Rules did not require
immediately available cash. Id. at 430. The claimants relied on Murray v.
McGraw (In re Bell & Beckwith), 821 F.2d 333 (6™ Cir. 1987) (a case which the
Series 500 Rules codified) extensively for the proposition that they had a

legitimate expectation that their accounts held securities where they received

purchase confirmations. The Adler Coleman court distinguished the facts of the

claimants’ case from that of Bell & Beckwith by noting that the Bell & Beckwith

holding was premised “on the existence of fully performed and enforceable
obligations on the trade date.” Id. at 432. The court noted that “in holding that
trades ordered by customers of a debtor before filing date should be treated vis-a-
vis those customers as if subsequently completed by the debtor, the Bell &
Beckwith court impliedly assumed that the debtor-broker would be able
satisfactorily to complete the transactions in relation to other brokers with which
the customers dealt.” Id. at 432-33. The court noted that there was nothing in Bell

& Beckwith, as there was in Adler Coleman, that remotely resembled the

“fraudulent and criminal misconduct which actuated and accompanied the trades”
at issue and of which the claimants wished to seek to avail themselves. Id. at 433.
The district court properly noted that the Series 500 Rules “safeguard securities

customers’ legitimate claims to cash and securities held by the debtor in their
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accounts prior to the filing date, and also manifest a design to deny protection to
transactions tainted by fraud.” Id. at 435.

Like the claimants in Adler Coleman, Claimants here seek to “retain the

benefits of bargains they struck with their corrupt brokers.” Id. at 416. Claimants
camot do so. There are and never have been securities of any class and series that
the broker or the Trustee could ever have purchased or held for Claimants. Pre-
liquidation, Claimants never have had or could have had anything but a claim for
the return of the cash they deposited with a potential claim for damages for fraud
or breach of contract. The claim for cash deposited is a net equity claim against
the fund of customer property for cash subject to the SIPA limit, and the claim for

damages is a general creditor claim."”

II. CLAIMANTS’ CLAIMS FOR FICTITIOUS DIVIDENDS
OR INTEREST EARNED ARE NOT ALLOWABLE
CUSTOMER CLAIMS.

The District Court incorrectly held that Claimants are entitled to return of

cash equivalent of interest/dividends that were purportedly earned by the bogus
mutual funds. Goren, 206 F. Supp. 2d at 352. The law is clear that non-existent
dividends or interest supposedly “earned” on non-existent shares are not customer
claims protected by SIPA, although they may be allowable general creditor claims.
See Focht v. Athens (In re Old Naples Secs., Inc.), No. 2:00-cv-181-FTM-29D,
slip. op. at 16 (M.D. Fla. Sept. 30, 2002) (hereinafter “Old Naples II”)18 (rejecting

claimants’ argument that their net equity included non-existent interest payments);

17. Moreover, Rule 503 makes clear that nothing in the Series 500 Rules “shall be
construed as limiting the rights of a trustee in a liquidation proceeding . . . to
avoid any securities transactions as fraudulent . . . or otherwise voidable under
applicable law.” 17 C.F.R. § 300.503(a).

18. A copy of the Old Naples II opinion is contained in the addendum to the brief.
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In re Old Naples Securities, Inc., 218 B.R. at 987 (“[t]he Claimants are entitled to

no more than a return of principal. Each claim must be reduced by the amount that
the claimant received in ‘interest’ payments.”); SIPC v. C.J. Wright & Co. (In re
C.J. Wright & Co.), 162 B.R. 597, 610 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 1993) (“Because debtor

misappropriated these funds, claimants have a claim for that which they entrusted

to debtor as customer property: the principal amount that was to be invested.
Debtor did not convert the interest promised because it was never earned. Debtor
only misused claimants’ initial investment. Likewise, net equity as defined in
SIPA does not contain any reference to providing interest on claims to customers.
Thus the most claimants are entitled to receive is the return of the principal

invested.”); In re Oberweis Secs., Inc., 135 B.R. 842 (Bankr. N.D. Ill. 1991)

(rejecting claim for dividends in failure to execute purchase case and stating that
claim for dividends is more properly characterized as one for “damages” and is not
part of the Claimants’ net equity but may be recovered from the general estate).
The cases relied upon by the Court and Claimants below are distinguishable
in that they concern the payment of interest/dividends on bona fide mutual funds.
In those cases the claimants had an objectively legitimate expectation of receiving
interest/dividends because the security in question had actually earned them. Here,
the bogus mutual fund was never organized as a mutual fund and had no assets or

investments. As noted recently by the Qld Naples II court, “where the payments to

claimants will be made out of the quasi-public SIPA fund, permitting claimants to
recover not only their initial capital investment but also the phony ‘interest’
payments they received and rolled into another transaction is illogical.” Old

Naples I, slip. op. at 15. Here, as in Old Naples II, no one disputes that the

interest payments were not in fact interest at all. To order the Trustee to pay
Claimants the heightened interest promised by a fraudster compounds the fraud

and invites even more egregious fraud in the future. (Id. at 16 (noting that
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allowing non-existent interest as part of a claimant’s “net equity” claim is
“inconsistent with the goals of SIPA, which does not purport to make all
victimized investors whole but only to partially ameliorate the losses of certain
classes of investors”).) The Trustee properly determined that the portion of
Claimants’ claims that sought return of fictitious dividends or interest added to the
value of the bogus mutual fund on fictitious customer account statements are not

allowable customer claims.
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CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Trustee and SIPC respectfully request that this

Court reverse the District Court’s order and uphold the Trustee’s determinations

treating claims filed for the value of shares in bogus mutual funds as net equity

claims for cash in the amount deposited by the Claimants and expunge Claimants’

objections with respect to those determinations.

Dated: New York, New York
October /7, 2002
OF COUNSEL

Karen A. Caplan
Assistant General Counsel
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IN RE: FIRST OHIO SECURITIES COMPANY, Debtor; PLUMBERS and
STEAMFITTERS LOCAL 490 SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT FUND, et al.,
Plaintiffs-Appellants, and INTERNATIONAL UNION OF BRICKLAYERS AND ALLIED
CRAFTSMEN LOCAL NO. 55 HEALTH AND WELFARE FUND, Plaintiff, v. WILLIAM APPLETON,
TRUSTEE FOR LIQUIDATION OF THE FIRST OHIO SECURITIES COMPANY, et al.,
Defendants-Appellees.

No. 93-3313

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE SIXTH CIRCUIT

1994 U.S. App. LEXIS 31347

November 1, 1994, Filed
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<OURT IN THE SIXTH CIRCUIT. IF CITED, A COPY MUST BE SERVED ON OTHER PARTIES AND
THE COURT. THIS NOTICE IS TO BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED IF THIS DECISION IS
REPRODUCED.

SUBSEQUENT HISTORY: Reported in Table Case Format at: 39 F.3d 1181, 1994 U.S.
App. LEXIS 37514.

Certiorari Denied March 20, 1995, Reported at: 1995 U.S. LEXIS 2043.
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-istrict No. 92-00349. Lambros, District Judge.

ZORE TERMS: investor, broker-dealer, liquidation, certificates of deposit,
customers, pooled

TUDGES: BEFORE: MARTIN, NORRIS, and DAUGHTREY, Circuit Judges.
JPINIONBY: PER CURIAM

JPINION: PER CURIAM. This appeal stems from a liquidation action brought under
:he auspices of the Security Investor Protection Act of 1970 (SIPA), as amended
n 1978, 15 U.S.C. @2 78 aaa et seqg. The two' issues before us concern the
>roper characterization of certain claims filed in the proceedings and the
‘tatus of some of the parties who seek recovery of their losses. We find no
arror in the district court's ruling on these two issues and affirm.

The plaintiffs are trustees of the two union pension funds involved in this
titigation, the funds' participants, and two named individual investors. Based
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on an agreement with a securities broker-dealer named{*2] Thomas Gilmartin,

they thought they had purchased, collectively, over $ 3 million worth of "poocled
certificates of deposit" offered by First Ohio Securities Company. But, because
of fraudulent activities carried on by Gilmartin -- the founder, chairman, and
sole common stockholder of First Ohio Securities -- the certificates were never
actually purchased. Instead, Gilmartin comingled the plaintiffs' funds with his
own personal assets. He then sent bogus purchase-confirmation notices and
fictitious account statements to the various investors to cover his tracks.

When the Security Investor Protection Corporation initiated ligquidation
proceedings against First Ohio and the case was removed to bankruptcy court, the
rlaintiffs filed simultaneous claims with the trustee for approximately § 3
willion in securities and for the same amount in cash. The trustee determined
that the securities in which the plaintiffs believed they had invested never
cxisted and, therefore, treated their claims as ones for cash, rather than for
securities. The trustee alsc determined that the fund participants were not
individual *customers™ within the meaning of SIPA and wholly denied their
claims. Thel[*3] bankruptcy court ruled in accordance with the trustee's
determination on both these issues, over objections by the plaintiffe, and the
district court affirmed.

The distinction between a claim for securities and a claim for cash is
=ignificant, because under SIPA, recovery for cash loss is limited to § 100,000,
-hile protection for loss of securities increases to a maximum of § 500,000, 15
J.s.C. @ 78 £ff-3(a). Unfortunately for the plaintiffs here, the record fully
upports the finding by the trustee and by both the bankruptcy and district
courts that the "pocled certificates of deposit" which were the subject of the
‘greement between the plaintiffs and the broker-dealer not only were not
urchased by Gilmartin but, indeed, never even existed. Given this fact, the
only legal conclusion possible is that the claims against First Ohio were ones
"for cash" and not "for securities." As the district judge noted, SIPA is
intended to protect investors against a broker-dealer's insolvency; it is not
‘esigned to achieve restitution for fraud. We find no error in the district
sourt's ruling on this issue.

The district court was equally correct([*d4] in determining that the
‘ension fund participants were not individual "customers," as that term is
efined by 15 U.S5.C. @ 78 III(2). See SIPC v. Morgan, Kennedy & Co., 533 F.2d
1314, 1317-21 (24 Cir. 1976). Moreover, the plaintiffs' argument that Morgan,
sennedy is inapplicable because of subsegquent amendments tc SIPA is, simply, not
sersuasive,

For the reasons given in the district court's order in this case, we AFFIRM
:he judgment entered by that court.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF QHIO

In re:
ND. 92CV0349

PFIRST OHIO SECURITIES CQ.,

On Appeal from Case No.
590-0027 (SIPA)

PLUMBERS & STEAMFITTERS
LOCAL NO. 490 SEVERANCE AND
RETIREMENT FUND, ct al,,

R A S e e i S e i S . A S e

Appellants, ORDER
V. -t w>
i oW
WILLIAM APPLETON, TRUSTEE FOR T m
THE LIQUIDATION OF PIRST OHIO 2. 4
SECURITIES CO., '™ =
. ) T
Appellee. @ W)
i Mo
.- o —y
THOMAS D. LAMBROS, CHIEF JUDGE ¢S

This appeal arises out of the Bankrupicy Court's findings and order issued on the
23rd of December, 1991, reparding the Trustee's determination of clainis in a proceeding
involving the liquidaton of a securities broker-dealer pursuant to the Securities Invesrar
Protection Act of 1970 (SIPA). This bankruptcy appeal is taken as a matter of right
pursuant o 28 U.S.C. § 158(a) and Bankruptcy Rule 8001(a).

Pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 8013, the Bankruptcy Court's "findings of facr,
whether based on oral or documentary evidence, shall not be set aside unless clearly

erroneous. . . " Accord, Stevens lpduspres, [ne. v. McGlung, 789 F.2d 386, 389 (6th Clir.

1586); In_re Dixon, 85 B.R. 745 (Bankr. N.D. Qhio 1988). The Bankruptey Court’s
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conclusions of law, on the other hand, are subject to de noyo review. [n re Caldwell,
851 F.2d 852, 857 {6th Cir. 1988).

First Ohio Securities Corporation (FOSC) was a securities broker-dealer that bought
and sold securities for the public. On June 22, 1990, Judge David D. Dowd, Jr., entered
an order finding that the customers of FOSC were in need of protection, and the
liquidation proceedings of FOSC commenced pursuant to SIPA. Customers filed claims
with the trustea, and the trustee derermined the validity of the claims. Subsequently,
customers objected to the trustees derermination and hearings were held before Judge
Harold F. White. [n the instant action, the trustee determined thar 540 fund claim, the
490 fund claim, the 55 fund claim, and the Stansberrys’ claim should be allowed as
claims for cagh, and consequently, the rructee paid the claimants $100,000 each. Further,
the trustee determined that the claims of the individual perticipants in the 540 and 450
funds should be denied because they were not "customers” of FOSC as defined by the
SIPA. The trustee also denied one of the Stansberrys’ claim due t the fact that their
account was held as joint tenants with right of survivorship. On December 23, 1991,
Judge White issued his findings and order which upheld the trustee’s determinations of
appellants’ claims.

Appellants’ first eight statement of issues all contend that the Bankruptcy Court
erred when it held thar the 540 fund, the 4‘.-30 fund, the 55 fund, and the Stansberrys
each had one claim for cash. Appellants maintain that their clalms should have been
valid claims for securites. If claims are for cash, the protection under the SIPA is limited

to $100,000, bur if the claim is for securities, the protection incresses ta $500,000.

2.
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Appellants’ assertion that the claims should have been aliowed as claims for securities is
not supported by the law. The Bankruprey Court correctly determined thar in order 10
have a claim for a "security” the security must in fact exist. SEC y. Aberdeen Sepurities
Go.,, 480 F.2d 1121, 1126-27 (3d Cir. 1973); See also In re Brentwood Securiies, Inc,
925 F.2d 325, 328.29 (9th Cir. 1991).

The Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), created under the SIPA, was
formed to establish a fund which would act as a limited insurance policy for customers
who lose money as a result of broker-dealer insolvencies. SIPC is a non-profit
corporation whose members contribute assessments which form the basis for the
protection fund. The SIPA waus not designed to protect customers from fraud or breach
of contract, but was specifically anacted for the purpose of providing limited restitution
to customers whose loss is the result of insolvent broker.dealers. In_yxa EMS.
Government Secyrities Carp., 90 B.R. 539, 54041 (Bankr. S.D. Fla. 1988); [n re Bell
& Beckwith, 124 B.R. 35, 36 (Bankr. N.D. Chio 1990). Thereby, the appellants’ claims
for securides are not denied because of the fraud perpemated, rather they are satisfied
as claims for cash to the extent allowed under the S[PA. All of the rules and legislative
history cited by appellants on the Jegitimate expectatons and sausfaction of claims for
securities is deterrdnarve of a security of such rype being in existence. Not only were
these "sacurities" never purchased, they never cxisted. Therefore, with no evidence
presented that would enable this Court to find the nan-exisrenee of the securities clearly
erroneous, the conclusion of law that 490 fund, the 540 fund, the 55 fund, and the

Stansberrys were each entitled 10 one cash claim was correct as a matter of law.

-3-
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In their ninth statement of issue, appellants maintain that the Bankruptcy Court
arred when it denied the clalms of the individual participants in the 540 and 490 funds.

SIPA defines a “customer” as,

[Alny person . . . who has a claim on account of securities received,
acquired, or held by the debtor in the ordinary course of its business as a
broker or dealer from or for the securities aceount of such person. . . . The
term “customers” Included . . . any person who has deposited cash with the

debtor for the purchase of securitles. 15 U.S.C, § 78 1I(2).
In SIPC v. Morgan, Kennedy & Co., 533 F.2d 1314 (2d Cir. 1976), the court directdy
addressed the issue of whether individual participants in a pension fund were "customers”
of a failed broker. The individual participants did not qualify as customers because they
had no dircet dealings with the broker-dealers, nor did they entrust cash or securities
directly to the broker-dealers. The court held that the acrual eustomers of the broker-
dealer were the funds themselves and not the individual partdpants in the funds.
Morgan, Kennedy & Co., 533 F.2d at 1317-21. Therefore, the Bankruptcy Court was
correct in denying the claims of the individual participants in the 490 and 540 funds.
In the tenth statement of issue, appellants contend that the Bankruptcy Court exrred
in finding and concluding that the Stan$benys held one joint account with right of
survivorship and not two separate accounts, thug orly endtling them to one claim for
cash instcad of two claims for securities. The Bankruptey Court’s finding that the
Stansberry account was held as joint tenants was not clearly erroncous. Evidence
indicated thet the confirmarion statements sent to the Stansberrys were directed to David
E. Stansberry and Violet M. Stansberry JTWROS (joint tenants with right of survivorship),

and further, the accounr application form completed by Mr. Stransberry reflected that a

4-
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single account was opened in the name of Mr. & Mrs. David E. Stansberry (Violet M.)
JTWROS. Therefore, the Bankrupley Courcs finding that only one account existed was
not clearly erroneous, nor was the conclusion that euch an account entitled the holders
to one cash claim against the SIPC fund in an amount not to exceed $100,000 conrrary
to the law. See Morgan, Kennedy & Co., 533 F.2d at 1319-20; In_re Investors Securiry
Caorp., 6 B.R. 415, 419 (Bankr. W.D, Pa. 1980).

Therefore, after a complete review of the record, and upon full consideration of
the parties’ objections thereto, this Court finds that the Bankruptcy Court’s findings of fact
were not clearly erroneous. Additonally, after a de_novo review of the Bankruptcy
Cowr’s conelusions of law, this Court finds thart the Bankruptcy Court applied the relevant
legnl standards. Therefore, the Bankruptcy Court's Order Re: Objections to the Trustee’s
Determination of Claims and the Findings Re: Objections 1o the Trustee’s Determination
of Claims are fully adoi)ted and incorporated herein and, thus, affirmed. Accordingly, this
case is dismissed and terminated.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
\/4’&’

\/ Thomas D. Lambras
Chief Judge
United States District Court

AT CLEVELAND, OHIO

DATED: 1{/ V/ﬁ
/7
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Appellants, ) JUDGMENT
)
V. )
)
WILLIAM APPLETON, TRUSTEE FOR )
THE LIQUIDATION OF FIRST OHIO )
SECURITIES CO., )
)
Appellee. )

THOMAS D. LAMBROQOS, CHIEF JUDGE

In accordance with the Order of this date, the findings and orders of the
Bankruptcy Court are fully adopted and incorporated herein, and thus, affirmed.

Accordingly, this action is hereby terminared and dismissed.

IT [S SO ORDERED.
M't\

Thomas D. Lambros
Chief Judge
United States District Court

AT CLEVELAND, OHIO

DATED: ?///'/ y//f/’
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92 0EC -| AM18s ¥HE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

” NORTIIERN DIGTRICT OF OIIIO
US. BARKRUPTCY COURT

HORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIQ
IN THE MA OF CASE NO. 590-0072 (SIPA)
ADV. NO. 952-5085

FIRST OHIO SECURITIES COMPANY

Debtor
ORDER

R K 2 2 S BNk BN N JEE JNE SR JNE

WILLIAM APPLETON, TRUSTEE for
The Liquidation of First Ohio
Securities Company

Plaintirs
vs.

MY w- MDY, et al- » _.’.

Defaendants : Y,R_

This matter is before the court on the motion to dismiss filed
by defendants Harry W. Hardy and Mary C. Hardy ("the Hardys%)

pursuant to Federal Bankruptcy Rule 7012 and Fed. R. Civ. P.

12 (b) (6) .

b~ - - -

Debtor, First Ohic Securities Company ("FOSC"), was a
uecuritiesIbroker/Qealet. On June 22, 18950, pursuant to an
application by the Securities Investor Protection Corporatioen,
(“SIP&"), thelUnited States District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio entered an order plécing FOSC in a liéuidnticn
proceading under the Securities Investor Protoction Act ("SIPA;)Q'

appointing Joseph Patchan, Egq., aa Trustee for the liguidation

72A
.. 8182)
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Ohio Dec. 23, 1991.) SIPC is a non-profit organization with funds

Wi Tl WGy i Wl Wi LTS VL Y

proceeding and removing the proceeding to the bankruptcy court. On

April 19, 1991, William Appleton succeeded Joseph Patchan as

Trustee ("Trustee").
Prior to the commencement of this case, the Hardys paid FoOSC

$140,000 for the purchase of gsecurities. The Hardys made three

payments to FOSC totalling $130,000 for the purchase of three

certificates of depogit as follows:
a. 510,000.00 paid to FOSC on December 5, 1989;
b. $50,000.00 paid to FOSC on December 13, 1989¢

c. $70,000 paid to FOSC on June 8, 1989.

The Hardys made a fourth payment of $11.000 to FQSC on January

18, 1990 vhich was to be invested in tX« All America Fund (“AAFY).
Tha AAP was purported to be a mutual fund investing in Northeastern

Ohio manufacturing businesses. It was later daotermined that the

AAF never existed.

SIPA was enacted to protect individual investors from
financial hardship resulting from broker/dealer failures. SIPFC is
a non-profit corporation which comprises most registered brokers-
dealers. Members of SIPC are assmcesed in order to create & fund
which is used to satisfy customer claims raesulting frow broker-

dealar insolvencies. (See 15 U.S.C. §§ 78ama et seq. and In re

Elrst ohio Securities co,, Case No. 590-0072, slip op. at 2, N. D.

available for the satisfaction of customar claims resulting from

brokor-dealar insolvencies. JId. at 9.

The Hardys filed a claim in this casa for $140,000. Pursuant

to the provisions of SIPA, the Trustee makes a determination of
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customer claims. (See 15 U.S.C. §§ 78fff et seq.) In August 1990,

the Trustee paid the Hardys $141,203.58 on the certificate of
deposit portion of the Hardys claim (5130,000 and interest). The
Trustee asserts that ha made this paymeﬁt based on the balief that
the certificates of deposit were in existence. Howevér, the
Trustee later determined that neither the certificates of deposit
nor the AAF investment actually existed.

The Trustee asserts that because their investments never
existed, the Hardys' claim is not for securitiecs, but instead is

one for cash. Payment of cash claims is limited to $100,000. [Saa

15 U.s.C. §§ 78fff-3(a)(1l).] Therefore, the Trustee arques that
the Hardys are not entitled to receive more than $100,000 for
payment of their claims and has filed this turnover proceeding

pursuant to Title 11 U.S.C., § 542(a) to recover the $41,203.58

allegedly pald in excess on the Hardys' claim.
In their motion to dismiss filed May 15, 1992, the Hardys

asgert that the Trustee should ba prevented from recovering the

$41,203.58 bacause a SIPA proceeding deces not create an "egtate" as

that term is defined in § 541, and § 542 limits recovery to

"property of the estate." fThe Hardys further argue that aven if an

aestate is creatad, SIPC advances aro not property of the estate but

instead are distinct from the "general estate."
atate a

in the

When considering a motion to dismiss for failure to
claim, a court must assume that all of the facts alleged
complaint are true; and dismissal is inappropriate unlesas the

plaintiff can prove no set of facts aentitling him to relief. In re

Edmonds, 924 F. 2d 176, 1B0 (loth Cir. 1991).
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Aftar reviewing thae parties' briefs and the law in this

matter, the court concludes that the defendants' arguments are

specious and therefore their motion to dismiss should be denied.

The court finds that pursuant to § 78fff(b), liquidations
under SIPA proceed in accordance with the provisioné of Title 11,

including the creation of an estate pursuant to Title 11 U.S.C.

§ 541. In re Bell & Boeckwith, 112 B. R. 863, 866 (Bankr. N. D.

Ohio 1990). See also In re Investment Bankers, Inc,, 135 B. R. 659

(Bankr. D. Calo. 1991). The court further finds that the Trustee

has the power to recover overpayments. See In re Ball & Beckwith,

937 F. 2d 1104 (6th cir. 1991).
The defendants shall hava 10 days from the date of this

order within which to file an answver in this adversary proceeding.

TR e e ~

H. F. White
Bankruptcy Judge

IT IS SO ORDERED.

I certify that on the /<{day of Aé&/ , 1992, I sent a
copy of this Ordar to:

David J. Naftzinger

Dean D. Gamin

1100 National City Bank Bldg.
629 Fuclid Avenue

Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Thomas R. Lucchegi

Hilary W. Rula
3200 National City Center

Clevaeland, Ohio 44114

éﬁéiaééibt véaéjaud
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1n re: Old Naples Sgnu'lﬂu. Ioe,, _
Debtor.

Theodars H. Fochy, as Trusise, snd

" Scouritiss Irvestor Protection Corp.,

Appellants,

V.

Tessie C. Athens, Btcphen and Linda
Patricia Fotapoulos, Joha mnd Margaret
Helx, Thwodors and Katina Kourpas,
Devid and Anlta Linden, ead Petac end
Deborah Loupas,

Appelleas.

D P. McDermott, and Compar
MeDermatt Securities, Ins.,

Appellants,

Y.

Thoodorc H. Pocht, as Trustee, wod

" Rasurites Investar Protection Carp,,

Appelless.

Thoodore H, Fod::, azr Trostee, and
Securitics Lavestor Protection Corp,

Appsllants,

Kathlaen Kovaos,
Appelics.

ll' T0 JA
n%égﬁmnﬂﬁ

| MEMORANDUM AND ORDER

Case No. 2:00-cv-151-FTM-25D

Case Na. 2:00-cv-132.FTM-23D

Case No. 2:00-cv-327-FTM-29D

=R



10/03/2002 16:18B FAL

T30

0I7-I:-2002

L L

A A W W i sl WY

POLE! € Aaledes s sasen

.

mmuwmw'awmwbﬁmmm of toe
United Butes Bankropicy Covrt for the Middls District of Florida.
BACKGROUND

This caso arizcs Gt of the insalvepsy bf Old Neples Securities, Ine, ("ONST™). OWSI
wss 3 gocurities braker-dcal with offiess in Neples, Floride smd Bothlehem and
Wyorzissing, Pemusylvenia  The President snd salo sharcholdar of ONSI, James
Zimmerman, operated out of the Neplos office. The Bethichem boanch affice wasowned ad
operated by Brphen Compos and Dean McDoomott, who axe brothars-in-law xd who s
tiso both claimants 18 base procoedings. Together, Campod and McDermort also ovmed

Cormpos-MsDenman Sacuritics, ne. ("CMET™), an inswranos agsasy nd snothes cleinant

berein. The Wyomiasing bramch was operated by Dagiel Shaffsr.

1%

ONY] wax nzver profiable. Tomww,ﬁmmwybmmod
maney. Mmﬂh.whmﬁu:uhmﬁﬂlmmam,hhﬁdn?mﬁ scheme, He
canvinced Compes, MoDarmonz, and Shaffer to percusde their cHazts to tend bim monty for
hnﬂ-mmoolw The cHents wers promised a Hek-froe invesgnent with 8 30-
0 45-day refurn of the principal plus « gesraneed parcentage rotafn oy he principsl, unmly
2% Tha branoh officé operators euned an addiianal 9% conumisalos o each "investuont "

Conpes, McDermon, CMSL, and Ehaffer also provided their own maney to Zimmeiroan,

' These appoale werr originally seripned 1o the Hon Patricia C. Fawsett. Thoy wen
subsequemtly reassigned tn e Hon. Joim E. Stecic. Pursnent (o an Intorwireoit soigament andst
28 US.C. § 294(d), the undemignad is now e Jodge of record in thia caxe.

-3-

v
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(T% plus tha 5% cammission) within 4S days } | '

In reality, Zimmermsa wos not baying ny boads but wes using the funds from ose
group of cliznm 1o pry the priscipal snd remn of the other group Of clisos. The schems
eventually oollapsed in Angut 1996, afvor McDmtt confrootsd Zimmermsn about Ins
faluye 10 pay semo of tha cliens and Zimmerman ocnfesyed the scheme, MeDermoft and
his anomey then notified the FBI.

Qo Augusn 28, 19§G,MMQWMMMM3MMW£¥3 of
ONGSI were tn need of the protections of fye Secudties Investor Protection Ast ("SIPA®), 15
U.S.C.sﬁun,ﬁm.,mdsppuinﬁngnmdm}lFocMnhum. The Bankruptey Count
then extablished & procadure for Sting snd resolving castamer ciaims. Under the Tolevent
provigions _of-SI.'PA., anly »cartoroers” of ONS] ate astitled to SIPA' protections snd may
fecover under SIPA & roimburvegnent previsions. "Customer” is defined in partncnt part a3
"any person wha has deposited cash with [ONEI] for tae purposs of perchasing secusitics.”
14, § 78¥(2). The Trustes eventually desizd nvany of the clamms, finding that the alnimano
were not “eunomey” ufONslbcme&u&mu;cﬂ.oumlu&x_,nm tho purohace of
securilios sz required by SIPA § 78UA) and (14). Four groups of claimanms sppealed the
Trumtee's decision o the Banlruptcy Cour, end thise of those chses ars now before this

? The Trustew pointy ot chat McDamot, Compos, aod CMS! ware Gy all prumised &
Antralizad cate of return of 128% © 192%,

-3.
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Court

Tho clatms of one group of claimants have been compietely disposed of. This grovm, .

mfcmdwuﬁzﬁmhwudﬂmdm,migﬁaﬂydddmumw#
Trustas. The Baplauptry Coust reversed the decision of the Trastes, finding that e throe
dﬁmnmmufmsxwmmawmwdmh The Dirxict
Consrt xnd Eleventh Circutt atfirmed. 72 Ol Naglsn S#. kg 230 B.R. 441 (M.D. s,
1999); In e Q¥4 Naples Boc, kuc., 229 F.3d 1296 (116 Cir. 2000). The purvies disagres
about the iuport of thm cuso to tis instant sppeals.

mawwmwmm'smmmm
mothnrmofu!ahm(dz“mhnlw- Thilmhuudcﬂvof'h'c.sdc
Athane, Chasiex aud Holly Conroy, Patricis Fotoporlas, John end Mergatet Heist, Theadore
Mdhmlmu,mﬂdqdmmm@bchnwl.mdm:u and
Linda Compot. As mendonsd above, Stephan Campos is ono of the owners of CMS! and,
together with McDomott, operxted ONBI' bravch offics in Bethlebemn, PA. The Trustor?
bas sppealod ths Baskqupicy Court's decizian on custorger stahm cnly af 0 Compos. The
Trustee also contends that the Baniraptoy Court ecred {n detzrmining the payment cmount
due to the ather Athens olaimants,

In 2 scperwrc opinion, te Benkruptoy Cougt held that enother clmimaat, [athicen

! The Trusee and the Sccurities lavastor Protactdos Ootpossson ("SIPCT) e Joim
appeilaniv/sppolloo {p these conmolidated Tastiers. The Conrr wil] refar wo tham colleodvely o Lhe
*Trustec.®

-4-
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Kovacs, was 8 cusomer of ONSL Tho Trustes appeals that order. The briefing for fac
Kovacs and Afhens appeals bas been consolideted

Finally, the Baskruptoy Court denied oustomer stanus for the 1ast group of clatmants,
rande up af McDormott and CMSL They bave sppealed that desizion, Indth- brisflng oo
mnmpedhlmeﬁ;mmwmbdlﬂu-
MSCUSSION

A. Standurd of Boview

Ouna of the key issues to be decidod in thess cases is whether Compos, MoDermott,
and CMS] are eatitled to customar starvs under SIPA. There is 20 dispute that this issue i

a quesdien of law that receives de novo review in this Court  See, Iavestar Prot Comp. X

Wise (In rc Stalvey & Assgca). 750 F.2d 464, 468 (5t Oir. 1983), The Banlauptoy Court's
facmal findings, kowevar, are reviewsd only for clerr ecror. Gresn Tyop Aeseptnce, INC.
v. Calvan (1n vy Calvort), 907 F24 1069, 1071 (11th Cr. 1990).

B. MoDurmott and CMEI's Appeal

MoDarmott and CMS1 oaniead thae the Benkruptcy Court erred in determiniag that
they were not “customers” of ONSI sud thus ave not entitled o the protections of SIPA.
Aceocdmg o McDeouott end CMB), the Bankrupscy. Court’s fmdings as to fis other
claimantz mandats a finding that they, t0o, were custamsrs of ONSL. Further, McDermott
argues thir the Bankrupicy Count erred fa applying the doctrine of judicial cstoppcl o

preciude McDermo from cotrtendiag in this procweding st ths monay he grovided to ONSI

-5.
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was anything ofher than a Josz. The Trusme oppascs thoappeal. Ha axxaris as s sltcmarive
groond for affirmance that the Bankruptcy Court could have determined as & matee of low
that McDermott waz not entitlad to the protecrions of SIPA because the SEC found that
McDarmot viclated the secutites lews with respect to the ransactions at irsue.
1. Lemsftoonse |

_Mwamumdcusrscmu:Wmammpchnrmﬁumo‘m
clafrsaty were cunamers of ONBI neesssarlly means that McDermott and CMS] were
custorners as well is without merit There are distinct differcuces between the ather
clsimants (aside from Compos, whose cleim will be discussod in more detad below) xad
McDermort and CMSL  First, MoDarmott and CMS] ars mot the “unsophistictied

Qoo

pacticipant(s) in securities vansactions* that SIPA was devigned to protect. Jax Old Nettlos

Sec, 223 F.3d & 1303 (quoting fn re Gilbralen, Inc, S3 B.R. 324, 325 (Benkz. C.D. Cal.
1985)). McDermott is sn experienced secarities broker and has a doctorata degree in finance
with s concegtration [n muntcipal Sosnce. MaDamatt’s bigh Iovel of ﬁwldp stout
secutites transactions in general and about ONS) m pertculsr sots hixo apart from the other
claimsame and iteelf Justifies the differcstial trowtmiant ha recedved fam the Bankrupacy
Court.

| Purther, as the Bankroprey Coun !wnd, McDarmon (and through MMGL
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mm?hunﬁedhshwtbn}nmmdzlxmqﬁm%mnpmdpmm
securities.” 15 U.S.C. § 784K2). "Whan oolLImm entrusts cash with a brokstage, aod the

broker missppropriates the mansy, Cousts {5t detrrmine whetber the intended invesanent
xnumdermiead by the Jlafinmt would bave bes in 8 “seourhty” v defined by STPA." dnie

Qld Napley, 223 F3d ot 1304 (unphlsitadh -

In this sivuntion it is clear thas the wenghctions as wmdertood by McDeomoft wuro ot
Farchases of socuritics.  Finst, MaoDermet
1oans, OF &5 PAYIICHE t KEcrow 0 allow Ziknnarman to purchase the wpspecificd bapds.

that he mmderstood the Tansactions as

Whether or nat MeDermon should be ju astopped from disavowing this testimany,
msnh‘phycwﬁwmmwm»mwaﬂﬁnwﬁmr 'hmwmﬂ
what MeDormett koew or &4 niot know al tmct-rmucﬁminquuﬁon. Mn’Den':.!ou's
mmmmy,mmliénomm Y Yo tha contrary, gives smnple mpport
18 tha Benkruptey Court's eonclurions segarding lis status 85 & cnstomar of ONSL
Morsaver, it sretches cmhvﬁmuabamn would havs balimred thst thase

supposadly “rlgk-froc™ tramections with sxtramdinary guartnteed wtes of retom ware in fact

legitimate transactions in soevities. Althoughbonds wrecartainly one af the sefost spauritias

imvestuants, the Court ix aware of no bondt that pay the astronoamical rateg of return that
wars pramised (o the alsimmats ip this casa. ﬂfnwopﬁrﬁnhdmwwc forgiven

|

* The Baalauptcy Court eorrontly found the mejarity of CMS1's clubm wad for unpaid
- .
commimiont. for which CMSI {s pot ertitled o or statiis. (Sge Feb. 9, 2000, Ordor st 11.)

-

. )
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tbrbeﬁnniug;hatnnnu:nsacﬁannnanuMMytnvnrwmﬂbﬁnﬂn MoDormou must have known
differently, 9nd he cannot now claize that ha, too, was doped. As the Eleveath Ceeult noted
in the cate Involving the Hesbnar and Brown claimants, “willfy] ignoranoe on the clasmaat’s
part in the fhce °,' clear indications that an irvesunent zcheme iz suspect may prectucie 8
finding thart the olaimant intended m purchase ‘sacuritios’ sovared by the Act” [ at 1:,_05.
MeDermont’s profession of ignorenes io this ul:utnhnﬂnl o willfu) ignoemnce. His
olaim and the ouﬁn.ercumﬁpmpqu &ixallowad by tha Banksuptcy Coust,
2 Iodisil st

Ah=matively, the Bankrapeoy Cowrt did not err in spplying tho doctrine of judicial
astoppel to preeluds McDermott from olaiming that tha trsceactions were potlesaos. “Judicial
asoppel is applied to the caleulated asoettion of divergent Fwomn positions." Am.Nat’l Hank
u_gwwﬂorﬂ 1528, 1536 (11th Cir. 1583). The palicy
undartying judicial estappel “is dirscted againat thosa who would attempt to manipylatc: the
court symam* through asserting divergent pounm in judizial procesdings. Johmson Serv.
Loy, Tranesm. Ing, G, 435 P3d 164, 174 (Sth Cir. 1973). This Count should review the
Baakruptey Court's spplication of'the doctrins elmply w determing whethar that sppliostion
is consistent with the polioy undetlying the docuine. Chrysier Cradit Corp, v. Rebhan, 842
F.2d 1257, 126! (114 Cir. 198%), abrogated on ofher grounds, Grogan v, Garmer, 493 U.S.
279 (1991).

MeDermon presass a diffbreat sumdard for the spplicstion of judicial esoppel, clting

12:37 £
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cares Som the Pirn Circuit Court of Appeals ss "mformstve” o0 the subject, and as
nquiﬁnganmmnghq\:hyﬁnhuucihdnbw. He offare no reagon why this
Conrt should distegard on-point precedent from tho Eleventh Cursuitin favor of non-binitlag

. precedant frum another Court of Appeals. Moreovez, 50 cowrt in this Circuit has followed

the reascaing of the cases citod by McDamott, 20t s the Rleventh Circait retreated from
the doscripion of the dootrins of judicial csoppel in Americon National Rask of
Jeakagrralle Ilnaecd,mi:cmvuymmﬂyn!iod on that descripticn. Bumegv. Pamco
Acroplax, Tnc, 291 F.3d 1282, 1288 (116 Cir. 200Z). This Court i bovnd 10 follow
Eleventh: Circuit precadent m3 will do 1o hese. '

hmwmmmuwwynfm»mmmu

' iscve as “Jomns.” He now contends that sach werminology was & shorthand refereice ohosen

byﬂuSECmmmduanrlmeybmﬁfmmummimu. McDennott
roigTepresents the rocord. In fant, the tarm “lown” was a dherthand chosen by MoDermont sud

has -nnrncy bocsuse, as the attomsy end MoDermon bol‘n'i:uhbd, losns were 10w

MoDermatt understnod the trenssctions. (g Fosld Bx 46 [McDermot: dep) o: 24
(McDermort's anomey: * . . . for these purposss wa can call tham loans becawse this is
[McDerrson’s] andorstanding of what was cosurring”); 24-25 (MeDamot: *[Loen) is how
thcy wore deseribed to me”); 28 (McDamon's stoemey: “[MeDermott] beleves theco warc
loans and Mr. MoDermott will tastify thes be always belisved these were joans™).)

Qiven this svidencs and MeDeemott's atternprt a1 the cvidensiary hearing before the

-9.
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Bankruptcy Court to assert 3 compictcly Sivergent positien, the Benlkruptey Court wist well
within fry discretion to apply jadicial estoppel and prechude McDermott from clatming that
b upderytnod the transactions as tything othee fhan loans. 1t is in precissly this situatios
that courts mustapply the doctine of judicial estappel. Before tho BBC, MoDermott thonght
m:hawnmmmmﬁmum@dhdpmpwﬁm and load the SEC w
conclude that it had no jurisdiction. Beforc the Bankruptcy Coutt, howover, ho realizad that

dwucuiﬁn;ﬁcmuucﬁmulmvuddpndudcnymymdprm&mhc-

changed his story, mpdicybemndhdocuinofjndicidamppquummmunm
step in in much a situation and protact fhe ivkegrity of My procesdings. The Court asirmo the
Banlauptey Court's determination an judiaial estoppol

3. The Packer, Wilbsr Woctiing

Tha Trustcs precses an alwmative ground oo which nﬁnnthonanl&upwylom '

Ho somenda that because the SBC found that M=Dpemot and Compos violaied sccurifics
lswe with respect to the TanSStiams at istus, thay arc not-antitied to the protections of BIPA.
Seo SEC v, Packer, Wilbur & Ca. 498 P.2d 978, 984-85 (24 Clr. 1974) (finding that "one
who engages in a frrudulent trmaaction canact resp the bepefits of tha Act's intended
prowection™). McDenmott asserts that the doctrine eepowsed in Packar, Wik is imited 10
thoso who magage in 8 wilfal and/ar knowring visistian of the racuritles lsws. Ascording to
McDecmont, the SEC & mest found Giat MeDeanott and Compos failed to ;:ondu-.nt a

wificient igvestigation and igovrod “red flags” that should bave alertcd thern to e

-10-
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froudnlent nature of he gansacdons.
mmofwnndiumgmmmsmimumm

arpuss. [ Maceh of this yesr, the Bakngpicy Court for the Southern District of New York

epesifically found thet the Papker, Wilbur doctrine was ant limitad to cascs of)puvdngor
sciive participation in the tecuritiss law violstions. Wﬂ.
277 BR. 520, 558-59 (Bankr. SDN.Y. 2002). The cout held that 4 claimant could be
demied oussomer stams under SIPA for nverely "closfing) his cyes® to the wrongful nasue of
the trencactions or for even les egregious behavicr. 4, a1 559. Undar this roading off the
Baska, Wilkns dovtrine, MaDermon a8 Commpos amm usdoubtadly bamed fum obraising
custorner statns in this matter.

However, e McDermott pofnts out, nelther the Floventh Cirvuitnor any Florida court
has tdopted, applied, or even citedthe Packer, Wiburdoomine. Thus, i is aatclear thar the
doctrine applies in this case. The Caurtis reluctant to {mypose & bar oo SIPA recovery dased
ezlirely oncases which are sotbinding precodent. Becauss the Court hes already determnimred
thet other facmary preotude McDermort md QMST from obigining Customer states in Gxs
Tontter, it is not necestary Lo conclusivaly dsterming tha spplicshility of the Pagker, Wilbut

doctring 1 this casc and In this comrt. Tho Court balisves that the policies balind the Packer,

Wil doctrine are sound, aamely prestuding customat status to thate who tre claimmams -

oaly by virme nfmedrlviohduu of tha cemuritles lsws. Howover, the Court will leave 0

another day the question of whathar the docrino should be the law in thic Daericu

-11-
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C. Kovacs and the Athens Clalmants

The Truxtos does not taks iswewlﬁ'thlnuhw{:m'l findings thet Ms. Kovuss
and the majoriry of the Athen: claimasty were cusiomers of ONS! i arc entitled W the
protestians of STPA. He eseernts, bowaver, that the Bankyuptoy Court erred tn foding that
Stephen Compor was a customer 6f ONEL Ha aloo arpues that the Baskauptoy Court's
caleulstion af the smounts duo the cluimants was erronecus because it &id not affact aay
smoumts that tha clairgants feceived &3 treren or repurn of principal from ONS! or CM3L*

L Compavchim |

The only ground on which ts Trustee relles for his argument that Compos® claim
should de degled b the Packer, Wilkur doctioe, disoussed in dotall above, As noled,
hawever, that huinehuu;tuudwbymmborﬁsmnﬁuuofﬁb Circult
The Conrnwill noc apply Paskit, WA 6 precinds G ompos from ebtuining customer s s,

wa.uvdthMcDamoﬂ.h‘aﬂ..oﬂq;npmdﬂmwﬂchndmndmpﬂ
castomer ststus in this mtter. Altbough Compos Goes 30t have a graduste degree in finauce,
e is e registernd sectirttles broker with fairly sigaifi-amt experince io bonds. (So¢ Fockt Bx.
57 {Compos Dep.] a1 14.) Thus, ke McDermott, me ot should have known that

¢ With respect ta Ma. Kovaes® claim, the Bankruptey Court gpplied e offpet requesred by
the Trustea. Thug, it ix not clesr whit portios of tho Benkauptoy Court's decision rogending Ms-
Kovacsthe Trunes s sppoaling. Ms. Kovacs &4 not takx a cross-eppanl, slthough haroounsal urges
me Court to roverss the offset pptied againa her claim *for falmsess and consirtenoy’s sake.”
(Appelices’ Opp'n Mam. #129.) As the Trustes noces, howeves, flhure @ tiks sb appeal deives
this Coun of juisdiotian over siy clsim Ma. Kovaes might have reparding the ot

-12-
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the sxUsordinesily bigh rutes of teTumD promised by Zimmerman coxld not hevo azisen fom
Lngitirn e, bond tranasnctioms. Indeed, Coampos tmatified that be did not do any band wotk f
CMS] after 1952 becwute the rates were 3o low. (Id, a2 17.) The samo standerd appliod
sbove 1o McDeanmott should spply to Conspus: “willful iguorence on the claimaat’a Pt
the faoe of clear indications that an invesumcat scheme is cuspsstmay precluds a findiag that.
the claimant mtendad to paychase ‘securitias” covarsd by the Act” Ioas Qld Naples, 223
F.3d a2 1305. Campos’ willful {gnorace prevents bim from obimining the proteedons of
SIPA* The Benkrupty Coart should have dicullowea his claim.
2,  Amauotadueto slaprams
MMwmmbhlmmmhaclmmuilu.inm
becmue of the inconsistent reaovreries alowed by the Banknuptery Court in this case. Inthe
Heebner and Browp case, e coust allowed the Trustee o mberact from the fmal recovery ——:
any principal amount snd/ar interest esch clatmunt reneived from ONS] oy CM81, Shallarly,
_ umum.w'ﬁmwmwﬁmdummsamm
Court dewsrmined that the smowt due Ma. Kovees would be st off by axty smounts she
received from ONSI or CMST. lhwm.ingmmngﬂnAﬂ:mchhm' Motion o Altey

or Amend tha Jodgment, the Bankiuptcy Court simply allowed the claimg and did not

) ' Compos urges ©ie Count 1 allow his wife's clatm, contendmg 1Bat the ut least i3 &
innoceal nveswor. The recesd chows, bowever, tat Mzy, Compos played sbsalutely 0o role i tho
trazmationa other thaa g5 joint holder of the aocomnt froxty which the manay was drawn. Thus, her
claira rises tnd falls with bee busband’s olim  Bog SEC.v. Previduy Sae Juo, 452 F. Supp. 477,
478 0.3 (SDXNY. 1978).

-13.
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sddress whther those claimy should be affiat by ady smaunt the claimanty rogstved from
ONS] or CMBL

SIPAprovidasﬁawqtldmmhmphnmkenﬁﬂadmmdmm
whu'mtqﬁty'&nmﬁemA@uphMﬁmlm. 1SUS.C. § TufIr
2L). nemlmmMMhm case i3 $100,000 per clsimant. Jd, § 78fH-3(a). T
Mumuw-mmunmlmumﬁmywpmmm
gcnallbnhuptcymunnnnmuﬁdcn&m- 14 § 78f5-2(c). Tho Trustes cantusds
that the Bankruptey Wlhhﬁ@hcldmmmmmndam
dows notiulndctmmnmm;lymtumnivdf- Acoording to the Trustee, p-ardcilamu
{8 Porzi sehene such aa tha mvoivad e are anitied acly o seqcive hsir net Joxs, o tho
xmaeumt igvested loxw mny paymisnts received.

In sopport of'his argumest, the Trumeo eltes In e .1, Wricht & Ca,, 162 BR. 557
(Bania. M.D. Fla. 1993). ln thst case, Benkrupicy Judge Proctor found that claimants, who
belleved they were investag in cerHficaies of dzposis but ware in fact vistims of 8 Fozi
scheme mwmmemmhﬁlmﬁmwmwmvammmn what
vach cnwustsd to the brokel, less €y "inicrest™ o other payments received by the chimant.
14 a1 610, Altommnolw,mdummdﬂmnmuvudnhnmmmﬂﬁchmy
entrusted 1o Gw broker, which is only the principal amount mvested. ]d, WSEA'l
definirion of net oquity docs aot includc intersst, the court overrnled the clalmants® claim tut

thay were cufitled to recover the interest they expectud to receive Em the oerdficares of

.14 -
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deposit. Id, In That cago, hnm,dlolﬂu sgreed fhat the amount peysbls out of the

SIPA find phould be reduced by sny dis ibn the cleinanty recerved from the broker.

Thas Athens claiments argue that mh distinguishable, but offor no eoncrewE
}
rcason Tor distinguishing it Nudom-mm;:ohnouqmamﬁut

supports their position. Their enly :hmnq\wmmdlddmmuhu

aliowed whatcver "interes(” prymnents they u'fuhx;uvu rofled into 2 Fubsequent remsaction.

They cantend thut & person who reoeived an fgterest payracnt dut chode to keep that piyment
|
nén e forced o disgorge that interest

payment, and thus that it would be'inoqu em?amﬂndﬁmnm@geﬁono

ratier thap roll it Into avother tansaction

paymentt. The Athsna claimapts also orge Oaninipmamdiqmdﬁonufmecmm
of&tHmedBmwnclmbwwfeMECWﬂdmmﬁlom
applied by the Trustee,
nmthmmhwmpm-ﬁdmmtmmnm‘iw
oquIty in a tibwrion such ws this, ladesd, hmdmmmmoWs
Pﬁﬁuhmcmbﬁnw&lpﬂww&moﬁuprﬂymnﬁd

The Court is convimsed, bowever, that the of C 1 Wright is scund and, mareoves,
5 fully spplicable to the nstam maner, Espc’:inl}ywhcctb:mtwchhnmuwﬂlhc
made out of the quasi-publia STPA fimd, penmiots ddminmno:cmvthdr-hidal
cxpial mvestment but also the phony payments thoy recedved and rolled teso

snother trensnction is fliogical, No one diy, That the faterest puyments were not fa fict

S

————
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beteroat ot all, bt s mardly povtions of ofthar victms” capital investraeats. Jf tho Coumt
wors m agree with the Athens claimmms, the food would Gladly end wp paying out more
m@ummmzum'srmﬂ scheme. This raault is not consictent with
the goals of SIPA, which 8om not parport to make all vistirnized investor whols but caly
to prrdally amesliorats the lossas of certnin clasasn of fvestars Scg Pecker, Wilbuy, 498
F.24 a1 081,

Mnmuvar.mnnwmeAMdemem'w paymemn they eceived
would crents h:oudmmnwﬂmhhwm The Heebner and Brown clanvents’
cln'mshwebmﬁuyﬁﬁsﬂd.nﬂthouemwinoﬁmbyptymmtsdnuhimm
recaived frorg ONSL. Eunilarly, Ms. Kovecy' elatm ir offect hy the payroents she roceived.
The Athens olmmmmwwwmmmﬁ:ormpammm
recelved Wi Boe G th otior CHimaDF vepi such besiis. - -

The Court Is comvinand thot the Trostee correctly eelonlared the emounty due the
Athepn claimants, other than Stcphes end Linds Comspos, whose clabyn is dinied i its
entirety, Each claimants' claio rvast be reduced by any smounts the clarmant teceivad from
ONG] or from CMS!, whothor as “insereat,” retum of principal, or any other paymen:. Ta the
extent the Bankruptey Count’s ordey fitlled to addreas s [ssue of iled o apply the offfets
Tequested by the Trustos, thal order is veversed,

3. Comaand faes
Om the last page of their opposition memerandum, the Athans clairoents ask the Court
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to give them pre- and pos-judgment imreregt and taxable conts of litigation, or to remand that
{ssus to the Bankruptey Court for datermination. They offtz absctutely no argumect or
caselaw support for this request. Thare is nothing in tha recerd to indicate that the Athens
clairaunts have cver flled a farmal claim for such utcrest or covs.
SIPAdéunotpwﬁoﬁr&op}mntéfwhmmmwmunHmmu crL
Wright, 162 B.R. at 510. Nor is there any p:rwl;laniforﬁn payment of oosts or stoTDY's
foss. Morcover, as the Truste notes, B::Moh{mmn'mhﬁhahill ofcontz
campligno® ith the Lacal Rules preeloces acy clain for rocovery of itgation aoms, Sag
M.D. Fla. Bankz. L.R. 7054-1, The Athen clgimants no-mu&tldtomuyﬁmul.

Coats, or attornsy's fees frora the Trustor in this maney,

CONCLUSION
Based on the Sles, raeard, and procecdings hevein, the Coust determines that the
Truston's decision to dewy customer satus to Campos, MoDermor, and CMS] {5 correst, snd
et the Trustes corroctly caloulated th amoums dus the Athens claimants. Ascordingly, IT
15 HEREBY ORDERED that |
1. TheOrder Granciog Motion 1o Alter/ Amend Judgment (Benkr. Doc. No. 278)
is AFFIRMED v part and HEVERSED fa part as follows:
&  Chimats Stphen and Linds Compos' objections to Trusiea's
dotermination arc OVERRULER,; |
b The romaming claimests' clalms sball bo limitsd to their scoil

-17-
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iavestments 18sa anry teasived as interest, retum of priocrpal, -
or atverwise, a5 vat Stk sors fully aboves
2.  The Order Overraling Objecti ]m Trumsee's Datenmiination of Cisitn Noe.
137 aad 133 of Dosn MeDermot} ezd Compos-McDermott Saourities, Inc.
(Bankx. Dot No. 305) is 3 _
3. ThwOwdar Susaining Objections to Trstas's Determination of Claim Ne. 136
© ofRathlsen Kovaas (Banks. Doc. No. 312} i ARFTRMED; and
4. The Clerk is DIRECTED to qensimit a Certified Copy of this Order w the

Qleck of the United Stutes Cout

~-18.
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